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Believe in your values

for a better tomorrow.

@ Walues ana the fundamental baliefs of a parson or an
arganisation. The core values are the guiding principles
that dictate behavior and action. Thus, an organisation’s
@ values guide the operating philosophies or principles
= and determing an argenisation’s intemal conduct as well
as its relationship with customers, partners, and
P sharehalders. This year, we focus on G5K's cone values
af Patignt Facus, Integrity, Respect for Peagle and
= Transparency which we believe, if followad through, will
[ﬂ} ensura & hettar Eomarromw. 'EEI
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THE SPIRIT &=

VALUES

Respect

far peaple
Patiant focus

Traneparency
Integrity

products of valoe

Simphify the
operating model
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and Build trust

Believe in your values for a better tomorrow




QUALITY S

Quality is at the heart of

all activities that support the
discovery, supply and
marketing of products to our
patients and customers.
Quality is critical to building
trust with society and
therefore, to our future
business success.

ANDREW WITTY
Chief Executive Officer
G5K ple
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- Safeguard people and anhance their wellbeing
- Protect our communities and the environment
- Lead in what we do

- Make continuous improvement

- Integrate sustainability into aur business

- Be transparent with everyone

Chief Executive Officer
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LIVING OUR VALUES E=m--

At G5X, we beliave that operating in &
rezponzible and  athical manner =
psgential to our busingsz. This belief in
Walies-Based  Dacision  Making
underies  pverything we do, end
supparts the delivery af our business
stratagy. We are committed to earming
the trust of our stakehciders, both
internzl and extemnal, by delivering an
our promises as emplayeas and as &
company. In doing sp. we foster an
arvimnment whare peaple fael safa to
speak up and dentify areas for
impravement, ag wel 88 izsues of
concern. Trust is the key to our goad
reputation, and  crucial  too our
COMpanYy's S1Ceess.

Dur values provide the management
tone far the whale oganizatian. They
describe the spint in which we aperate
and prowide a reference paint when we
encaunter  difficult  situatians.  The

consigtent  demonstration and
communication af values by leaders at
all levels iz essential in making our
controls  effective. We &l hawve
individugl raspansibility to live the
values in everything we do, every day,
for GEE.

Dur walues raflect aur hebef that it i
not just what we achiave that counts, it
iz also how we achiave it.

—Be patient / customer focusad
-t with integrizy
—lemanstrate respect for peaple
~lerate with transparency

All the GSK Bangladesh employees
fodow Speak wp Culture tn ask
questionz  and  Spask  up.  Ewvery
employee is guiled to hold themsehes
and each other accountable for zhiding
by cur Code of Conduct. Furthemore,

employees e empawered, and required
to promptly raize concems of passible
mizcanduct, potential conflicts, ar
knawn breaches of this Code and
Company  expactations. Suspected
vidkations  of country  faws  and
regulations in Bangladash must alsc be
reparted. Thes includes tha patential
misconduct of EMEOYEES,
complemantary workers, consultants,
vendars, and partners with whom we
juintly  do Business  (including
co-promote entities].

Dur Speak Up cufture and procedures
ENCOUTARS Evaryane to raise CONCEMNS
about potential unethical or illegal
eonduct, and assure confidentiality and
pentection from retaliation, retributan,
o any form of harassment to those
reparting swch concems.

“There is no higher priority for me, as CED of GSK, than the values-based conduct of
our employees and our Company. | want to lead a business where every single
employee feels proud of their achievements. Because they work hard, they achieve
the unimaginable, and they do it the right way. In the last few years, we have
focussed on bringing to life our values of transparency, respect for people, integrity
and patient focus and being thoughtful about what they really mean at a human
level. 1 know that you share my desire to work for and build a business that has spirit,
a heart; a business that is guided by more than just money. At GSK, we want to
ensure that everything we do is guided by our commitment to our values and our

commitment to being in compliance with the regulations within which we have to
operate. The foundations of these commitments are laid out in our Code of Conduct
and each employee must take personal responsibility for abiding by our Code.
Building a successful business means we do not compromise our values. We should
always do the right thing for patients and consumers, regulators and society as a
whole. | firmly believe that, working together, we can achieve what we want to
achieve, doing it the right way.”
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THE GSK ANTI-BRIBERY AND
CORRUPTION (ABAC) PROGRAMME K= m~

Bribery and corruption are illegal no
matter where in the world you work.

“These i o greater prionty for GEK than the ethecal conduct of our
peopke. We st toimprove patent’s lives. Everything we do must be in
ihee best interescs af the patient. No matter where we operate in the
wiorkd, in gur intersctions with patients, prescibers, payers and govern-
ments, we must live our values of respect for people, transparendy and
ntegrity” Andrew Wity

Prevent

Nowhere i our commitment to echical conduct more evident than inthe
amea of comupion prevention and detection. AT GSK, our atTitude
Tt corruption in all ics forms is simple: it is one of zer tolerance. |
kmow that we aperate in challerging commercial environments and in
cultures where carnuption can be widespread. This can never be an
excuse. |0 is vital that we engure that our people and those who wirk on
aur hehalf understand their responsibilices and operate to the highest
ethical standards.

GEK Anti-Bribery and Corruption Standards:

1. G5K has a Anti-Brbery and Coruption Policy which 8. G3K Bangladesh prohibits all facilitation paymants.
covers GEK's general principles and standards on Thesa are paymants or gifts affarad to secure or speed
anti-bribery and corruption [ABAC) and maintenance of up [rathar than influence] a routine govamment
busimess documentation and fnancial records. It detisivn that should take place anyway a.g., paymants
reinforces our 2em tolerance towards &l farms of to customs afficials to ralease imports or expadite
cougton and our commItMENt T maintaining official procedures.
accurane ieconds of our business dealings.

7. Al our financial records must accurately raflect the

& 5K Bangladesh opesates on our coiporate valies and substance of transactions, regardless of thair size. Mo
our four ABAC Foundational I:"""‘::'I“ES legitimacy of transaction can be autharized or funded unlass the
intent, no wndue influence or conflet of interest, substance of the transaction is accurately recorded
rransparency and progoetionaliry. ard diselozed in our boaks and recards.

4 We pohibit the giving, offering, accenting or feQuest- 5 e b o ecfirm sufficient risk-based dus diigence
Ing OF improper payments. IMproper payments are prioe to tha angagmant of any third party and ensura
arything af value transfered directly to an individual, apprapriate cantractusl clauses and oversight contrals
or on someone’s behalf, with the purpose of influenc- arg put in place as described in ASAC Thind Farty and
ing or induting an act To secure an improper business Business Davelopment framewarks
advartage, of to impiopesly obitan of recain busingss. '

This: apphes to everyone we deal with. regardess of o g jsaraesions with Govarment Officials s in ful
their affiliacon with 3 govemment arganization or 3 comphance with laws, regulstions and codes of
peivate company conduct applicabla 1o Govemmant Dificials to pratect

4. It is unlawful even to offer a bribe, even if the offer is BSK raputation.
nat accepred of no beneft i gained. It is cntical that _ )
beibery and comuption rsks are assessed on an 10, G5Khas zero tolerance towards bribesy and corruption.
engaing bass within each business area, that mitiga-

o g oo o 1 3% srtres sl 2t ke o 0 ke,
3PDFIpIIACR Systems of INTRa! Conroks are In place. distributor or intermediary] with knowladge thar 28l oe

B Payment covers anything of valus, 5o not just cash but part of the paymant will be offared o given to any

also gifts, semvices, job ofers, loans, travel and
expenses and entercainment. The bottom line is that
we must not offer anything to impropesly influence any
perzan, regardless af whether they ang in the private or
pubkc sectar, or government officiaks.

individual ta secure an improper advantags, chtain o
retain husiness,




ABAL for G5K's Third Parties Due Diligence

GEK has a Code of Conduct satting out the standards of
ethics of tha corporation, ard spacifically an Anti-Comuption
Palicy that applies warldwide to all GSK emaloyeas, our
subsidiaries end affiliztes. end third partias acting for or on
bahalf af GSK. In many of its alemants, our policy is strictar
than some of the legislations of countrias whane we oparate.
G5Ka Anti-Bribery and Comuptian Frogramme [ABAC) has
been designad to incorporate @ mhust sat of internal
controls of GSK's oparations arownd the warld, and mcludes
ot anly the BSK Anti-Coruptian Palicy, but alza a sat of rukes
of canduct far the Company and its emplayess in aur interac-
tiars with Haalthcae Providars and Governmeant Officisks,
third partias in general and our business devalopmant
transactions. The purpase of the Third Partias Dua Oiliganca
framework is designed: To enswe compliance  with
G5K-POL-00T - Prewanting Carrupt Practicas and Maintaining
Standards of Documantatan (the "GSK Ant-Comuption
Palicy].

At GSK Bangladesh, ABAC due diligence process s embedded
within the existing pracesses for engagement of thid
parties. It is critical that the ABAC due diligence set out in
the Framework is applied consistently to thind parties
working far or on behalf of G3K (including resalution of red
flags] to ensure a standand implementation of and comph-
ance with the BSK Anti-Corruptan Palicy and ather applica-
ble intemal policies and contrals. The kevel of due diligence
reguingd Far a third party depends on whether itis considered
a Migh Risk Thind Party.

If a third panty does nat fir the enterla mdicated abave. it i
categorised a5 a Non-High Risk Third Party. Noo-High gk
Third Parties ane subject to minieom due diligence as
mandated in the Thind Party Framework and this Guidance.
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GENERAL INFORMATION &*7 -

Board of Directors

Radrigo Beckar

M. Azizul Hug [Resgned on 24/1,2015)

Md. Fayekuzzaman [Resigned en 17/12,/2015]
dinnia Tanzing Hug

Vankatramani Gopalakrizhnan

Mazud khan

Rajib Bansa

Md. Masbahul Hague [apsaimed s 21710,/ 2051
Erum Shakir Rahim (hppentad on 24,711,205]
M. Iftikhar-uz-zaman [hepainted as 02,002/ 2016]

Company Secretary
Zinnia Tanzina Hug

Registered Office & Factory
Fouzderhat Industrial Anea

Morth Kattz

Chittagong

Bargladesh

Corporate Dffice
House 28, Road 138
Gulghan 1, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh

i wew at manartachnag erte of GSK darpladest i Chirapong

Audit Committee Members
Masud Khan

Erum Shakir Rabim

M. I1ftikhar-uz-zaman

Bankers

Srandard Chartered Bank

The Hangkang and Shanghai Banking Corparation (HSEC)
Citibank NA

Agrani Bank

Sonazh Bank

Statutory Auditors
Chartered Accountants:
ACNABIN Chartered Accountants
Compliance Governance Auditar:
MABS & JPartners

Legal Advisors
Barristar Abdullzh Al Mamun
AMdvacate SC Laka
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING E='emmm--

Momice 15 heieby given that the 437 Annisl General Meeting of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited will be held on Thirsday
Thee 21% Apeil, 2016 a1 11:00 A.M. Far the following purposes:

1. Torecene and adopt the Dirgctors’ Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 3st December
2015 and the &uditars’ Report Themean.

2. Todeclare a deidend for the year ended 317 December, 2015.
1. Toekct Directors of the Company in the vacancies caused wider Article BS and &9 of the Articles of Association.
4. Teconfirm the appontment of the new Managing Director a5 per Sectian 108 of the Companles Act, 1094,

5. Toappoint Audivars for the year 2016 and to fix their emuneration.

By order of the Board

Zinnia Tanzina hug
Direchor & Company Secrefany

Dhaka, 24" Fabruary, 2016

Notes:

1. Members entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend in his/her stead. The
Prasy Form must be affieed with requesite revenue stamp and deposited at the Company's Begistered 0ffice not less than 48
hiours before the time appainted for halding the mesting.

2. The Record date i fixed on 16" March, 2016 for closing of share transfer book. Members whose name will appear in the
Members’ Register an that date will be eligible to attend and vote in tha AGM and to recese the dvadend as appraved in the
M.

W GIK
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STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN =i
Rodrigo Becker, Chairman

0On behalf of the Board, | am debghted
o wekcoma you all to the 437 Anaual
General Mesting of (axoSmithkline
[G5K] Bangladesh Ltd. and prasent to
you the Anmual Repart of the Compary
far the yaar 2015, This yaar has shown
good alignment ta the Companys
strategy of:

+ Building a diversifiad business

- Delivering mane praducts of value

+ Simplifying the operating model

« Create a culture of individual
ampowerment

« Build truse

Despite the difficult operating enviran-
ment in 2015, the Compary has
maintained its directian in strengthen-
ing a diversified business through
Phamacauticals,  Vaccines  and
Consumes Heafthcara in Bangladash.
Relevant produces have been added to
our product poetfolio so that consum-
g and patients can derive more valye.
Intesmal contrals have bean revisited ta
ensuie that the corz and suppart
functions ara upholding a mbwst contral
envirgnment while binging in simplif-
cations within our pperating model. Wa
remain committed in our ways of

working te demanstrate the GSK
Valuas,

In 206, the consumar heatthcana
business hag managed to retain its
lnadership pasition. Howaver, grawth
against previoys wear has been severaly
impacted by a challanging external
envirgnment. The Company is addess-
ing these issuas through an intagrated
action plan acmss lagal, repulatary and
commercial aranas. Fullimpact of thesa
plans will only realise in 2016, The
pharmaceuticals  business,  despita
facing internal supply restraints and
ragulatary  challange,
managad to achieve 8 modest grawth.

increased

Returng to sharshokders remain & key
pricrity for the Board end managemant
tzam and despite the challenging
trading enviranment in 2015, & focus on
cost and financial efficiencies  has
allowed the Bosed to ecommand & final
cash dwvidend of Tk, B5 per ghare far
5. This represencs a 30% incresss
owver last yeac

Risk Management & Governance
The Board aims to azsure the integrity
of GSK Bangladesh’s husiness opera-

tigns through rigarous processes and
systams and during the yaar, risk
management was a key part of Board
and  management  discussions. The
internal control framewark has been
furthar strempthanad though various
levels of management manetoring which
wazs averseen by the Board.

At our Global Manufacturing & Supphy
[GMS] Site in Chittagong, faciliny
upgratte  projacts  have  taken
mamenturn. Alang with the implemen-
tation of GSK Praduction Systam, which
started in 204, the upgradation
projacts continug ta rafarm and smphi-
fy GMS Chettagongs supply chain to
enswe more afficient delivery of GSKs
preducts to patients and consumers. In
5015, Capability Building was ona of the
key prarities for Chictagang Sice for
ensuing Safety. Product Quality and
als0 o meet the compliance at every
stape of the aoparation to face the
regulatary challenges.

Furchermeae, 2015 saw the mil our of
the new Healthcare Frofessional (HCR)
Engagement madel. In omer to b
successful in this new way of working,
resource building has been completed

G5K

n
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and effective  plans  have been
implamanted for capabdity building of
the medics, standardizing ways aof
working, amd patnenng across the
organigation. & wery pasitive witten
feedback has been raceived from the
HCPs of the country through which they
ranked it a5 an excallont endeavour and
agresd that it would immensely help
tham in their day to day practice and
called far the continuztion of simila
programmes in futura, Onca again, GEX
has elevared itz world class medical
govarnance  keeping consumar  and
patient zafety in the heart of all activi-
ties, excelence in pharmacovigilance
and safery reporting processes.

G5 remains to be a prefiered employer
for  aspiring  professionals  in the
country. As part of our strategic
pricitias, we ensure the individual
empawermant of aw empliyess and
ancourage strangth through diversicy, &
state of the art pecole management
systam named “Workday™ haz been
rolied aut that will enadle employess to
manage information and raceive HE
services anytime and anywhare. Human
Resourca function in your organisation
is sean as a sucoessful business
partnar in enzéling business transfor-
mation through pecple. Like any acher
yea, amployee and industrial mlations
ware healthy in 2015.

It Bfeas me immense p'Eﬂer o ghare
that this year your Company’s Annual
Repart 2014 wan the first prize fram the
prastigious Tha stitute of Chartared
Accountants of Bangladesh [ICAR]
under the Best Prasented  Annual
Reparte 2004 in the manufactusing
sector. South Asian  Federation of
Accountants - an apex body of SAARD
also awarded your Company far the
SAMe FEpart.

12 G3K

Board Changes and Compositian

This yeaar, thera has been a number of
changes to the Board, in terms of both
compasition and size af the Board. In
alignmant with the Secunty Exchange
Commission Regulations requirament,
we have enhanced our Beard ta include
anather nan executive. ndapandent
diractar. Mc Md. Meshahul Hoque, joined
thea Beard in Octabar 2015 25 & nan-ax-
ecutive, independent director. Mr Hogue
has browght with him a wealth of
expanencs in the corparate sector and
helped strengthan the Board of GSX
Bangladesh Ltd. As & rezult, the curent
Board of Oirectors of the Company
canststs af 8 Direetars, incleding 3 Nan
Exacutive Directars. Mr M. Azizul Hug,
Managing Direcror for 17 years. is
appointed as Vice President and Gengr-
al Manager of GSK Pharmaceuticals,
Pakistan. As a result ha has resigned
fram the sarvices of the Comgany and
alsp offered bis resignatian fram the
Board a5 Managing Director The Baard
deaply appreciatad the waluahle servic-
s of M. M. Azizul Hug during his tenwme
af assaciation with the Company and
wighed him prospenty for his nest
agsignment. In his placa, Ms. Erum
Shakir Rahim, currently Baneral Manag-
er of G5K Pharmaczuticals, Malaysia,
has besn appointed 2= Managing
Director af the Company with effect
from 1= Janyary, 2006 Her esume is
pravided under the Direcrar's profile.

Towards the end of the year Mo M.
Fayekuzzaman has also resigned from
the Board due to his complesan of
tenure with the Investment Corparation
af Banglkadesh [ICA).

In hiz place, the Board has endorsad the
appaintment of the new  Managing
Director of ICE, Mr. Md. Frikhar-uz-zaman.
Hig resurmne s provided in the drectors
profile segment [pags-53).

Cammitment to our Valees

Wa arg committed 1o upholing the
highest Standard of Echics while
carrying out our busingss activitas and
anzuring that consumer and patient
safety is abways a priceity in ow
decision making. Evary employee of the
Company embeds the GSK values of
Integrity. Respect for Peaple, Pabent /-
Conzumar Fecus and Transparency into
thair averyday work lifa. We ame
confident that GEX Bangladesh will
continue to deliver mcreased value to
tha Bangladesh market and offer
sustainable erurns to the shashold-
ars.

| canclude by expressing my thanks to
all employees of GSK Bangladesh for
the hard work they have put in during
tha kst year | am confident that the
team will continue to drive the business
forward. On behalf of the Beard, | would
ke 1o express my sincans appreciation
o you 3l our valued Business Partners,
tha Hezlthcare Professionals  and
Insaitutes, Suppliers and Government
Authoditias for their trust and contin-
ued suppost to the Company. | wigh the
company continued success in the
future.

)

Rodrige Becker

Chairnan




REPORT OF

DIRECTORS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS m-m-
Erum Shakir Rahim

Managing Director

The Board af Diractors of GlaxoSmitkline
Bangladesh Limited has the plessume in
submitting the annual repart together
with the Comparys sudited financial
stetements for the year enced 3
Dacember, 2015

The Eear F01E w=s a challenging year for
the Compary with increased repulstory
complexities and  enha miarket
competitieness. Thioughout the year
tha Company continued to foous on its
key stratepies in both the consumer
healthcare  and  the pharmaceutical
business ments  to  ensure
congistency in the delivery to its
shareholder value. This report highlights
tha kery business activities that dove the
perfumance  of the Company  and
presents the necessary dischisure in
re‘ation to good corporate govVErnance.

1. Industry Dutlook and Possible Future
Developments

Pharmacsuticals
fiding on increasing damand for both
newer ganeration and lifestyle madicines,
tha local Fharmaceuticals markst in
Banpladesh cmssed Tk 130,000mn n
2015, From a mederate pacs in growth
over last 3 years, tha market showed a
comaback posting an impressive 15%
awth. This was supported by an
improving busnass emaronmant @ the
backdrop of reinstating paolitical stahility
gince start of 0Z. The impact bacama
pa'tc,ularll,wmbledarrllﬁtl'ﬂlamrpamnf
tha year, whera curing tha 0% in isolation
tha market grew 3ZX over the same
pericd last yaac

Whila Anti-ulcarants ramain the biggest
revenue penarating tharepy @reR n
Bangladesh, the recent market growth

haz mostly been driven by significant
growths in use of insulin. modam oral
aniti-disbatics & cardiovascular dnsgs, On
the ather hand, mast af the antibiotics,
which usec to ba market drivers earlier,
saw 3 decline in growth rates. This
indicates tha direction in which the
marketing iz traveling - fom en
infectiows disezsa daminant to @ lifestyle
disezrsa emargent ane - bath in tarms of

evalence medicine  consumption
haviout
Consumear Healthcare

2015 continued to see slupgish consumer
sentiment.  Howewer, Fast  Mowi
Cansumer Goods (FMCE] market, valu
at TE. Z53bn grew by 1Z28% (Source:
Higlsen]. This wes mainly drven by
volume growths, as majority of the
companies took pce comactions. Major
contributions  ceme from Mon-food
Categories [38% of FMLG) which grew
volume by 10%, whie Foods catego
[44% ot FMCG) grew by onky 10.1%. Hesl
Food Drirks [HFD) valwed 2t Tk, 3.5bn
showed = growth of 8% in velus, and 3%
volurme in J015.

1. Businezs Parformance

Pharmaceuticals

The local busingss of pharmaceuticals &
vaccines graw by avar &¥. Thiz tranzlatas
to creating accass of chsa to 31 milion
packs of our products to patients across
the nation. Daspite mcreasad barriers on
impart af & faw high aguity GSK brands,
growth was divan almost agually by all
zanes indicating rabwstess of processes
and good field engagament. Thare has
bean a continued effort in buikling tha
capahilities of owr salkes and markating
teams to maks the organization fit for
industry leading new ways of working,

whera the business iz conducted
ethically with Patient Foous at the heast.

Dermatodogy business has been your
COmpEry’s strenpth and contributes 30%
to the total business. 15 saw
continueed strengthening of our position
for major brands with partfolio growing at
1. The flagship brand Betnavate™ grew
over 1T%. With the racent ntr-:nl:IL-:ti::cn of
Specialty  Darmatol portfoio  from
Stiafel™ we now ulFagrya comprehensive
range which not only test skn
conditions but also pratect & maintain
Ei:-ul: skin health of the aspiing patient
class. DUACE, which offers a unigue
comhbination to manage ACHE, and
PHYSIDEEL. & moiturizer with lipids
which resemble DERMA  MEMERANE
STRUCTURE technology ere best in class
procucts and hold great promise for the
futura.

fesnirstory business which hzppens
b= our second strang pillar akso managed
to past positive prawth at §%, despea
impart mestrictions on the biggest brand
SERETIDE™, Thiz reflects the commercial
team’s ahiities amund mbust planning
and exgcution of strategies and 3
winning attitude.

In Respiratory therapy amea, it is seen
scross the Elobe thet Asthma Patierts
tend to lead & compromised life with
sub-optimel control of their dzeass
condition. GSK  swives to promote
guidelines zat by global axperts that am
to improwe  patient  adherence  to
tregtment and peoviding total contral,
Flagship  brends  SERETIDE™  and
YENTOLIN™ cxetinuad to help imprewe the
life of z=thma patients.

AVANYS™, yet another emerging global

G5K
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asset in Respiratory business and a best in
class treatiment for Allergic Rhinitis contirued
o see greater acceprance and cocked an
impressive 16% grawth,

While a coupla of established products fram
the Classic Brands partfolio dd not grow being
in a matwed life cycle, the oral stamids ange
viz Betnglan B Frednelan grew ac 6% and
supperted ovarall parfarmance.

In 2015, the Vaccine business 2w by 8%, with
significant contributons from the  brands
Cemvarix™, Engens™ and Syafloris™. Towands
end of the year 55K has entered inta the global
3-part wansaction with Novartis in Bangladesh,
whereby the Vacone portfolio has been
acquied from Movarss and the Oncale
busmess of GSK has been divested. This will
ergune G5K o consolidate and focus further on
the Wacome  segment  going  forwand,
Furthemane, &t ain above couritiy level, GSK
was selected for sy I-,.mgI Preumecoceal
Wacones  to GAV] %Inba Aliance  for
Wacomation and Immumsation], which will be
e By the Eangljadnsh EM [Expandid Program
of Imenuresation]. This means, every new bom
in Bangladesh will now meceive a vaccing that
comes  from  yowr  tosted  name 0
Pharmaceuticals - GSK. This is a mdestane in
manmisng access to G5 products for the
pgpln of Bangladesh, which you will feel proud
absaut.

Consumer Healtheare

Thi Consumer Healthcare business of the
mmﬁuy dechined by 114, primanily an back
of consumir  sentment and  parallel
imparts. We have engaged with authorities and
taken kzgal steps ta stem the flow of parallel
imparts. The trade incentives ane also bnin%
gven in the market to counter the paralle
ianrLs. We have alen initiated sampling with
sohool chiden and & wral camgaign 1o
ecducate children on food and nutioan. dn the
lead pioduct, we have also stated offering
xbra grammage ~ 22% at the same price. We
bseers theese will sf.-nrﬁlm this brand leyalty
among  custamers. We stll maintam 3
daminant Macket Shane of 29% in the Health
Foed Orink Categany.

Horbes™ continued to be in the k=t of top
Brands in Bangladesh acress all Categones
Horbicks was the 3rd most loved brand and No.1
Brard m Health Food Drink category. Held under
the auspices of Bangladesh Brand Forum this
awaid is mesgnition of the brands consistent
detery of its Pomise of Nuwition' to the
GOFEUMETS,

Sensodyne™ contineed to graw and expand s
neach.
Your Comparty i humbly proud to be drang the

initiatnog of proveding aceess 1o geod mutrition
to the people of the country.

4 GIK

% Manufacturing

(ver the last four decades, the GMS Chittagong site has been continuing the
joumey of achiesing marufactuing excelence by embeddng new

working, bringing niew techaology in the opesation and enfiancing capability.
Duimg 3006, Chittagong site has delivesad the commencial expectation of
defivering the pluductsgy maintaining Safety and Juabty expectations. Duin
the year a no of faciity upgrade projects has been completed - site replace
berth the emergancy and mamn genesatars, significant facility upgrade by adding
GMIP doors 21 site has been completed and next phase of upgiade prajects is

PROEFBSSINE a5 par plan.

The joumey of GFS i.e., GSH Production System started in 2004 at Dhil.lag:lﬁ
site and cortinies its momentui in 2016, The BS is & set of standaid ways
working o identify and elminate the ot cause of Accidents, Defects and
Waste and theeby delvesing Zero Accident, Zern Defects and Do Waste. Six
barsac standands of GPS has already been initiated at site which resulted in Zeo
Aceident status foe site in 2005, Dvesall Equpinent Eficiency [DEE] of our
packaging ines & in inceasing trend.

Capabdity Bulding was one of the kt‘.'%l privrities in 2015 for Chittagong Sice for
ereanng Salety Product Juality snd also te mest the comphance al every stage
of the operation to face the regulatory challenges. & number of intemal and
wxtemnal capability bulding programs were conducted 2t site. Twa modules
namely Lcense to Operate and 65K Froduction System [GPS] has been
imphenented for all emgloyees under the My Supprr Chain Acadeiny. Site
Leaders had been vained on face to face tranng of Leading Delwery, Leading
EHS ard First Line Leaders Experience (FLLE).

& dedicated team has been working under Resmedsation to embed and sustan
the Quality systems and processes, developing Subject Matter Expert [SME] to
erance knowledge and understanding and mantaining ENS comgliances at
gite. Twa Joint Plannng Sessons [.Jl?ﬁgj mvolemg site and sove site Juabty,
kr@|i]nm3r|nFand EHS Turttiones - wers conducted in 2016 te assess the site gaps
in the Quabty Systems and Frocedunes and the team successfully came out of
concrete actions for mmplementation. This resulted in improvements at our
8ualu-,r Systems and Laboratory Operations invateing L1 & L2 awdit processss,

WS coenpliamcs, Line Cearancs, Documerntation and Dats Integrity protesses
ardd Human Factar understarding for better perfamanca,

Investing on People remaing key prionty for site, Duing 2006, a total of B8 people
hare been inducted into site o perations, G site vigits of SMEs froen diffenent
5K sites and fumctions also enhanced People capability. Site suceessfully
comgleted the Enginesning audits m 2015 and sconed 67% under TR
asseasment. Al the wnprovenent initiatnes has esulted Ste o rman in High
Cantral Sratus for bath Quality sk Moded ard ERS Risk model during 04, 2015,

4. 65K Paople

Your ceganization iz evohang and Human Reseurces (HR) team is the key
diver of this transformation by supporting the business to embed a
Perfarmance drivien cultune and new ways of warking,

Aligring with global platferm, HR in yaur orgaresation has rolled out state of
the art peape management system named “Workday™ that will enable
ernployees 1o manage information and recerve HR services arytime and
anywhene [accessible from mobile as well). With the help of thes

 ——
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revalutionery system, emplayes information cen be stored onlins,
employee performance cen be monitored and performance based
reports can ba genarated to support the business decisiors. Over a
period of time, Workday will enable employess t work more sfficiently
minimising tha paper hasad tranzactions.

HR rook initiztive to mil out “Futue Leader Programme (FLP]" - & GSK
glohal programme, highly recoginizad for devaloping leadership pipeling
in the argenisation. This is a twa-year programme whera FLP trainees
unoargn an exhaustive leaming pracess and get invaleed in different
projects, functional stints before they era placed in 3 leadership
pipeling rale.

Theough a rigorous process of aptitude tast and sszessment cantre, twa
FLP Treinges for Pharma business have been an-hoarded in 2015. We
intend to axtend the FLF programme to Consumer Healthcane businass
as well.

To become true partner for the business, HRE in pour crganisation teak
initiative to recruit more than 100 permanent employess in
Pharmaceutical and Global Manufactunng & Supply [GMS] businesses.
Amangst them, &5 employees were recruited undear Project “Reach-Out”,
a business expansion propect for Phaima business, and rest of the
recruitment toak place in GME, Chittagong site to enhance productivity
and stabilise the production processes. We have also successfully
integrated third party ‘Expart Marketing team of Consumer Healthcere
busimess into G3K Bangladesh.

Continuous learning and capabilicy enhancement of employees ane the
core drivers for futura business growth, Keeping that in mind "My Supphy
Chain Academy’ programme was launched in GMS. Chittagang Sae. This
iz a global GSK pragramme and for the fret time lzunched in Bangladesh.
Under My Supply Chain Academy, there wene several learming modules
like GMS Foundation, End-to-End Supaly Chain, Leading EHS, etc., that
helped the GMS employess 1o become more panent focussed while
producing and managing quality medicinas.

5, Financial Rasults

The Directors teke plesswe in reporting the financial results of the
Campany far tha year anded 31 Decembar 2015

Particulars

Resanis 558 AR TIB7.226
Cretaf Ealos [a264 20T) [11478, 255
Enoss Peoin 2 E34, 531 2nnanm
Finfit bafaie tasation 1,133,568 [T
Lass: Praviaion for taeation m EEE
Mt Profir aifter ta 331078 B26,17E
ek Urappeeprioned pratn

Ermaupht forward drom prasious pear TRE A3 1,308 E07

At Addustmast made an accownt of depesal
af revalued assets
Mraent aveikatbe far distritatian

T | L

Eppropiations:

Drawdznd for the pear ended M |B[I§£in]

A0 e cernher, 2005 8 BEON (2014 520%)

Transfer ta retairas sarrnge 1 HH _1&&
Figuresin BI." D03

Mat Sales of the Company was Tk, 6699mn,
agamst Th. 7,187mn of last yeer. This reprasents &
T% dacline from last year. Despite & nagative
growth in the key categony (HFD) of the Company
and zavera intemal challenges of supphy chain,
the Company was able to ohtain a |eadership
postion in Consumer Healthcare segmant and
post @ positive growth i the Pharmaceuticals
sapment. Thioughout the year sxpenses were
strictly rationslized, and along with 2 strongar
stable cumency the grozs profit showed & decline
aof 3% from previous year There wes further
aptimization of operating expenses. Thiz helpad
to imprave profic after tax by 1% which stood at
Tk B3Imn. Az 8 result, EFS [Eamings per Share)
has marginally increazed to Tk, 6489 from Th.
GH.GT in 200,

6. Dividand

In consideration of the abave, the Board of
Directars recommendad 2 final dividend of
550% i.g, Th. 55.00 par share of Tk, 10.00 each
far tha year 2015,

The recommended dividend it appraved by the
shareholdars &t the Annual Genaral Meeting
will irwalve & cash outflow of Tk, 662 55mn.

7. Directors’ Disclosures and Daclarations

The full financial statements are presanted in
alater section of the annual regoet, alang with
the full notes of disclozures. The Board of
Diractars is further pleased to peesant yau the
fallowing disclosures:

a

The financisl statement prepared by the
menagement of the Compamy presant fairky
jts =tate of affsirs, the result of it=
operations, cash flows end chanpges in eguity:

b

Fraper baoks of eccounts af the Company
have bean maintzined;

c] Approprigte sccounting policies have bean
consistently epplied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are hesad on ressonshle and
prudent judgement;

d

Internationsl Financial Reparting Standerds
(IFRE), 8 applicabla in Eangladesh have been
fallowed in preparation of the financial
statamants and any departure thare from has
been adequately disclosac:

-]

There are no significant variance betwean
Quartery Financial Parformance and Annual
Finencisl Statements;

1) Al deviations from the last yesr's operating
results of the Company have been highlighted
under the ahove paint &

All transactions with relatad pasties have
been made on & commercial basis and the

B
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bass waz the principle of “Arm's Length
Transactions”. Related party transactions have
been presented in notes to the Financial
Sratements;

During the year, the Company has paid a total
of Tk, 250,000 as Boand meeting attendance
fees. The remuneraton of Deectoes has been
mentaned in the nates ta the Finaacial
Sratements;

il There is no extra-oedinary gain o loss durng
thee yiar;

I Uilisationof proceeds from public msues iz rot
apalicable;

k] Explamation of financial results after IPD s ot
applicable;

Il The suinmaized key operating and financial
data for the five yeaes [2010-2018) 15 st out in
Anrexure-1.

The Directors also repart that:

a) The Managng Dirsctor and Fnance Dimctor
hawe certified to the Board that they have
miewed the financial statements far the year
and to the best of their knowledge belisve that
these statements da nob contain any
materially untrue statements or amit any
raterial fact or contain statements that might
bt rrigleading:

b) The Managng Dinsctor and Fnance Dirctor
have certified ta the Board that they have
reiewed the financal statements for the year
aid to thi best of thiir knowledge bilise that
these statements together present a trug and
fair wew of the Companys affairs and ane in
compliance with exesting accounting standards
and applicable laws:

¢ The Managng Dirsctor and Fnance Dimctor
P Further certified to the Board that thene
ane to the best of ther knowledge and bebef.
no transactans entered mta by the Company
dunng the year which s fraudulent, illegal or
in vickation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

8. Risks & Concerns

The Comparty has a robust system of managing its
business nsk which has been desenbed under
Corpoeate Govesrance Chapter and the notes 1o
the Financial Statements.

9. Internal Contral

The Company maintains a sound internal contol
gystem which gives reasonable assurance agamst
any materal mis statement of less, The internal
contral framewock is regularly reviewed by the
Apdit Comaitte in each meeting which is eported

16 G3K

o the Board of Directors. Further, the Company's Executive Committes
also reviews the intemal controls and risk management process on a
quarterly basis. This repant further encloses 2 derailed discussion on
the internal centrel framewark under the Statement of Intemal
Conted,

10, Going Concern

The Directes ane of the apinion that the Company is a ging cancern
and there ame no signifcant doubts wpon the Company's ability to
continug 8z 3 going concarn. Accordingly Financial Statements e
prepaned on a going concem basis.

11. Contribution to the National Exchequer

Eviry year the Compary makes a significant contrbution 1o the
Matianal Exchaguer in the form of duties and taxes. During tha year
2008, GlaxoSmath&line Bangladesh Limited contributed o the
gowamnment exchequer a sum of Tk, 1,961 mn.

12. Board of Directors and Sharehelding Information

Composition and Size of the Board

O $1st Decembier, 2015 thers wene 3 members on the Board. The Baard
comprises  of Exacutive and  Mon-Executive  Directors.  The
Mon-Exscutive Dinsctors bong independent judegment in the Boards
deliberationz and decigions. Five Directars, including the Managing
Director, are Executive Oirectors. There are three Non-Executive
Diractars, put of which twa are Independent Directors.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During the yaar 2018, T [geven] meetings ware held. The following table
shows the compesition of the Baard and attendance at the Board
mestings:

Mama of Disetars

M. Aosdrigo Becker .

T

Trarn ik

Mr. M. Axizul Hug g & Ui e
Ne Erum Shakir Bahinm " Apmasd e

1 Hahlrante HE
Hr. Ml Khan 7 i
Ms, finnia Taraina Hug T T
Nr, M, Fapebozzames T T
M. Rajie Zanm T 5
Nr. Gopalarshnan Venkatraman T &
N M. Mg beah U Hau 3 ¥ o et 1

The members who eould rat attand the meeting wars granted laava.

Details of Directors baing Appointed /Re-appointed:

Ag per the Artiches, ane-third of the Drectors excluding the Managing
Diractar ghould be retinng by mtation and if elgible, qualify for
- glEctan,

Thie Dwictirs reteing by otatsan under Article 35 ae Mi. Radnge
Becker, Ma. Zinnia Tanzina Hug and M Gopalsknshnan Venkatramani,
whi being ehgible, offer themsehes for re-election,




Mg, Erum Shakir Bakim, M Md. Meshahul Hogque and Mo MG
Iftikhar-1z-zaman having baen appointed to the Epard since the
lazt Armual General Meeting under the provision of Article 89 also
retire and being elgible, offer themsehes for re-election.

The brief resume of Ms. Erum Shakir Rahim, Md. Mesbahal Hoque
and B Md. IFtikhar-ue- zaman are gven below:

Erum Shakir Rahim

Erum Shakir Rahim was inducted in the GSK Bangladesh Boart in
Newember, 2015, Prior to this role she was the General Manager of
G5¥ Pharmacauticals, Malaysia & Brungi. Ms. Erum has also heid
the positions of Diecto, Marketng and Business Development of
G5¥, Pakistan, Iran and Afghanistan. She balds 2 Masters degreein
Mass Communication Fram University of Karachi and has over 20
years af expenence in GEX.

M Md. Ktikhar-uz-zaman

Mr. Wd. IFtikhar-uz-raman was inducted in the GSK Bangladesh
Eoard in February 3016, He assumed the position of Managing
Oirector of Irvestment Corporation of Bangladesh in February
2016. His succassful carear spans over 32 years with important
positars at different banks and fnancial organisations. Prior te hes
current pogition, he served as Deputy Managing Diractar of Janata
Barik Ltd and ICE, Befom that be was General Manager of IC8,

Mr. Md. Iftikhar-uz-zaman 2=a sits 22 Director of various companies
including Brtish Amencan Tobacco Bangladesh Co. Ltd., Linde
Eanglzdesh Limited, Renzta Limited, Bangladesh Krishi Gobeshona
Endawment Trust, Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd,, Credit
Rating Infesmation and Services Ltd, Standard Bank Limited.
Matienal Tea Comgany Limeted, Apex Tanaery Limited, Central
Depnsitory Bangladesh Led., CAPM Ventura Capital & Finance Ltd.

Mr. M. 1ftikbar-uz-zaman obtained 8.0 (Hens) and MA. in Statistics
from University af Rajshahi. Durng his career he sttended a
riumber of trainmg programmes an different Capital Marker msues
at hama & abroad.

Me Md. Mesbahul Hoque

Mr. M. Mesbakul Hogue was inducted m the G5K Bangladesh Boand
in Detober, 2015, He did his greduation in Pharmacy from Purdab
Universty, Pakistan, He also holds an MBA degres from the
Ingtitute of Business Administration, Dhaka University.

Md. Mesbabul Hoque stated his  caeer in country's
pharmaceutizal gettar m 1969 by joming May & Baker [UK] L.,
presantly known as Avanitis [80] Ltd. He was the Managing Directar
of Thisrapeutics (ED] Limited froam 1906 o 2002, He sk wirked a5
Director Doerations of Libra Infussans Ltd., and Marketing Directar
of Samofi Bangladesh Led [Ahone-Poulenc). Currenthe be iz an
Independent Dirgctar of A3 Bank Limited. He iz an activa membar
of Eangladesh Pharmaceuticals Seciety: and the Former Charman
of Reptiles Farm Ltd., [fwst crocodile captive breeding fam in
Bangladesh).

The bnef  reswne  of  the  other  Directors
ratiring freappainting Directors ame given in pagas 53-B4.

inchuding

Audit Committes

&5 per stipulation of The Bangladesh Secorities and
Exchange Commission [BSEC) puidelnes, the Board
has constituted an Audit Cammittee For the Cofmpary
which is mentioned in the Compliance Repart enclosed
herewith. The Committee comprises of 1 Independent
Non- Executive Drector, | Mon-Executive Diector and
the Managing Dimctor The Awdit Committes met &
ez in the year Al members of the Committes were
present. The Finance Oirector acted as the Secretary
to the Audit Committee. Further details of the Audit
Cormimities's esponsbilities ane meluded in the Sudit
Committes Report.

Remungration to Directors

The remuneration, perfeemance and related bonus of
Executive Drectors ame eviewed and approved by the
abewe: Country managesent,

The Exgsutree Drectoes and soine semor employess of
the Compary ang entitled to Share Value Plan of
GlanaSmithkbne ple, UK.

Independent and Non-Executive Directors ather than
Oirectars wha ane in the employment of  the
GlaxoSmithkbne  Group  Companies  are pad
attendance fees of Th, 10000000 per meeting as
refruREratian,

The details of the remumeration paid to the Ewcutie
Directars during the year ane gven o Mates-30 af the
Financial Statements.

Sharehelding nfarmation

The sharholdng mformation as at 31 December, 2015
and other relaved infarmation ane set aut m
Annexure-lll.

Shareholders /lnvestors Grievance

Ourirg the year under review, the Company meceived
some complants reganding an tme receipt of Armual
Reports and dividend from the shaehelders. &l these
is5ues have been resobeed duly,

13, Performance of Corporate Responsibilities

&5 a Company our responsibility and commitment. ta
the Commurity whese we wark i gaining mone and
more snportance. Being a healthcare company we
have made it owr mandate t improve and work in the
public health sectar in order o facilitate access o
quakty hiealtheane far all. We, m Bangladesh, over the
years, have taken up a good number of mitiatives wo
fulfil our corporate responsibdities for a better and
healthier community.

The key initiatives include:
Reirvestrent of 20% of profits foe Healtheare
Infrastructure development in Bangladesh:

Ini 2001, the Comgany commenced a unigue intiate
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to craata hasltheare infrestructure of the country by re-investing 205 of itz
pendits to innovativa health HR initiatives. Through partnarzhip with leading
INGOs and rancwned organisations some of the projects under the mitistives
have completad the 15t phase with few key milestones. By end of 2015, few
of tha projacts hewe movad to further axpansion phase as wall. The nitiative
now has axpanded from nraal:in% health HR through Community Heslth
Waorkess at the hard ta reach rural aress to uan/zam urban srezs. This
initiative continues to grow efficiently since its incaption and till date runs &
number of successful projects with CARE, M&S, Friandship & ICOOR.E &=
partnars.

Key projects include:
» (G5K-CARE Community Health Warker Initiativa
® GSK-FRENDSHIP m-Health praject
# G5K-ICODR. B Haalth System Strangthening Programme
 G5K CARE AMG [Reacy Made Germants] Heslthcara Fragramme
® GSK MBS, CARE Health Access and Linkaga Dpportunities for
Wiehers (HALDW) Praject
Datails of these initiativas are provided in pages 38- 35,

Frae Primary school at Mirpur, Dhaka.

GSKE continuous support of this primaery school for slum children in
foopnagar Miroug Dheka, has enabled it to pravida more than 500 students
frae aducation from pre-school to Class 5. Till date, the school boasts of
100% pass rata of the studants in the Primary School Cartificate axams.

The Duke of Edinburgh's Awards [DEA]

#5 one of the Founding Trustees of this intemational progremme G3K, aime
at providing the mew penerstion with lite skills and apportunity to do
different extracuericular activiies. To make this international awerd
accessible va & widar grawn of youth, the eward programme was expanded to
a number of institutions outside Dhaka, Chittagong to slmost all divisions)
cities of the country. The result of which, saw a remarkable anmément. of
araund 4000 awardeas lzst year. Tha programmea was also awsrdad ful
licanaing by its Internationsl Chapter in 2015 for its outstanding wark end
penCass.

Dur support to cifferent chartable projects through cash end medicine
donations cantinuad kg previous yaars.

14, Erwirenmant, Health and Safaty

G5K Bangladesh i committed to provide a healthy end risk-frae envimnment
for itz amployess, senica providers and visitars at the site for ensurning "Iem
Accidant”.

Chittagang Site ended the year 2018 with "Zern” GEK Reportable Imjury &
lness [AI&]] caza. This outstending safety rezult is mainly due to closing of
unsata conditions, unsafe behaviour & Near Missas es part of Zero Accident
Fromotion [24F] programme. In 2015, site employees proactivaly raported &
closad 2,501 numbers of Near Misses arisen from unzafe conditions, unsafe
behaviour and proactively mitigated tha precursor of accident. Also,
Chittagang =it is continuing "Stop for Safaty’ waeekly shop-floor
gngagement to reduca at-risk bahaviour of the warking people. The Site
Leadership Team (SLT) mambers carred aut Zero Accass physical guarding &
Lock-Out / Tag-Out [LOTO) audit at the site and closad the gaps in Machinery
Safery comphanca.

Chittagang Sita recaivad ERS sk prafile status from Audit & Assuranca (A&A)
in 20ME. Tha Site & in high contral quadrant and the control system appears
rabust with & significant impravernent in L3 Audit performance as findings

1B 3K

from the last (2014 sudit have been
addressed. TP13 angineering assessmant
was held in Dacembar 2005 with & scare of
B7% in "Good” Lewsl.

To increase EHS capability end risk
awerengss among our First-Line Leadars
[FLLs] sita has propagated “Leadmg EHS™
certificetion programma on ten wab- basad
mylearning  modules, thres  workshops
followad by & poster session  and
gxamination. Almost 40 people succassfully
complated the “Leading EHE certificatian
program. Managing workplace strass end
releasing anargy iz wital for Company
businass. GME site amesngad & day-ll:-nE
Ferzonal Resdience Warkshop on 8t
August, 2015 for 30 =ite paople. Crisis
Managamant Training & simulation wes
carried out: by the Regional C3l Team for the
30 participants in March 2015,

Ag part of the Erwinonmental sustainahilicy
programme, Chictagang site raduced 4.53%
watar consumption in 2015 wot. presvaus
eat Chittagong Site recaived Zara to Landfil

L} certificata from Group Enviranment
Cantre of Excellence [CoE) in recognition of it
having officially abtained “Zara Wasta to
Landfill status.

15, Coda of Conduct

BG5K ia committed to operata with integrity
Tha Board of Diractors of the Company has
adopted & Cada of Conduct for the directors,
All employess of the Company have also
adopted The GSK Code of Conduct which
applies to all B5¥ Staff and wes circulated
among the employess. All emplayess am
required te shide by tha athical code of
conduct in relation ta business and
regulations.

The Seles and Marketing emplayees am
furthar subject to an Emerging Markats &
Asia Pacific Promation and Marketing Code
which hes bacome firmby established as the
comerstone of Parformanca with Intagrity
value, GE¥ demands that itz ssles and
marketing emplayess not andy follow the
lattar of tha Code, but enthusiastically
embezca its spirit with & fern palicy of 2em
tolerance to desiations.

Tha Compary has put in place a Whistle
Edowar Policy namad Spaak Up', pursuant to
which employees ae  empowerd to
pompthy  raise concems of  possible
miszonduct, potentisl conflicts or known
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breaches with GEK Code of Conduct and Comparry
policies and procedures. A supplementary policy of
“Non-retaliation” ensures that employees can raiss
such cancerns without nskng any kind of retaliaten.

In 205, key managars of the Compary went through
a rigarous warkshop of embedding the GEK walues
named “Living our Vakues™, whereby the 63K Values of
Integrity, Respect for People, PatientyConsumer
Focus and Transparency were assessad by top
managament and then revisited by all managers
through examples and activiies.

16, Auditors

The present awditors, Messers ACNABIN Chartered
Accountants, reoee and  being  eligible  offer
themsehes  for  re-appointment.  The  Boand
recommends  Messers  ACNABIN - Chartered
Arcourtants a3 the auditar of the Company far the
year 2006 far approval at the Annual General Mesting.

17, Carposate Governance Compliance Repart

A5 part of its corporate pobhcy, GSK Bangladesh has
always strived to maintain high standards of
compliance in corporate governance. The Company's
Corporate  Governance Charter, outhned n the
Corporate Governance Chapter, governs the way the
Company will be opesated and managed and the
pocess in place to ensur hegh standards of
crangparency, accountabilicy and integnry.

W are pleased to conform that the Company has
complied with 3ll necessary guidelines in accordancs
with  the requiement of SEC  Moification
Mo SEC/CMRRCD /2006158 /134 Admin /4 dated
07 Apgust, 2N2. The Corparate  Govermancs
Comphanca Repoet far 2015 i attached in Annaxure-1,
glong with the Cemificate of Compliance required
uncler the saed Guidelings.

18, Acknowledgement

The Board af Directars would like to express their
deepest appreciation to all employees of the
Company, who gxemphified the GEX spint of putting
the patient and consumer first. Al of them warked
veelessly  within  the constraints  to provide
appropriate  information  and  ensure  procduct
availabibty for patients, consumers and hesfthcare
professionals who serve them.

A5 a ragult of this esbencs, your Comparny was ablke
o record the resilient parformance of 2004, despice
external challenges. Inwestment in key launches
continued this year to secure future sustainable
returns to the business.

Wie zre deeply gravaful for the trust and confidence in
your Campany from the healthcare pmfessionals,

patients, consumens and trade partners whi continue to insping us.
We are honaur baund to continue 2o uphald this trust that wa hold sa
dear o our heart.

The joumey of G3K in Bangladesh is linked to the support of all
stakeholders including The Bangladesh Securiies & Ewchange
Commesmon, The Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, The Central
Deposizory Bangladesh Limized, Financial Institutions, Insurance
Companies, Utility Providers, various Govemmeant authorities and
other individuals and agencies. The Board would like to express ite
heartfelt chanks to &l of them.

(On behalf af the Board
Z A ﬂ
Erum Shakir Rahim
Sth March, 2016 Managing Diractor
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MABS & ) Partners | H].\t. [ A

Chartered Accnumants FRTEEN A

Certificate on compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
Guidelines of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission to the
Shareholders of GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

Wiz have examined the Stavement of Compliance of Coporate Gowernance of GlaxeSmithKline Bangladesh Limited for the
year ended 3 Oecembes, 2016, a5 st by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) by the notification #
SEC/CMARCD A 2006-168/ 134  hdmen 56 dated T Awgust, 2012 and subsequently amended thraugh thelr natificasion #
SEC/CMBRCD F2006-168 7147 Adain /60 daved 21 Jubg 2003 essued under section 200 af the Secunites sad Exchange
Ordinance, 1968,

The comgliance of conditions of Carporate Gavesnance Guidelines is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to the pocedunes and mplementatian thereof, adopted by the Company for ensunng the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Govemance. 1T is neither an asdit nor an expaesson of opinion on the financial statements of the
Campany,

I gur apinien and ta the best of aur infarmation and sceooding 1o the explanations gven to us, we certify that the Company
has comphed with the conditons of Corporate Gevemance a8 stipulaved in the above mertioned Notification,

W further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as ta the future viability of the Comparry nar the eficiency or
effectiveness with which the management hag canducted the affairg af the Comparny

T e

MABS & ) Partners

Chartered Accountants
Dhaka, 4 February, 2016
Cimgerane OMei !mni.-..ﬂunua Miikigg B i

a3 g W 1, Mitaia PakanLing [ers & b Flasi]
ad 17 Dbz 1000, 8

An mdependent member fren of Meoa Internabinnal, UK
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GLAXOSMITHELINE EANGLADESH LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE
COVERNANCE GUIDELINES .

or the year ende etemDber _—

Seatus of compliznce with the conditions of Carporate Governance Guidselines as set by the Bangladesh Sacunties & Exchange
Commission [BSEC) by the Notification # SEC,/CMRECD2006-158 /134 / Admin /4% dated 07 August, 2012 and subsaquenthy
amanded through their notification # SEC/CMRRCD, 2006-158,11%7 / Admin /48 dated 21 Jube 2013 issuad under section 2CC of
tha Sacuritias and Exchange Ordinanca, 1969:

[Report under Condition Wo. 7.00]
nmip
0
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
L1 Baand's Sn i
L2 Minmum number of Independent Dectors W
L2[ilfa) Shin hokding by Indegend s Dimct s o
1.2k kelanorstip weh Company's Sponsor W
L2z Ealariorethip mich thi Cormpeny o
0. 2w Mezrmber et/ fficer of Stock Fechenpe W
£ 2[i)fa) Shirg halde /Nina o oe QMicer of ey mambes of Stock Eeghenga "
1 2[w)E) Parina af Stabwory dudri Fium b
L 2[W)E) Directoralip is okher Listed Compsnmag L
2[R Defaulter in payment of bank,/MEF] loan '
21 Careistapn Far criminal offance W
1.2[] Fpponment of Indezerdent Diecrors] s
1, 2] Varany of the paet of [ndapands i Drectos L
L2 Code of Cancuct & Banual Compliance L
L2w] Tarmii of lsdepasdent Desctaoe il
L3 Qualificacion of Irdependent Directars (10]
.11 ¥pirsdedpa & mita ety of ldependent Dim ctoes L
1A Qualificacion and esperience of Independent Bimecoors L
1.30m] Babauation of qualficatios of Independant Dinctors Ll PR,
Li Chairman af che Enond & Chief Exeourie (Hfoer "
15 Diveschors’ Rispant ko Sharshaoldern:
LA[i] Indestry Dutlngk: & presibk futem dew pment «
LAl Sagment o1 produch wiss performance "
L&[ki] Fisk anil concains Ll
1.5[re) Dissussian on COGS, 6P & Nex Profit b
L5[w] Ewra ordinany gein o loss Mo siich incidence amse
1.6]w] Eawis for mbybed party transaction b
1.5[wil] Urilizaion of proceads from 1R [T}
1. 5w} Explanation of determranion af Arancal esult 1
L5]i¢] Explanscion of vanance bacwsen guartar & annial Finenciel STRCament "
1.6[x) Bemuremiion of Diectors «
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ANNEXURE-] EEf—-
[Report under Condition No. 7.00]
Canditian Bppropriate colume]
= Complisd _MOF
Ak Complied
1.58]ad] Faitness of Mnancal ststement b
1.6[wi] Maintenance of proper books of acrownks "
1.5(wiil] Bcnprion of apprpriata accoussng prlicks and asDmanes L
1.5][aiv]) Comp kanga with |45,/ BAS /IFRS (EFRS ¥
1.6[xv] Soundress of lnbemal Caniral System -I"
L&) Bty to Continge as A going Concen L
1.5l Sipnifcant Deviecion in Operating Rasibe comperad to ket e +
1.5]im) Wy Dperating and Firancil Data of praceding fve pean L
1.5 win] Amason for not declaning Dwidend [T
15[ Baand Maeting attandanca ¥
[REEE]] himahakling by Paient )/ sibasdisng/desscated cospenms W
1.6 mallb) Sharetaiding by Directors, CEO,CFD, G5, HL& E
1.6[allc] Eharetalding by Exacutres w
1.5 s}l d) Sherahaklers holling 18 o mare o
1.8]wai]a] sesume of Drectors L'
1.6]wai] k] Expertisa of Directoes w
L&|saile) Miztarship inocher compen e o
L CHIEF FIMAMCIAL DFFICER [CFO], HEAD OF INTERMAL AUDIT[HIA}
LND COMPANY SECRETARY (CE)
o The same persan holds
1 Bppoinment heh the postions of (F)
and C5.
2 Raguiserment ba atband the hoard meetings o
L IDTE COMMITTEE
i Kaiil Commitias & 6 sub-commies o
il Function of Audd Cosmitbee o
Hin) Smparting to the Board of Dirctars o
a1 Corgnnuion af cha fudit Commktes
R[] Carmpaiion af Audr Commirmag o
T Eppontment of Membare o
Al {ualifcatan of Wembers “
B Fibng of Yacanay ¥
3] Sacretary of the Committes "
1wl Quomnm of meeting i
£ Chedman of tha Audi Commictan
=2 Salection ¥
2200] Requisment of presenoe in the &GN W
=d &nle of Audit Committes
EE] Dweragn tha inenciel rapaming process o
i) Manitor Accounting Policies and Principhs o
Adlm] Monicor Imtemal Control Risk mana gamarne: pocess o
3K (hersen hining & parfrmanca of aaremal sudinors W
B3] erwiam Che Aanil Finsncisl Starements '
L] Rrviem the quarterly and half yealy fnancal statements "
i) o the adequary af Indrrnal Audit Functan )
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ANNEXURE-] K=o

Status of complianca with the conditions impozed by the Commissions  Motification  NoJSEC/CMRRCOS
2006 -158 /134 / &idmin /44 dated 07 August, 2012 and subsequantly amanded on July 21. 2015 issued under sactian 20T of the
Securities and Exchanga Drdinance. 1860:

[Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Compliance Status
[Puts" in the

Condition appropriate column) Remarks
i Mot (Ifany)
Complied
Complied
s (1] Review of sipnificant related party ranssctions W
L] Arview of tha Managemant Lesoars 'S
3= Rpphcatian of fund raim tha g IPO/PS0/R
1h Aepertng af the fudt Comm e
Ikl Aeporting 1o thi Enar of Diectons
4.0 Rpportngan sctilips s
e MiNal sepert on candhces of imeen Ma such incidence mase
EER ) 1) Merprial darbecT i langimeal Conml Sysnin Wiy gapch NCEIENGE anEn
T ] Sumpected infringement: of |zes Mo much noidence asnse
T Mivy ather marter Mo such ncidencs mase
IsE Aeparting to the Muthoities g mach il i acicin o e
15 Apportng to the Shambalders & Genanal lvestors +
L ENTERMAL/STATUTORY AUDITIAS
A0 Bpprazal oo Vahizbon Sevices L
i) Financial Infarmarion System, "
Hii] Bonh-Miompis o Db fn-vatazy W
] Broker desber senaioes "3
A Aotuaril sanicas +
A[a] Iritermal dudd Sarvicas L
sl Ay oiher senices L
Al Frasaraains af ghaw by Parmaes or Ereployod of Sud Fiem +
Ais] Bt foarti bratian serdce on comphance of Cogporate Bovemance L
5 SUBEI0lRAY COMFRNY
&l Cowry e i on of tha Boond of Diecte PR
sl Independent Diaciar [
=il Subm i on ot mireras toTh holSng comp e '
=] Aeview of affains by she halding carpany L
[ ADviEe O MsanCial STenomont by th Sedic Commiteae of hakdng company
E DUIES OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO] AND CHIEF FIRARCIAL OFFICER [CFO]
&)al Fnanoal Statements da not oontam any uine o misiead ng statement: W
EliNes Finarcied Stanemants prasent 2 Cius & Falr s of tha Comganys o eis and r
anin compliancy mth Romuntisg Sendants mnd applcabil bwe:
£ Cemificacion that there are no fraudulent. (begal or wolacion of the o
O a3 codie OF Condiis
1 SEFORTING AMD DOMPLIGNCE DF CORPORME GIVESNARCE
M Cemifcation an complanca of Coporats Gavemance w
il Dretay etaterrent on core plsnca of tha shre conditions in tha isstor Bepost o
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REPORT OF
KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RECORDS Erfess-
I
Annexure-ii
Taka in 000
Azgers Employed
Propesty, Plant and Equipment: B0, 78 SHEZ1E 536861 507,830 480,652
Intangile Azsats 3437 4.37% 5467 - -
Met Mon-cument Assst 10,470 a1mg 0 4G - -
Met Current Agsat 2,037,851 1BTEA12 1,381,003 1,132,518 1,086, Fi0E
Total Assets Employed 2 16 1,877,377 1,630,348 1,567,268
Financed by
Shaee capital 120465 120 466 120,466 120, L65 10,465
Reserves and Surplus: 248333 106,092 1.730.647 1,365,085 1,301,525
Shareholders’ Equity 2 2,3 51,112 560 16
Retirement benefit Obligations 40822 77,241 31,568 83,674 B2
(bkgation under finance lease EA13 14,565 12,757 22403 5,038
Defered Tax Liskditias [387) 46,512 32,038 38,512 35,001
T4g 138118 126,265 145,720 144 078
Total Capital Employed 2,652,652 2455215 1,977,377 1,630,349 1,567,268
Turnover and profit
Sales-nat of VAT and trade discount E.60E.RIE 1107 255 B.TT4A72 5,553,812 511
Profit /[Logs] fram aparation 1,0400812 1,062,530 Bl 0 375,670 416,524
Prisfit. befora Int, Dap & Tax 921,34 2,48 505,408 287230 349,125
Profit f[Loss] for the year 3,078 BE6.TTR B46.248 253967 a2, 0ah
Ratios & Key Information
Grass profit ratio - % 3033 ET Y. 32ET 2581 2048
Eaming per e [EPS]-Taka 8.5 (R K] 4506 2025 2362
Price,/Eaming [P /E] ratin-times 26.09 22.00 21.08 2815 2837
Frice Equity Ratio-Times 174.58 151.23 835,57 57.00 B6.45
Dividend per shan [BP5])-Taka 56,00 &2.00 30.00 15.00 15.00
Dividend payout-percentage Tz g1.20 B 16 407 4. 06
Yial /Effective divdend rate- ratio 143 1.43 200 am 1493
Net azzets valug per share-Taka 216.18 182.30 153.67 12332 1Eq7
Net aperating cash fiow par share Ba42 .1 g2.22 4380 43.07
Retuen an sharghalders. equity-% 382 3585 h 16.52 1983
Retum on Capital employed - % n2z 4328 0.6& 2304 2660
Dbt equity ratio-tmes 8341 1L1F .16 1.06 0.3
Current ratio-times 173 1713 1.69 1.78 205
Market price par share at 31 December - Taka 1,799.80 1,51230 955,70 570.00 B64.50
Market Capitzlisation at 31 Decembsr [Taka Millian) 1 E&l 18218 11,512 B, 256 8,008
Average number of employees aiE a2 T 20 52
M G3K




SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION =7~

Annexure-iii
Parent Compary:
Setfirst Limitad, UK 1 9,875,144
Executives:
Mir. A.K.M. Firoz Alam, Dirgczar, HR 1 =]
Shareholdars holding 10% ar more interest:
Setfirat Limitad, UK 1 9,675,144
Investment Corparatian of Bangladesh & IC3 Unit and Mutual Funds 1 1,480,696

W Setfirst Limived, UK

M [nvestment Corparation of Bangladesh [ICB]
Il Gzneral public

M Sadharan Bima Corparatian

B Other Lacal Financial Inssitutions
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ANALYSIS OF
SALES REVENUE (NTO) &= -

1d Benefits

(rher Fxpenses

Income Tax

Profet after Tax

Tatal 100.00 100.00
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS E=Smmmm~--

Earning Per Share (EPS) Taka

T andd

A

Return on Shareholders” Equity-%

Met Assets Per Share- taka

Shareholders’ Funds- taka in "000

A A

2012
Nat Assat Par Shatw’ Market Prica Per Share-%

A A

2012 013 2014
Market Price Per Share [Taka] at 31st December

'f_:lfjj.l'ﬂ -

1500.0d
1125.60
1000.00

000

0.0 - T

1799.80

.
Lo
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT mrr~-

The valug addad starement provides a detailed account of total value additian and the distribution of the value created by

e sompeny Taka in 000
Valug fibded - _
Turnovar T.T06 AT

Legs Boughe in Materials & Servioes 1,661,660

Orher income
Financial Income:

bpplied

Bavammest Brunue & Taoes

Errploysaes: Remuneration & Banefils

Dvidends

Daprecation & Retansd Fmbe

| Désribation of vabue-%

m Government
Faverue & Tases

mEmployees Pemereration & Benefits
= Dividends
m Deprecation & Retanad Profc

G5¥ Bangladesh contributes positively to socio-economic development by empowering employess thiough the payment of
salarias and allowancas; by paying attractiva and consistent dividend to the shareholders; by assistng the regulatory
authoritias thraugh paying taxes & duties.

Markat share information of major categernies af products - £

e aw
Health food drink S -]
Bucnse Powder 66 "
Vaozinges: 4T 45
Demmatelogicals 171 8
Economic Value Added (EVA)

EVA pravides a maasuremant of a company's ecanomes succass ovar a period of time, 1t shows how well 3 company has sdded
value for its investors and it can ba compared against company’s pears far an analysis of how wall the company is operating

inits industry.

Calculation of EVA Taka in 00

Ket Dperating Profit After Tan [NPAT) 1,040,612 1,062 530
Toeal Capital Employed 2 B52 552 2,455,215
Cost of capital in % 5% 15%
LCogt of capital [COC) [ililN: kL] 264,455
EVA = KPAT-COL a7k, 1T E2E, 046

The positive number af EVA revesls that the Company has mare than covered its cost of capital.
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PROFILE OF
THE COMPANY [Fmm--

GlaxoSmithKling (GSK] iz a science-led global healthears
Compary that resgarches and develops a broad range of
mravative medicines, vaccines and consumer healthcane
products. Qur products are used by millisns of people ancund
the wirkd, hefping them to do moee. feel better and live langer:
With Headguarters in LK, GSK has a wide geapraghical reach
which mclude 118 countries, manufactusing metwork in 87
sites and moee than 100,000 peophe working globally, We have
thee primary argas of business in pharmaceuticals, vaccings
and consumer healthcare, As a esearch based company we
bebeve in creatng innovative new products and making these
accesshle ta ag mary people wha need them,

A g part of the centnies od company, GSK Bangladish, a
subsidiany af GS¥ plc started it operation in Bangladesh, the
then East Pakizzan n 1968, G5¥ Bangladesh's actiwties
mcdude secondary manufacture of phamaceutical products
and markgting of vaccines, pharmacautical healthcarg
products, rutiton and oral healthcane products. O
actraties in all three business aeas ane strictly guded by
TGS values” which inchude shawing mepect for people, being
pathent feustomer focuged and commitment L tianspanenty
and demonstration of Righest integrity 0 our condyct,
Embedded with these values and backed by leading edge
techrology, around 1000 pessonnel am warking all over the
country with the global mession o improve the quality of
human lifie by ensunng quality healtheare products.

In the more than six decades since s inception. the
Compary  has  evolved  fiom  being  an  impoimer o
manufacturer by establishing its own manufacturing unit in
Chircagang in 1867, Following the mengers and acguisinan it
alse underwent identity evolutan Frem Glaxe o Glaxg
Wellcame Bangladesh Limeted to fmally GlaxoSmithKling
Bangladesh Limiced in 2002,

(5K Banglagesh's Vacoine unit leads the mareer of the
county mot only in e of volume bur also in tems of
providing a whole range of disease prevention for both
infanes and adults. Wich che acguisician of Novartls Vaceines
globally , owr Vacene portfoba is ser to further expand irg
range in futune, I March, 2016 GSK preumacoosal vaccing
wag mrroduced 0 the Bangladesh Govemment’s Expanded
Programme for Immuwaigation [EF).

Til voday, GSK Bangladesh  comtipue to rank among the
keaders in the mspiratary and anti-infectives therapeutic
areas and we proudly held on to our leadesship pesition in
demvatology. The acquisiton of Stefel Laboratones, the
warkds largest ndependent dermatology company  have
further strpmghened our position in the demma world and
have further created our Featprnt in to the aesthetic skin
health care arena.

The: Corssumer Healchcane unit leads the Health Food Onnk
(HED] category in Bangladesh and s now sez onits joumey to
create astong footprint in the Oral Health Care and Vitaming
& Mingral Supplement [VMS) category . In each of these
cavegories GSK has  flagship brands Mg Harlicks™,
Sensodyne™, Glawose™ ete.

(5K has made a glabal commitment to re-irvest 20% af the
profits we make in develoging countries to addiess issues
around providing healtheane services 1o the undesserded
communities. In line with the above, in Bangladash, wi have
Deen vesting more than 1 millicn GEP per year since 2010 in
a nummber of projests in partnerships with CARE, sddib and
Friendship.

GEK is committed to develop new and effective healtheans
solutions, The values on which the Group was faunded have
always inspeed growth and will continee o do 20 in times to
come,

G5K
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PRODUCT INDEX F°
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PRODUCT DETAILS: CONSUMER HEALTHCARE

.

Horlicks

Junior Horlicks

Hoelicks i= leading the Health Food drink category being a
trusted partner of tamily for ages. Horlicks provides balanced
rutrition including 23 vital nutrients [macranutrients, vitamins
and mineraks] that are impartant for intemal strength and
nowrishment. It hes nutriabsorh science and iz clinically proven
vamake kids Taller,Str:lrger and Sharper . Mareaver, it improves
5 gigns of growth. It's a crafted combination of mile, malted
barkey and wheat, available in Original and Chocalate Flavours.

Women’s Horlicks

Jurdar Horlicks is a specializad Health Food Drink far younger
kide of §+. Junior Horicks cantaine 20 vitel micronutrients
known to be essential far catme physical growth and
development. And © hes DHA, which, with other
micronutnents, are knoen to contribute  to mormal brain
development and function of the oller pre-schoaler.

Mother’s Horlicks

‘Wamen's Hoslicks is a tailar-made nutrition supalement for
the women of taday. It contzing a unique combinatian af
HemaCal™ nutrients impartant far healthy blood and bones.

Horlicks Lite

Horicks Lite provides a unigue combination of essential
micronutrients important for strength end staminz. |t also
cantains anti-oxidants essential to reduce modstive stress
and halp manage fatigue. Horicks Lite is alzo low fat and has
zero chalesteral.

Muther's Horlicks iz a supensar nutritional supplement for pregnant
and breastfeeding maothers. Specally cesigned with a wnique
comhination of 2B essential nutrients known to help fil gaps in
chetary intakes, improve brth weight of infant and mprave the
quality znd quantity of breast milk. It alza heg chaline which i
impartant for the brain development of the fostus.
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Glaxose D

Glucose in Glaxose D |Glucose Powdar, Dextrose Manohydrate 100%) provides
corgumsr with instant energy and helps them to recharge instantly. As
saurce of instant energy, Glaxnse can be consumad during fafter sparts,
while recovening, dunng excessive heat, in iftar or evan in Bansoon and
winter sgasons — whengver thera iz need for instant energy. Alsa availabla in
Orange Flavaur.

* Wamen's Horlicks in additicn to daily digt can help bridge micronutrient gaps.
* A par Nutrtive value of Bangledeshi Fonds, 1glass= 200ml

Boost

Bonst - one of the majer Health Food Dnnk from G5K, is alse the only
Health Food Orink. i Bangladesh, to be scientificaly proven to increase
stamina by 3 times more®. It is ennched with ENVITA NUTRIENTS - 2 unsque
scientific combination of essential vicaming and minerals that significanthy
improve the levels of key nutrents, mpartant for energy metabalism.
That's why, ower the years, Boost has been the chaice of kids wha want to
perfarm hetter in sparts and ather competitions.

Sensodyne

Sensodyne is the World's Number 1 Sensitivity toothpaste that
gives dinically proven relief and daily protection for
sensitivity

Gix 3
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PRODUCT INFORMATION &7

Az amore than a century ald k&D pharmaceutical and healtheare company, GSK's product partfolio spreaids across key thesapy
areas benefiting milllons of lives acrass the gobe. In Bangladesh, GSK has sorong presence in some key therapeutic areas. With
SITONE Trust & suppart from doctors and consumers, these important product groups are also increasing in sales. & beief is
glwen here.

34 GIK

Vaccines

Do more, Fesd beer, Live r-motto ef GSK. With this commitment, today,
cUr WACENes contive to tackle same of the wold's most cutragecus dseases
inchoding Prsumococcal dissages, Diphtheris Tetanus, Acelular petussis
Prligsweltis, Meningitis, Hegpstitis A, Hepatitis B, Rotwdrus, Influseea snd
Cervical Cancer. (5K duomers preventive medicnes and ensures its scpess door
o oo, A% & reglt, we aff grawide range of vaczings for thelife span of a humen
bsing-fram infants to aduls. GSK Bangladesh is a pioreer in raiging swarersss
and supphing vatzines for vasing pravesitable dissases inthe country. We offed
the most comprehensive vacenation solutions heginsing from Hepatits A &
Hepenitis B, Cervical Cancer, Chickenpos, Messles, Mumgs, Rubella, Meningitis
Prizumonis and others. Rotarie™ the Rotsvines vaccing is3 breakthrough to sene
milion babies from rotavical disrrhoea. Synflonx™ additios in the vaccine
portfaio is a revolution for prevention of pneumonia which is the number ane
killer i children. Cervar™ is the only cancer preventable vaczing in the workd
and 8 yesrg and onwands femsles could be bereficed from this vaccing
Infanrix® Hexa is another valuatle vaceing for the infants. Our sequisition of
Novartis vacenes (ewcluding influsnza vaceings) in the early 2018 has eniiched
cur vaccines potfolia

Antibiotics

For many yeers. Antiotics from G5K has hald 8 very strong market shara, We
poseess some reeanch brands like Ceporen™, Binnat ™. |ts hertage and continual
clinical changes have halped in overcoming the challenges theown by the
emargance of rew disaesas and the ingenuity of the micr organisme in awalving
rew mechansm. Addition of Caxima™ has baan a milestong in G5K's antibiotic
are3 and & now ssning a grest number of patents. From the age old Ceporas™
1o the relativaly rew Jinnst™ atc., brands of B5K, antiiotics ane prescribed by
the doctors to save livas avery day.




Eslieve in your vales for a herter tomormw

Respiratory Portfolio

hethma and Cheonic Obstructise Pulmanary Dissaes [COPD] e the main two
disesaps where G5K hes strong footing. Mumbers of ssthme petiants are
graduslly intressing in our courary but thera s 2 huge unmet need of treatment
auelable in our country. 55K being the poneer in asthma and COP tharapy holde
3 strong commitment to do mare, feel batter and ke longar. Saretide™ delvers
aathma control and shows remarkable berefit in patient complisnce. The
rewolutiorany TORCH study on Sevetide™ beings hopa to the miliors of CORD
suffarers of the country. The leunch of Vantoin™ Ewohaler is snother
Eepskthroigh tointroduca non CFC treatment in o country. I dlegic rhinitie
trestmant, G5H hes a long heritege. Beconass™ and Flimonaes™ nesal sprey are
the gold standard theragy fior rhinitia. Avemys, the breskthrough innovation, is
canedared @ rewolution in allergic rhintie treatment and mealy makes =
difference. Fintan iz etill conedersd the prefermed choce i antiisteminic
markat.

Dermatologicals

Witk the intaduction of Stiefs, 2 G5K Camgiarsy, our d:u—n!ulngial products
now range frem ErBECT F!iuu. aesthatic and consumer healthcans deamat ubgﬂll
products. Now, with the addition of Stiefel's obust product pordelio, skin
heahth expertise, we ae a st TONGET, Mg compet time, and a0 undeniable d'i'n'iug
Faice in d:lrr:lulugy. Glatal brands liks sarmex™, Er:-'miy" and Aene Aid Bar™
Far acne treatment and Lacticare™ and Dilatum™ foe d'j- skn treatments, ane
now part of B3 Bangladesh portf ke, Stiefels recent introduction of fow new
procucts in theee core areas af Skin cae has further enhanced the portfolo. The
few products are Aene Aid Ligud Cleanssr for acne and pimple prone sein,
F||jl='uH'=I Ceeam & Lotion for dry and sensitive skin and SpectiaB&N 60 Sun
Block Cream For al types of skin

Besides these therapsutic aress me continue to provide modem |nan¢m:ulur
al types af BLIEINA, pEOTRASE, wacteral and rIIIIHH“IIrB\IiuIIS a5 well a5 scahiss
with our international 2rd local brands. Demovate™, Betnover™, Qutiate™
Dermavate™, Betrowate™, Fluwn™, Grisovin™ ars treated as the mliable solutions
if derina caie.

G5K
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DETAILS OF
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES #*

I
Vaccines Activities

Syntlorix inclusean im EPI

The introduction of Syrflaris in Bangladesh EP| program is &
areat milestane for G5K Bangladesh. The lamching event was
held 2t Dhaka Shistu (children] hospital on Saturday 215t
March, 2015, Now, every newbom baby in Bangladesh will be
prevnted fram preumococcal diseases with a GSK vacsine,
From GSK, O And Daita, Viee President, Clinical & Medical
Affairs (EM] from G5K Vaccines, Belgium and GM of Bangla-
desh M. Azizul Hug along with othes G5 staff wene present in
the programme. A nuimber of destinguished danitanies
ricluding Honourable Heafth Mirkster of People's Republic of
Bangladesh, State Minister of Health, Secratary Bal, Diectoo
Genesal Health, Mational Professor MR Bhan and mary others

weng prasent in the programme.

(vIw]

Vacome mitiation worksheg [VIW) was an outstanding
experence for BSK Bangladesh which was orgamsed on
March 30th - Apnl 2nd 2015 by Vaccine Academy team for
budding knowledge, skill & cagabilities to support vaccines
buginess growth, Partcipants from Cambodia and Myanmar
atvended this meeting.

Frogramme an Yaccinolagy

GEK Bangladesh Ltd., organisad an immense programme
“Programme on Vaceiralogy®, with BRA on fich May, 2015, GEK
intermal speakers from abroad and Incal speakers prowided
update information an different topics to the doctors. Or
Shaiesh Mehta-Medical Lead, Supranationals and GAYI, G5K
Vaccines, Belgium; Or. Banjay Gandhi-Area Medical Leader,
South Asia; Or. Debashish Saha-Br Manages Epidemialogy,
G3K Vaccines, Belgium; Dr Sanjoy Datta-Yice Presicant,
Vaccines Walue and Health Sciences, GEX Vaccines, Asia
Pacific & Morth Azia & e Kinga Miegzaras-3r. Manager-HE,
Emerging Markets, GEX Yaccines, Belgum from abraad and Or.
K. Zaman and Dr. Ruhul Aman fram Bangladesh ware present as
speakers in tha event. Thiough this event, Healthcare prafes-
sionatz of Bangladesh got & scope to updata their knowedge
and understanding kvel an different vaccing preventable
diseases.

Cervical Cancer: fin Update

Ta facilitate and wpdate scientific informatian of Bynsaccio-
gists, 2 programmezs named as “Cervical Cancar ; An Update”
was organizad in Rangpur and Binajpur oo 26th & 27th Juby,
2015, The spesker, Dr Sanjay Bandhi shared scientific
informatian to HCPs regarding Cervical Cancar.




Prevention of Cervical cancer and Rotaviral Diarrhoes

On Szh and 10th M=y, 2015 GEK organisad twa events an
vaccines separately in Dhaka DGSE and with DGSE & BRA
Chittagong. De Shailesh, Do Sanjoy Gandhi, Dr. Sanjoy darta,
e Kinza and Ot Debasish ware present as spaskears in both
tha events.

Scientific meeting on “Acne Managemant™ 2015

Three meetings with different groups of HCPs [Dermatalo-
gists] ware hald. First meating was in Chittagong, 26th May.
Total numbar of HCPs was 43. Secand meeting was in Dhaka,
2Tth May and the total number of HCPs were 50. Third
meeting was held on 2%th May in Dhaka and tha number of
HCPs was 48. All tha thrae meetings ware successful and &l
participants apprecizted the initiative.

Bemadette B. Arcilla, MO, FPDS, FAAD [Assistant Protessor
Section of Dermatclogy University of the East Raman
Magzaysay, Memarial Medical Center Medical Directar, GSK
Philbppiness] wes the internal G5K speaker

The focus area for the meating was “Acne Treatment: Grvan
acne patients a batter life”. Focus product was “OLAC™.

Target group of HCPs were Demmatologists [Chittagong
Wadical, Skin VD, ESMMLU, BIRDEM, Mational Skin centar, DMC,
HFRCMH, SEMCH, LABAID, Sarwardi].

Live Global Wehinar on Adult Asthma & COPD Managemant
‘Wa are delighted to nform that on Novamber 02, 2005,
Respiratory  portfolio of GSK Bangladesh successfully
arrangad a live and intaractova Webinar an Adu't Asthma and
COPD Management, comgrising a mixture of educational
lectures, case studies, and quastion & answer s2ssions. The
timng af this session was from 0Z:00PR-03:30PH [Local
Bangladash Time).

Memarias from the Event

fome Wonderfu

Or. Paul Jones, Professar of Raspirstory Medicine at St
Gearge's, University af Landon in Londan, UK and honoeany
conzultant physician, St. Gaorges University Hospitalz NHS
Faundatiaon Tryst, discussed the goals of COPD management
with a specific focus on the ke of ICE/LABA in treating
COPD.

Thig wag folowad by 8 presentation by Professar Andrew
Greening, who ig trained at Edinbwgh University Medical
Schoal.
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Ha praseatad an the managament of adult asthaa, meluding
a e of data on the use of IG5 /LABA in achigving asthma
contoal. Or. Raj Shaima, Seientife Dirsctor in the Raspratory
Franchise at G5K, based at Stockley Park near Landon in the
UK, concluded the session with an ovarview of inhales
chaices available in the treatment of asthma and COPD.

A webinar session was broadcasted this webinar session in

nirg different venuas across the country and almast 500
HCPs attanded this webina session at 2 tima.

Cx Marketing Activities 2015

licks Escomes The 3rd Eest Erand In Bangladesh

Harlicks has become the 3rd Mozt Loved Brand of Bangladesh
inn 2015 and the Mo, | Brand in the Health Food DOrink- RTD
Category. Bangladesh Brand Forum [BEF) in collaboration
with Milward Brown conducted the Study 1o daterming the
rankings of the Best Brands in Bangladesh. The ranking is
based on an extensive nationwida sureey of aound 4000
consumers in meatra, urban and rural aeas. The results s
measured on parameters of being Meaningful, on Brand

Salience, and being Different. This is 3 prastigious acheave-
ment for G5K Bangladesh. The brand has prograssively
alevatad evary year in its ranking, eomparad to athar FMCG
brands.

Horlicks alsa reachad out to 2 lac Chiden par Bangladesh,
with Mutritional Awareness thiough “Hoedicks  Nutrition
Canival. Basides gattmg to taste dalicious Hodicks, the
children, receivied knowledge on basic food and nutrition.
Since the awaneness level among the mass population on
Faod and Nutition is kow, Hodicks aimed at enhancing the
knowladge on these amang childran, fram an early age, so
that they can tzka informead decizions en foad habits for a
healthy living.

‘With thiz aim, and keeping the malnourishment rata of
Bangladash in consideration, a rural campaign was alsa nn
theoughout the country, educating 1.5 lac children on food
ared nutrition. Furthermora, to dalight the consumens with a
frash. new ook, after 4 years, Horlicks came with new
Packagng ard design n Aprl, 2006, A combination of thase
actwwities will halp further strangthen Brand Loyalty among
the consuimens
Women's Hor
T erhance awaseness among women regaeding bana health
and establishing it's association with Women's Harlicks,
‘Waomen's Horlicks lzunched "Bone Health Exparianca Zone™- a
campaign that created a positive Word of Mouth for the
brand through bath Digival Media and On ground Activation.
‘Warmen's Harbicks initiated the idea of engaging consumens
theough ome on one communication egarding bone health
and educating women on this,
I

cks Bone Health E Kperience fone
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Althaugh 1in 3 women in Bangladesh suffer fram Law bone
density, the concept of taking care of bone health s still at a
vary nascent stage and most women remain unaware of it
uritil symiptams start to show, by which tme. itis alweady oo
late. The campaign meceived accolades from women far this
nowal initiztive and has contributed in raising awareness on
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the issug. There has been massive Engagement in the Digital
Space as well, with an increase in the user hase in Social
Media by @ whapping 270

Junior Horlicks Brain Development Campaign

In continuation of the new science basad communicatan of
Physical and Mental Development. 8 new campsaign with the
core messaga of “Juriar Harlicks as part of daily diet helps in
optimal physical and mental growth” was lzunched. The new
conceps was triggered through both electromc and pring
media and received a very good respanse among consumers
which translated inta higher conssderation scores. Moreaver,
to enhance loyalty, a new Pack design wes launched, which
was liked by mathers and kids sk,

Glaxose D new Campaign Instant Energy

Glaxpse-0 campaign for year 2015 was created kaeping in
mind peaple who involve in physical labour. The strategy was
to show how Glaxose-0 gives instant energy and helps them
to cantinue working awtdacr. The campaign aired from March
2015, The impact an TG after the campaign ran was good and
and the 10sac twe format was alsa clutter-breaking in media.

New Mother's Horlicks - More Science, Better Taste, More
Attractve

[ne af the iconic brands of G5K CH BD- Mothers Hodicks has
been relaunched in August 2014 with 2 taster formulation in
French Manilla flaveur and & new attractive pack. depicting
the hi- science berafits. Since the relaunch of the brand it
has been well sppreciated by Dactors, Consumers and
Retailers and this resulvad in & phanamenal grawth in 20015,
breaking all itz prewsus records. Enhanced Consumers’ trust
in the Brand, strengthened efforts thraugh Expert: Markezing
and Batrer Visibility and distribution, has been contributars
in the success. With this momentum in placa, Mother's
Horlicks is expected ta reach even greater heights in 2016.

Sensodyne: the Power Brand

Sansadyna, the only Powar beend in tha parttalio, has
perfoemed wellin 2015. It has reachad s market share of 3€in
the toathpaste market and is well shead of its nearest
competito: The inputs that have gone beband such rasuits
has been the Campaign in local varnacular and imgroved
digtribution and wisibility in the market. The franchiza is
offered as a complete solution with the toothbrush akang
with the toothpasta. In the plan panad 20ME, Sensodyna is
poised to dauble its market share snd reach Expert support
of dantists.

GMS Chittagong, Bangladesh

The EME Chittagong site has been an the path of acheaving
manufacturing excalenca by mcoiporating  new  and
innovative methods, tachnoligy and enhancemant of
operztional capabilities. During 2015 Chittagong site has
daelivered the commerial expectstion af dalivering thae
products by maintzining Satety and Quality expectations.

The joumey of GPS ie., BSK Production System started in
2014 at Chictagong site and continues its mamarntum in 2015.
The GPS is = set of standard ways of warking ta icantify and
eliminate the root causa of Accidents, Defects and Wasta
and thereby delvermg Zero Accident, Zera Defects and Zara
Wizste. Six basic standerds of GPS has already bean mitiated
gt site which resulted in Zaro Accidant stetus for sita in 2015,
Overall Equipment Efficiency (OEE] of aur packaging lines isin
increasing trend.

Capabiity Building was one of the key priorities in 2015 for
Chittagong Site for enswning Safaty Product Quality and alsa
ta meet the compliance at every stage of the aparation ta
face the regulatory challenges. & number of internal and
external capabiity buikding programs were conducted at site.
Twa medules namely License to Dperate and GSK Production
System (GFS) hes bean implemanted for all employees under
the My Supply Chain Acadamy. Site Laeders had been trained
on face to face training of Leading Delivery, Leating EHS and
First Ling Leacars Exparianca [FLLE).
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Investing on Peaple remains key priarity far site. Dunng 2015,
atotal of B people have been inducted into site operations.
Site successfully completed the Engineening zudits in 2015
and scored 67 under T3 assessment. All the impravemnent
nitiztives have resulted site to remain in High Control Status
for bath Quality Risk Madal and EHS Risk model dunng 04,
205.

Medical: Building Momentum Towards Success

Uphalding the valises of ntegrry transpanency respect fos
peaple & patient focus at heart, Medical team initiated &
drave activties far the betterment of patient care aligned
with B3K& core objective in order to establizh the highast
lewel of work ethics & to function 3% 3 partner acrogs
departments and achieve arganisational goal. 2015 was the
year when medical team reinforced it commitment to
aestablish medical commercizl partrership to facilitate
exgcuUtion of stravegc imtiatwes in ling with the business
plan.

Wew HOP engagement model mequines new ways of thinking,
new capabilities, and new ways of doing business. To suppart
the new madel, the written standands impacted by the HCP
Engagemant Intiative are being ravised. In order to be
suctessful, resource buldng has been completed and the
affective plans hawe been implementad for capability
buiding of the medics, standandising ways of working, and
partnering across the organization. Mew business madel wes
launched with which HCPs wene not famiiar The challenge
was t0 show them the walue of our naw initistives & the
inmgvative approsches, APAL ingpiration welbinar is thie first
axpanance with digital channel which has been sppreciated
a5 inagvative approach by the HCP A very positve wiitoen
feedback has been received from the HCF as well through
which they ranked it a5 an excellent endeavour and agmeed
that it would immenzely help them in their day to day
practice and called for the cononuation of similas
pragrammes in futue.

Strengthen Internal Control Framework
The effort tor strangthening the Intemal Control Framework

continued by bringing discipling in nsk management, medical
gowamance & ensurng human safaty. The adherence of

a0 GIK

coss  functional tesm with the GEK standards and
maurements  including  updated  standards  has been
anhznced through face to face discussion, training and email
commurigatian, Excalignce in g necord Management
has been ensured which facilitated the work of cross
functional team significantly to organze HCE engagement
actiities. Quartery Managament Manitoring [MM] executed
ag per the plan and the reparts are well shared with area
medical. Promotional activity has always been in scapa for
rigular ECHO IBM activivy. Mo major concern ralsed Fiamm both
MM and [EM. Significant discipline and improvement has besn
brought in G&D process. Activities of madical functions wene
tested during GM certification and adequate contrals were
found in place. Eventually the rek management hadit of
medical functian ha=s become & role model.

Success Stories of Medical-Commaercial Partnership

liu:,';u'.:l-'.r!,l

Medica-marketing mitiatives marked strang contribution
from medical team for the regpiratony poetfolio, Thane wene
two comgresses, .., WONCA Sputh Asia  Regionzl
Confenence, 2nd Intemational Conference on Asthma and
Chest Diszase where thare ware saczllite Sympasiz has bean
arganised, Mso in collaboration with commercial Team a
master class on asthma  arganised. A global webinar on
“Adulr asthma & COPDC has been organised as wall which was
‘the first wehinar for respiracary partfalio in Bangladash.

IZl:rl-r.lIl:I:;g'll

There was a series af pragrammes on 2cne management
arganized in Ohaka and Chictagong conducted by GSK expert
from above country. The impressive deliberatian on “Acne
Management” has ser an example of “Warking acrogs
boundanes' to deliver patient focus messaging that has
been appraised by dermacologists Fom every cormer of
Dhiakea znd Chittagong. The glohal wabinar an “Dptimizing
acng patient carg in dally clincal practice” has been
argenised as 2 part af catch up session of Warld congress of
Dermatology thwough which evidence-based treatment
apticns and real-life case studies have been highlighted.

dnti-infective

Jutstanding initiatreas have been taken as patient focus
nitative o overgome the challenges for anti-infective
portfolia. APAC inspiration Webinar on "Management af
Community  acquined  respiratory  tract  infeetions:
Surveillance, clinicel practcs end antibiotic prescribing
gudehnes™- Is an example of cross functional team wark to
achieve a @ingle goal to the success which has besn
organised in 10 verues thriough which approximately 400
doctors were covared. This is the first initiative of new way of
engaging with HCPe thiough miultichanned meda wheh @ ag
well the example of culture change from the way that we
hawe proviously engaged with HCPs,
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An evidence based campaign for Dinnat which incleded
sevgral approaches such as proactive product presentation,
developing eff ective communicatian tocds including training
programmg have been mitated o establish Jnnatas g
comaetent malecula to combat against raguirad pathogens
without combining with clavulanic acid. The iniiauves
brought the confidence amang saks team and increased
thew capabilities ta meet the requiements of HCPs. The
suppcet provided for the different teams has demaonstrated
imivsenst team wisk and co-operation esultng in effective
crpss boundary knowledge enhancament.

Vaccine

h preat team effort brings. Synflorix protection to 3 million
babies in Bargladesh On the 215t of Barch, 2018, the formal
launch of Synflarix was hald which wes critical az well ag
challenging. However a comprehenshve team work was the
kery driver to achiave this success. Saveral years af hard wark
andl engageiment was at stake due Lo supply lssues. But we
remairad fully transparent and angaged with the EPL. The
stakefniders respanded with trust in GSK and confidence on
Syniflarix as the mast appropriata choice for Bangladeshi
newbarng to wait for supplies. In the end, it was about great
team-work 2t every lewsl and succeedad in protecting
milligns of babigs aganst prevmococcal disease who
needed it most.

Engagement with Health Care Diganisation

Medical team along with vaccime commercial team has
continuoushy strivied towands stengthening the message of
improving averall immunisatian coverage across the country,
and hag thus been warking in a strategic partnership with the
key healthcare arganisacian for the smopth execution of
Irnriunisanan swaneness acowties tigened oo pediatricians,
gynaecolgists, other healthcare professionzls and the
gengral public. In ling with this endeavour, HOPs were
engapad through sewaral spesker torus and satelite
symposia in congresses of Obsterrical and Gymecological
Sociaty [0GSE], Bangladesh Society for Colpascopy and
Gervical Pathology (EDSCEP) and Bangladesh Meonatal Farum
[EHF].

Cross Bawundary Knowledga Enhancing Sassions: A series of
scademic sessions have been organised on Vaccmolopy foe
HCFe, bringing in Medical expert= from GEK Emerging Markets
and Agia-Pacrfic, aimed at cross boundary integration of
knowledge and experiences. Thesa vaccinoligy programmes
fiar HCPs aim to reduce the burden of vaccine preventable
disezses in Banglzdesh as well as helping HCPs maka becter
Judg ment calls while managing vaccing preventable diseases
and enhancing HLP engagement in & way that highlights our
commitment in ensuring HCPS having access 10 updated
irfoematian. HOPs from two sociaties, Bangladesh Peadiatric
Agzaciation (BRA] and Obstetical and Gynaccolegical Saciety
of Bangladesh (OGSR), who wark closely with Paadiatric
infectious diseases and Women Health respectively were the

participants. In 3 different sattings, araund 150 pediatricians
and gynaccalagists participated in these sessions, After the
presantations took place, most of the participants shared
their diff erent opiniong and experiences on the discussed
sulijects keading to some affactive and intaractiva sessians.
In addetion to the intemal experts, there wene local external
experts wha underlined the importanca of immunisation far
vaccine preventable fseases.

Training on New Code of Practice

New eode of practice and SE has been ralled out by engaging
commercial and complianca lead. It has been enswed that
crogs functional eams wire alneady aware of the prnisiong
of new code, the changes in the code & wndarstand their
esparshilites in light of the new code.

Capability Building of The Sales Team

In collaboration with the commercial team the training
programme far sakes team on kay therapeutic brands hag
been initiated and cantinued to enhance the capabilivy and
confidence as well &= spund product knowledge of salkes
team. Additional tralring on meeting management and
gavernanca supgort has been coganised to encourage the
teaim o wigualize the opportunity to ciganise selantifc
ewents which evantually have been evident in cammencial
pracrice.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Qur contirous strive at GSK remains oo be creating access (o
guality healthcara in the communities we work at. To create
acoess and Facilitate healthcane service delwvery, GSK has
taken an inftiativa to re-invest 20 of its prafits co bulding
capacity of the Community Health Workers [CHWs] at the
hard to reach areas af the country. The projects under this
initiative ane described below

“GEX-CARE Public-Privete Partnership initiatives to
address health work force issues &t remote areas”

GEE-CARE Community Health Worker  Inicative is an
innowative public privete partnershig [PPP) to address the
baiman resource and health services gap far 14 million peaple
in B0 wrians of 10 underserved sub disticts of remare
Sunamgan] destnct. This s an ongoing indtiatve since
December 2012 and funded by GlaxeSmithkling in Bangladesh
azpartof ow 20% profic reimvestment programme, The
programme  will deliver consistant, high  qualicy  and
sistainable maternal, newborn and child healthcan by
developing Private Communicy Skilled Birth Attendants
[P-CEBAs] and Community Health Workers [CHWs) and
stremgthening community health systems. The programmea
also actively engages bcal govemments [Union  Parshad)
to support the P-LSBAs, and facilitates service access to
poce warmen and chidien, The iniclative has demonstrated

G5K
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imgressive resules in last 3 years and a5 a result Minigtry of
Hezlth and Family ‘Welfara has requested to expand the
nzach to all 87 unions of 11 sud detncrs from December 2015,
To mark the expansion, in Septemaer 2015, differant launch
gyt wiene organized at Dhaka and Sunamgang. At Ohaka.
Secratary of Ministry of Health and Family walfare [MOHFW]
Syed Manjurul lslam, Vice President of GEX Ramil Burden and
CED of CARE-UK Lawie Lee attendad tha event along with
other senige government, GSK, CARE afficialz and a UKAID
representative. The formal launching evant at Sunamgan]
was participated by Joint Secretary of HRM unit af MOHFW Dt
Mc. Shajedul Hasan, Vice President of GEK Ramdl Burdan, CED
of CARE-UK Laurie Lee, Senior Assistant  Chief-HRM  unir,
MOHFW Md. Mahifuzur Rahman, Deputy Secretary of HRM unit
of MOHFY Jesmin Mahar AD-DGFF Do Rezaul Kanm, Global
Community Partrarships Manager of GEK Daryl Burnaby with
other gowemiment, CARE & G5K colleagues, The event staned
with the 8 video documentary ‘a new hoge in haar basin’,
which screened the story of the nitarive’s jouney and was
followad by ‘testimany of success’ shared by an UH-FPQ, an
LIFFD, a bocal government representative [UP chalrman] and a
F-CEBA. The Cal Surgean Dr Abcul Hakim, Deputy
Commmzsioner Sk Rafiqul lzlam, and Deputy Disgctor - Family
Planning Md. Mozammal Haqus also shared ther experiences
and suggestions, Champa Rani, 3 P-CEBA, said that “Being a
F-CSBA vo fulfll my long term dream o serve my own
comnmunicy and Family, | am proud that | can now supgon my
family expenzes especially contributing 1o my childran’s
education and is valued. The P-CSBAs provided about
280,345 shilled health services during 26 months. As of
today, 1455% bieths wene attended by P-CEBA; 5,800
peegnant wamen and new hom were refamed by P-CEBAs far
accissing Mesaving services; 55,209 Essential Mewbarm Cane
[ENC] and 28,090 child Cara [C- ML) servicas wara provided.

GEK-Friendship M-Health Project
The & year long GSK Friendship M-Health Project partners a
locaal WD called Friendship.

[G5K-Friendship m Health is enablng medical infeemation
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exchange thraugh & mobile phone at a distance with the
ultimate goal of improving community health care. It
pravides diagnastics and curs ar the course of action to be
taken for the cure. The project will enable 150 specialised
FCMs to prvide basic minimum package of qualicy health
care, which is manageable at that lewel and also affordable
for the communities when the BE)s and donors are nat there
for subsidising the heafth care coses. Each char has up to 3
FiMs depending on the number of household of the char
with each FOM covering 250-300 hausehalds.

Health Acc
(HALDWW)
HALOW is & jaintly funded project of MARKS & SPFENCER and
GlanaSmichKling. It is a year-lng project chat wag initiated
on 15t Apnl, 2015 and will contmuee till 3st March, 2016, The
main aim of this project is to cater improved health cae
sarvices 10 RMG workers and increase thelr awareness and
understanding of health issues, especially the female
workers at both the factory and communizy levels. The key
ancas HALOW wishes to address and develop are health and
nigtrition behaioyr; health cane access; preveritive and
CUraTnee service uptake; community mobdization and service
linkage for RME waorkers incleding thewr famiies and create 3
plasform for dealing with underdying heath and nutritional
Eses.

s and Linkage Opportunities far Warkers

To materialise the project’s abjectives. the fallowing actions
were taken:

+ & Community Support Systems (Cm55) were developed
in the targetad cammiunities.
Core project teams were extablished at two factories
(Interscaff and Interfab) te support and cocedinate all
project activities, especially at the factary level
Linkages with local government and NGO health service
praviders were formed, bringing satellice clinics and
provigipn of quality health related consumables to the
WOMKErs an-gite.
Health camps were held at bath the factaries
Dizeass awareness sessions were held for 63 factory
maEnagement membsars.




Az of today, the project has directly benefed 7,700 factary
wiakers and 1500 [es1.] community members whike indirectly
beneftting another BODO [est). The project is being
imphemented by Care, Bargladash.

GEK-CARE RMG Warkers Health initiatves

This is & GlaxoSmichkhne [G5K] funded three year-lng
project [EN5-2018) focussed on BMG workers at Jeacon
Garmerts Ltd., Elegance Qrientake Led. and Panache Knitted
Creations Led. The progect inwvolves  establishing @
sustamable and comprehensve  BRH O and  nutrition
programme dedvery model that can be replicated to ensure
congEtent access and avalabilivy of health and nutrition
services and infomation refated o health and GBY
emergency and awareness to garment workers and cheir
families.

The main abjectives of the project are o

«  Promote multi-sectaral partnership for develoging 2
sustamable health sendce delivery model for imaroving
ShH and Mutntional status of Ready Made Garment
[RebE] woekiers.
Enhance management capacity of parners and relevant
stakeholders.
Impicve heslth, nutritional and wamen smpowerment
LR

«  Provide 24-hr essential health and nutritional services
by gualified health providers to targeted population.
Ensure access 1o afferdable comprebensive healthcare.

+ Determine the effect of micramutrient defciencies and
anaemia on absenteeism and productiity of the female
garments warkers through conducting  Dperational
Research.

Ta date, the project hag diectly banefited 5,700 workers and
7000 community membess while the indirect beneficiaries
nurnber around 15,923,

GSK icddrb Health System Strengthening Programme

In Mid July, 2015 the G3K-icddr, bE-HSE program came to 3
comglecon of it's 2 years preject. The praject implemented
chnical gowermance n the 3 selected hospitals traming
numerous  Health  Care Professonals  on  Infection
Manzgement. Following the success of the project n the
pilat phase it is beang expanded far 3 yrs from August 2005 &t
Sunamgan) ared in B hospetals, thus aligning with the GEK
CARE CHW mitiative in the same locality.

Human Resources

GlamaSmithkhne Bangladesh (G5K] in Bangladesh employs
miee than B0 peeple directhy. GSK hags Dean pregent in thig
country for more than G0 years and we arg one of the key
emplayers in both Pharmaceuticsts and FMCE sector We are
driven by the passion to help people to do mome, feel better
anid ke longec

Employerof
Che

Parfarmance

||'||:-|||'_..'|:|r Development & illgat!::l'u:'l': Ei'.l:l’.l:g:ll
Suengthening the emplover-employee relationship = the
strategic: role of Human Resources. However, theme's mone
tham megts the eye 1o ding this We famulate workfome
strategy and detesming the functional processes necessany
1o mest oiganzational goals.

Dur key focus is to ensure G3K to be an employer of chaice
and 'we are investing significanthy in cur talent development
at every level. IT s imperative o ensure nght resoues ae
meciuited for the right job and employes development
strategy i in place for sustainable result.

‘We take a global wiew of talent and strategic capabibties,
lnkang at the qislity, depth and breadth of our talent acmss
the woeld. We strive 1o have good successian plans in place
for entical positions acress the organisation. We have
productive Initiatives in place to ot specialist and
keadership talent, and we maintain 8 abist leadership
strategy To dentify and develop our highly skilled leadership
group. We offer all emplovees a range of learing
oppartunities and tallored develapment programmes.

Dur performance and development planning process means
employess have busingss-aligned obpectves and behavioural
goals. Reward systems are focused on promanng high
pesfarmance and helping to sttract and retain the best
peapke. Performance-based pay bonuses and share-Dased
gguity plans align employes interests with business tagens.

Az pir business evobees, there will be changes that affect

gmployess. We remain commicted to consulting these
changes via a number of intermal congitation farms.

G5K
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Paopls
5K continues to maintain a very satisfactory pasitian in
terms of peaple productivicy. This is confimed by the

S Soingh EEEN
Executhe Management 5 1
Senice Management 8 bis}
Mid Management 140 128
Jurior Management k] LT
Mizn Merisgement 205 a7
Tata a1 B2

HR alsp plays a key role in human sustanahilitg working
closaly with the Eneronment, Health and Safety group to
support employees in 2 range of ways, fram coaching
individuals, occupational health and ather well-being
services to curting edge programmes.

Lighten up acrogs the Pharmacewtical Business

In 25, the Compary carried aut an extensive Lighten Up®
gugrrise. As part of this companywide rzcords managemeant
pengram [in Pharmaceutical business], all documents ware
appropriately labeled, stored, transfened and dispesad &z
per the Company Records Retention Schedule. There was alot
of enthusiasm and energy acmss the onganization as such a
pengram was done after a long gap.

‘With the completion of ‘Lighten Up', all company persanned
are up-to-cate on records managemant gudelings and al
company decuments are aligned to the guideline.

Finance & T [FIT) Conference

The annual FIT Conference was beld in light of the new FIT
Value Statement: "We bring welocity and transpanency in
supparting decisions, embadding goverrance, facilitating
transactions and leveraging technology. AL the confesance,
the Finance and T veams realigned their strategies as per the
company strategy and identified the o ppartunities to bhing in
valocity and innovations, while ensung controls, The session
contluded on a high nate with nenewed team spint and drives
1o suppart the business momentum,
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REPORT OF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE M=

Campany's Philosophy of Governance

Tha Company’s philasophy of Corporate Governance is simed
at assisting the managamant of tha Comparry in the effciant
conduct af its business and in masting its obligation to the
stakeholders, and is puided by a stomg emphasis of
transparency, accowntabilivy and intagnity. For sevaral years,
the Company has adopred a codified Corporate Gavernance
Chartar, which is in ling with the best practice, 25 well a5
meets the relevent legal and regulatary reguirements, All
employees am bourd by 2 code of conduct that sers forth
the Compary's palicies an all important isues,

Corporate Governance Charter

Tha Board af Directors hes adopted a Copoate Governance
Chartar which has baan complied with thraughauwt the yeat

Tha puposs of this charter is to codify the Compary's
systam of corparate govemance s0 @S to assist the top
maragamant of the Company in the efficient cenduct of its
business and m maeting its obligations to the shaseholdars,

The Charter Specifics

+ Tha relationship with othar Group Companies

+ Tha rals of the Boeed of Directors

+  Respansibilities of the Managing Dirgctor

+  Raspansibilities of the Finance Direstor

+ Respansibilities of the Campany Secretary

< Impartant matters raguinng the price spproval of the
GlareSmithking ple board or its committess

+ Mattess requiring peior approval of gioup central
functions

+ Impartant mattars requiring aporaval of the Comparny's
e

+ Control of axparditure

+ Professional advisor

The Board

Tha Board consists of a non-axecutive Chairman, four
guzcutive dirsctors and thrae non-executive diractars. Thare
is & claar division of resporsibilivies batwean tha Chairman's
furctions and that of Managing Director. The Chairman is
mainy respansible for chairing the Board Meeting as well as
the Aneual Ganeral Meating. On the other hand, the Managing
Director is respansible for implementing and cocrdinating the
company's corporate and commencis| programmes 1o schisve
its business abjectives, Al directors have full and timaly
access tooall mlevant iformation and  independent
professiona] advica,

46 Gk

Role of the Board

Tk Board is responsible for the strategic direction, policies
arit ovarall management af the Compary, It ansuras that the
Company's palicies and activities confarm to Mission, Kay
gaals, Care values, Code of Conduct, Ray strategias, Policies
and Practicss assal out in the statements of palicies,
safapuarding the assets of the Company and establishing an
adequate a5 wall as effective system of internal contral.

Tk Board has suthodized the formation of a numbar of
committees in ordes to implement the stated policies and
activities. The committees are: Tha Committae of Directors,
Fension Fund Trustees; Providant Fund Trustees: and
Campany Exacutive Committas.

Frequency of Meetings

The board meets at least once a quamer. The number of
maetings that wera held during the financial year endad 315
Dacembar, 2015 was b,

Management and Conduct

Tk Board supports good Corparate Gevarnance based on
ganeraly accepted framework, Compliance with statues
gavarning the industry is of greal importanca Lo maintain the
reputation of the Company. Ky staff have been appainted
anid given spacific rasponsibiity to ansura compliance.

Independanca i decision withaut conflict of intamst is
considarad important in dischaiging stewardship function of
the Board of Diractors. Tha company therefere follows 2
stringent palicy which prohibits any financial sccommedation
to diractors, Alsa, the diectors are equind 10 make a3
daclaration of their intarast in any contract with the
Company. These measures ensure that any conflict of
intarast dues nat aise.

Audit Committee

The Awdit Committae eviews the finencial and intermal
reporting  process, the system of intemal contrals, the
management of risks, and the axtemal and intarna! udit
peocass, The committes also progoses ta sharaholders the
appaintment of the exemal auditors and i diectly
respansible for their remunieration and owersight of their wark,
The majority of the members of the audit committes are
nan-axecutive directoes of the Companyg headed by 2
nan-axecutive indegendent dirsctor




GSK RISK MANAGEMENT s=sss-

We are commirted o conducting busmess n accordance
with all applicable laws ard regulations and in a manner that
i consistent with our values. Wi have an established risk
management framework 1o addess operational, legal and
complianci risk; bath those mberent to the nature af our
business and these spechic to our strategc ambitions. Risk
management. coupled with our mternal control framework
hedp us mantan ow focus on produet qualicg safery and
sugtainabilicy.

Compary pokcies, standards and intemal contrals, Tegether
with pur company values uwndenpin aur approach o risk
management. We are committed To being @ respansable,
values-based business and our leaders are responsible for
embedding this into our cultune, decesion making and hiw we
wark. Ensuring product qualicg safery and sustainabiity an
fundamental to our business model.

AT 5K Bangladesh, Risk is defined as "a potential event that
creates uncertanty or could adversely affect the expected
achigvement of our business objectives™. Dur Bisk Manage-
ment 5 a b step process of proactively identifyng. assessing
and implementing appraprate fisk treatment [0 manage
igks. Risks are seldom aveided and without a certain lewel of
apprapriate risk taking, GSK iz unable o create sharehalder
value.
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Employees are accountable for working 1o established stand-
ards and for dentifying and escalatng encountered risks so
that they can be appeopriately managed. GSX Bangladesh has
comprehensive leaming programmes T ensure emplivees
ane swtably trained inchiding mandatory training an thi GSK
Code af Conduct and &nti-Bribery and Carmuption policies.

Overview of Risk Governance Forums

ALT

&g an UK based organisation, the UK Corporate Govemance
Code requires companies o imglement integrated risk
management and internal controls that ientify and manage
significant nsks that might have a matenal impact o 18
financia performance.

The GSK Bangladesh Board of Directors has delegated
accountabdity 1o its Audic Committes for assessing the
effectiveness of management controls for significant legal,
operational or compliance risks facing the Group. Extemnal
Issues concerning conporate responsibibty chat could poten-
tially have a senous impact an the reputation of G5K Bangla-
desh.

The Corporate Executive Team [CET) has operavanal account-
ability for mantaining effective management controls. Each
year, CET reviews the risks facng the Grown and agrees the
Principal Reks that present a significant legal, operatonal or
comgliance risk v the Group. The CET 2lso designate individ-
uals responsible for developing and maintaiming Enterprise
Risk Strategees for certain Prncipal Bisks that have a
widespread impact across the Graup.

Bangladesh busaness Units and Global Support Functions are
responsible for executng corporate policies; ensuning nobust
internal control frameworks are being mantained and signifi-
cant risks are adequately mizigated. Bangladesh Risk
Manzgement & Comgliance Boards [RMCBs] exist within each
Busmness Unit and Glabal Support Function to review and take
action to ensure Principal Risks sre being adequately
addrezzed in line with applicable Enterprise Risk Sorategles.
Country Executive Boards (CEBS) prowide a means for
different G5K business units operating in the country to
manage the Prncipal Risks, which impact more than ang
busness uniz, from a country perspective. CEBs should
ensume country-specific rsks are identified and addressed.
Some of the Principal Bisks have & cross-Group forum o
oversee and help coondinate risk management and contrals
acmss the Gooup [eg. G58 Bangladesh Quality Council for
Product Quality,  G5%  Bangladesh  Medical Govemance
Commitcee, G5K Bangladesh Pricing Commitcee and Procure-
ment Committeg).

G5K
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Figure 1: Governance structure of risk management
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One Country Executive Board in GSK Bangladesh

We have identfied an oppartunicy to ensure oversight and
gavernance where there is more than one business or operat-
ing unit in & courtry. Courtry Exacutive Boards [CER] is being
establizhed to discuss operational and legal risk. We believs
this is a great foum 1o also discuss Compliance risks. CER
hielps G3K Bangladesh to becter realise efficiencies. coondi-
nate implementation of priovity programmes, build reputa-
tion and effectively manage communications with external
stakehnlders. The CER is & forum fo create opportunicy and
manage operatianal, legal and compliance risks for G3K.

In Banglagesh, the Baard i chared by the Managng Directar,
5K Pharmaceuncals and the ather membars ane the General
Manager of GSK Congumer Healthcars; Site Director of
Bangladesh Manufartunng  site;  mspective  Finance
Directors: Head of Legal and distinguished represantatives
from the Following functions of the company: Communica-
rions, HR, Regulatorg Medical, Compliance and IT.

The Board sits thrice a year to ensure pversight and strategic
coardination berween the differsnt GSK business wnits and
sites in Bangladesh and Manages G5K's Principal Risks and
ary Bangladesh specific risks, which impact mare than ane
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Bupports th

Hespansble for revewing and appraving the adeguacy and
effectiveness of gur rsk management and internal cortrals

0'in managing aur business and acrivities

Authonged by the Bomd to assist the Audic & Rigk
Lommictee in oversesing the risk management and intemal
contral activities of the Group

within their bus

Er=sure that appropnate internal controls for effective risk
manzgement are implemantad

bugirass unit. It alza farmulates strategy implemants plans
and monitars pragress an joint enterprise initiatives ..
sales companzation, rezruitment and talent development
and the global programme to avolve salkes and marketing
practices and manitors the external erviranment ta infarm
stratagy and identify envionmental rsk. The board also
coardinates internal end estarnal communications =0 we
present ara cuftwe and voice axtemally for GEK Bangladeshe
manages external stakeholders, ag. govemmant, medis,
regulatory more effactively and discusses and take actions
oni apportunities and izsuss of common intarsst acmes
businasses  while maintaining adequate aversight o
facilitata the schisvamant of agreed solutians.




GSK Enterprise Risks

Each yaar, the Corporats Executive Taam [LET) reviews tha risks facing the Group and agress on a list of mast significant risks
- refared to a5 Entesprisa Risks — that raguire particular sttention fram a Group perspective, inchuding thesa that could cause
our actual rasults o differ matarially from axpectad and hestorical results,

A summary of our Entarpeise Risks iz sat out below to the right of tha GSK Enterprsa Risk List.

Risk Definition

Enterprise Risk

Fatient safaty Failura ta appropriataly collect, review, follow up, or eport adverse avents
fram all potentizl sourcas, and ta act an any ralavent findings m 2 timely
mannar.

Intellectual Property Failure to appropriately secue and protect intellectual propey rights.

Product Quality Failura to comply with current Good Manufacturing Fractices or inadegquate

conitrals and govemance of quality

Financizl Control and Reporting

Failura to camply with currant tax |&w or incuring significant losses due to
tragsury sctivities; failure to repoet accurata finsncisl infarmaticn in comgli-
anca with sccounting standards and applicable lagislation: failura to meintain
adaguata gavernanca and ovarsight owvar third-party relatonships.

Anti-Bribary and Corruption

Failure to comply with apphcable bcal and incernational ABAL legislanan.

Commercialisation

Failure T0 cxecute BUSINGSS STRATREES, OF MAnage COMPECIThE opportunTies
of thieats effectively and i accordance with the lerter and spirt of legal,
ndustry and, or Company mquements.

Research Practices Failure to adequately conduct ethical and sound pre-chnicel and clinical
resaarch. In acditian, failure to angaga in scientific activities that are cansist-
anit with the latter ard spint of tha law, industry, or the Group’s requirements..

Emvironment, Health & Safety and Failure to manage EHSS risks in ling with our objectives and policies and with

Sugtainability relevant laws and regulatins.

Information Protection Failure to protect and maintain access to critical or sensitive computer
=ystems or information.

Crisis and Continuity Managemant Failure to deliver a contnuous supply of compliant finished product; inability

to recover and sustain eritical operations. incliding key supply chams, fallow-
ing a digruption o tomspond 10 8 crisis incident in.a timely mannes;

G5K
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK ME

We ere committed to having effective risk menagement
gystems [including frameworks and processes], to ensura
that the significent risks wa faca, have bean aporapristely
identified, assessad. treabed, monitared and reportad. This is
an integrel part of pood management practice and will help
us to probact patient safaty people, the environmant,
compeny Essets and reputation end also achiave our
business ohjectives, safeguard shareholer investmart and
ensure we comply with legal requirements.

To make people Do More, Feal Battar and Live Longat we need
tn heve great products that successfully meet the needs of
patiants end consumers throughout the world. However, ta
grow and sustain awr business and to pratect our reputation,
we depend on the success of many Business Activities.

G5K Bangladesh internal control fremewors dafnes the
essantisl elements expactad of ow complance end risk
menagamant programmes. 65K geins compatitiva advantage
when the controls required to mitigate risks ere clesdy
defined and simple to implement. Qur intamal contral
framewark drives:

m  Common lenguage

m  [ecraase in varishility

m  Reduction of failures in exacution

m  Reduction of rawark

m  Reduction of internal and external audit absarvatians

= |mpravements in the pmcesses used ta deliver products
and senvices

w  Confidence that risks ame effactivaly manzged

A fit-for-purpose intarnal contral framawark, in conunction
with embadding the G5K Valuas and aur Speak-up Campaign,
ensures that the GBS Principal Risks are activaly and
effactivaly contrallad. The Entarprise Risk Swategies being
daveloped for cartain Prncipal Risks will also leversge tha
G5K Internal Comtral Framework when assessing the
adequacy of existing contral framawark for thair raspactiva
topic from an averzll G5K perspactiva.

Control Framaworks ensbla us to develop our systems of
intesnial contral in 8 structured and effective way. Thay
ensure that we operate within spplicable legeslation and
enhanca our ahility to daliver our strategic sims and sdsgt ta
the ewvoling nature of our business envimonment. By
daplaying & commen Control Fremewors across BSK, wa
achieve @ level of clanty and confidenca that 2 necassary
sspects of internal control are adequataly managad and
facilitate effactiva oversight.
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U\'LET'PME UI'IE’S’E&;

i = Business
Activities ; ;

i s
Koy he GSK Value

[] Individual Accountability
[T Line Management Accountshility with Compliznce

["] Business Management Accountability with Complianca
[ Audic & Assurance

1. Enterprise Dversight
Risk and Oversight Committees

Because we are a large and complex business, we need to

approach management aversight in an o@anised and

systemaric way. This ensures we can confirm that all relevant

parts of the Contral Framework are either up to standand, or

identify aeas that need impovement. We have a Risk

Management Compliance Board. GSK Expectations provide

clear stavements of how all employess must perform their

jobs and deliver their performance cbjectives inander 1o dive

suocess. They represent puides for delivenng effective

busiress and personal pesfarmance. They ane nat 3 menu of

specific  performance objectwes. The organisavon ks

designed o provide clear accountabiliy for plannng,

executing and controding our busness sctivives in ordes to

MR QU ObjecTives.

w The GEoard of [rectors  delegates
respansibilicy 1o semor management.

= [elegatian ensures individual business activities are
adequarely defingd and managed by people with the
FPIOPrIAe expertise.

= [(elegation only occurs to the extent necessary to
achieve our business objectives.

= For key aeas of nsk, duties ane segregated in onder T
prevent inappropriate decision-making.

= Pyt in place an approprate kevel of msowce for the
activity being undertaken.

operationsal
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EWE N yOUur vaiees Tor 3 Detre

As tha first lina of defanse, the Business Activity is designad
for succass by taking account of key mequrements such as
standards, rasourcas, capsbility or accountability. The
Busirass Activity may also have cartain in-process contioks
which ensure it dalivers its dasired autput coractly the very
first time. These activities, correctly executed aach time,
feems the basis of Managament Assuranca.

2. Risk Assessment

AL GSK Eangladesh, Risk assessment is a pra-raguisive for
astablishing a reference paint far controls, It idantifes all
neasenable arsas of scope and then aszesses the impact and
likalibacd of potential risks. In trn, the Contel Framework
can pravide Tocus on the prestest theeats, whie still
providing = breadth of manitoring, Without a risk assessment
activity, it s not possible 1o demonstiate whethes the
Comtral  Framewark  has  the  coract  focus.  In
acknowledgamant of the pre-esstence of controls, the
controls pertaining to activities sssessed as prasenting 2
‘gross’ risk shoukd be uged to determine a ‘nat’ rzk pasition,
Thiz aids daterminmg whethar enhancamants to the contiol
arvirnment ase raguirad.

3. Written Standards

Writtan Standards ane formal Company pobicies, standand
operation procedures, and guideines [collectively called
‘control documents’] that communicate the idess, rules and
arpactations of GSK Bangladesh, Strong control documents
can reduce sk, ensure  accountabilivg  and  enfonce
compiance in business operations, Palicy decuments ane
strategic, high level writtan statements that set out
mandatary principles for business activities within GSK, They
are supported by related standand operating proecadunes and
guidance [mandatory procedures  and stancards  and
non-mandatary “ways of warking' guidelines) that show the
practical how', ‘what' and ‘why' af implemanting busmess
activities dictated by palicy.

&. Training

AL GSK Bangladesh, all staff must operate competently in
whatever activity they undartake. For gach activity, the basic
trainmg reguiements need to be identified. Key process
contrals should not be assigned to prople wha do not have
tha required training. Trainemg may be simple first-tme
instructions or may require eviderce of comgrabansion, For
some activites, a pmfessional qualification or specific
axparience may be raguired, People shauld be trained not just
in what is ot scceptable. but alse hew to ideatify and
mitigate risks that arise when perfarming their role,

Wa an=sura such training which is proportionate to control the
rizks Besocigted with the business activity Training
programmes and materisls sre designed b taka into acoount
tha skills. experiance and knowledge of tha sudianca. GSK
etains edequate racords of its trainmg of emplyyess.
Particingtion in training programmas are made & conditian of
cantirued employmant and failure to comply with mandateey
traiming requiramants result in disciphnary ection. Adherence
to the training requiramants as wall &3 athar pravisions of the
Intarna! Cantral Framework s a factor in tha annusd
avaluation of esch employes. Treining is  periodicaly
eviewad, aspacisly following chenges to melevant key
cantrals.

5. Communication

The importance of tha Contral Frameweek nesds to be
affectively communicated sa thet everybody uncarstands
tha impartance of thair rale and how it contrbistes to the GSK
Hangladash wide framework. Managers need to ba sale to
articulate to their taams the impertancs of each part of the
framawark in & ralavant and engaging way slignad to gur
Velues and ancourage & Spesk-up cultura, Maragers must
also implemant a8 process to receiva complaints or quastions
and protact whistleblowers from ratalistion.

‘Wa ensure rapular communication of tha importance and
accourtability  for elements in the intemsl  contd
framawork. Whara failura of control gccur, the lessans
learned sre communicated to pravent ra-occurEncE.

The Speak-up Programme anables stalf to confdentially raise
cancarns far investigation and prowvides communications
forumz  for supporting  bath upward end downwerd
cammurication thraugh the oiganization.

6. Management Monitoring

At G3K Bengladesh, local managers sre accountable for the
cantrals in thair aea. Self-inzpection is an ongoing pracess
aof asseszing that the cantrols ans in place and in use. The
salf-inspection procass may invalve a woskplace inspection,
achacklist, a raview of datz or absarvation af tasks.

They ara alsn rezponsible for ansuring that procezsas within
thiz local team ar affice are being follawad praparly: are fit for
pupesa and ere prowiding the expected dagree of control. A
staff membars know what i axpectad of them. GSK
Hangladash manzgement has a complate and up-to-date
awaranass of tha state of control. The infomatian should be
used to continuausly improve the control of the business
ackiity.
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7. Responding to Problems

Failures and problams offer an impoetant coportunity for
bearning and improvement, By understanding and correcting
tha root cause, they should not recur and thus the pverall
contral framewark is stengthened. Deliberate violavion of
policy, law o ethacal codes threaten the Company's
meputation and these need 1o be investigated.

Detected issues that ane not praperly addressed can result in
a range of undesitable autcomes, including reputational
and for lagal risks, 2 well as fines and penalties. &s a esult.
it ks imperztive that managers have 3 process in place 1o
investigate itams on a timely basis to establish if a violation
has occwred. Additionally, investigative activities should be
thoraughly designed to ensure that the mot cause of the
problem is determinad. If the investigation concludes that a
vinlatien has occured, an appeopriate action plan should be
put in place tomemediate the issue.

8. Discipline & Enforcement

Descipling and enforcement genesally refars 1o undertaking
appropriate and consistent discipinary actions acioss the
Company for violations of policy o Code of Conduct.
Intentional breach af policy ar failure to operate within our
Walues or the Code of Conduct results in robust disciplinany
action.

At G58 Bangladesh, we have clear disciplinary policies thar
defire the comsequences far violating our cperational o
athical standards. Thene is a rigorous framework for handling
allegations and investigations in a manner that ensures that
discipling is applied faily and appropriazely and has the
desined detement effect.

Breaches are reported thiough the governance process whane
trends are monitored and as necessarg wider actions ae
taker acmss the business. We ensune that the approprate
disciplinary procedure is implemented when there has been
intentional breach af policy or failure to operate within our
Walues or the Code of Conduct. &% far as possible, disciplinary
actions should be undeaken on a consistent basis.

9. Independent Business Monitoring

Independent  business  moaitomg  involes  managars
conducting regular reviews of activities, data, exceptions
ardd daviations in order 1o continuously imgrove thei
aperatians and gualivy. This review gives the leadership
abjective evidence that the overall set of controls ane
affective, based on an understanding of curent infarmation.
This activity is perfarmed by a person or group. independent.
af the activity being moaitored.
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10. Independent Assurance

Independent Asswance is povided soley by the Intemal
Audit Function (Audic and Assurance) - G5Ks global awdic
team. No ather 63K organisation has the charter to provide
this. Intemal Audit providas asswance across GSE, covering
all of the Principal Risks. The focus of this line of defense is
not @ detailed verification of compliance but an oversl
assessment  of  management  effectivaness  at sk
identification and mitigation.

It also assesses the overall effectiveness of the logal conted
framework. In ooder to ensung its independence, the lntamal
Audit function reports both o the non-Executive Chair of the
G5K Audit and Risk Committee a5 well 35 ta the CET Head of
Gevarnance, Ethics and Asswance,

‘We uze a common methodology that meats the axremal
mouirements of the Institute of Intesnal Audet.  The (1A
frafessianal Practices Framework assues the design and
delivary of each audit and also enables sound and rapeatable
conclesions to be drawn from the audit. There is an
axpactation that the audites will be fully transpanant in the
audit process. Our Internal Audit dewelops an annual
Assurance Strategy which cuthines its areas of focus for the
forthcoming year; taking into account business risks and
amerging thames from audits. Each year 63K as a group
publishes a schedule of audics fram our UK Head Quarter thar
provides the coverer of all key risks in each of our Business
Units
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Chairman

Rodrigo Becker was sppainted as the
Chairman of GEK Banglacash Board on
20th Februzry 2014 He pined GSE
Spain in 1093 a= Marketing and Sales
Directar. He is currentyy tha Seniar Yice
President and the GEK Area Haed, Africa
and Developing Countries. As  an
Economics Graduate Rodrigo started his
carear with Hoechest AE, Germany and
in 1325 joined Schering AG, Span il
1383; in & serigs of incraasingly sanior
pesstions @ Marketing and  Sales
incheding the Head of Pharmaceutical
position. Prior to his curent position,
Rodrigo held the pesitions of Genersl
Manager, GSK lady: Ares  Director
Southern Europe end GM Spain.

Erum Shakir Rahim

Managing Diractar

Erum Shakir Rahim was mducted in the
GSK Bangladesh Enard in November
2015 Priar to this mke she wes the
Ganaral Managar af GSK
Pharmaceuticals, Maleysia & Brunei end
member of the GSK Asia Pacific
Leadership Team. She holds 8 Master's
degrae in Wass Communicatin from
University of Karachi. Ms. Erum began
her caraer in journzksm and advertizing
in Pekistan’s leading agency Atelier BM
Pakistan end The News Internationel.
She later mowad to the Pharmaceutice
Industry and jomed  SmithKline
Beecham  Palestan  in Product
Managamant. After the merger of the
Comgpany in 2000 to GSK, she led 2
markating groups of the I mesgad
companies. In 2006 she became the
Dwector  Marketing and  Bu=iness
Development of GSK. Pekistan, Iran end
Afghamistan. Ms Erum was @ Mamber
Board of Directors, PhAMA Maleysis; Co
chair PhAMA Ethics Committes; Member
G5K  Pakisten; Board of Diectos,
Member Dwarseas Chamber Committee
on Trade Pakistan; Trustee Concarn for
Childran Pakistan, etc. She was also
awarded Presidents’ Award far Synflonx
inclusion in GAWin 2013.

Md. Iftikhar-uz-zaman
Mon-Executive Diractar

Md. Itikher-uz-zaman was indwcted in
the G5 Banglzdesh Board in Februarg
2016. He assumed the position of
Managing  [Director of Irvestment
Corporation of Bangladesh in Februang
201B. Hiz successful carear spans over
32 years with important pasitions at
different  banks  and  financiz
orgenisations. Prior to his  current
position, he served as Deputy Managing
Dwector of Janata Bank Ltd. and ICE.
Bafore that he was General Manager of
ICE.

Mt Md. Kfrkhar-uz-zaman also sits as
Dwector of wanous companies including
British Amencan Tobacco Bangladesh
Co. Led.. Linde Bangladesh Limited.
Renzta Limited, Credit Rating Agancy of
Bangladesh Lrd. Standerd  Bank
Limited, National Tea Comgpany Limited,
at.

Mt Md. Iftikhar-uz-zemen abtained B.A
[Hons.) and M.A. in Statistics from
University of Rzjshahi. Dunng his career
he sttended & rwmbar of training
programmes on differant Capital Barket
izsues at home & abroad.
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Md. Mesbahul Hoque

Non- Executive [eector

Md. Meshahul Hoque was inducted in
the G5 Bangladesh Board n Octobes
£015. He did his graduation in Fharmacy
fiom Punjab Universicy, Pakiscan. He
als halds a MBA degree from the
Instioute of Busness Administration,
Dhaka University.

Md. Mesbahul Hoque started his career
in country's phamaceutical sector in
968 by poineng May & Baker [UK] Lod.
preesnthy known a5 Aventis [B0] Lod. He
waz the Managing Dwector  of
Therapeutics [B0) Limiced from 1986 to
2002 He also worked as Directos
(Operations of Libra Infusions Led. and
Marketing Director of Sanofi Bangladesh
Lud. [Rhone-Poulenc). Currenthe he s an
Independent  Director of A8 Bank
Limited; an  active member  of
Bangladesh Phamaceuticals Sociery
and the fomer Chairman of Reptiles
Faom Lud., [first crocodile  captive
breedng farm in Bangladesh].

Zinnia Tanzina Hug
Finance Director & Compary Secretany

Onmea Tanzina  Hug  jomed  GEK
Banglatesh Limited in August, 5014 as
Finance Director-Designare and was
subsequently appointed as Fmance
Direczor on 1% November, 2014, She has
I years of expenence as a finance
prafessional in progressive leadership
rolees. Prior o joning GSK. she worked
with  Biush  Amencan  Tobacco in
Bangladesh. She further waorked in
British  American Tobaceo, Singapore
Supply Hub as the Finance Lead fuor
varaus marker projects. She s a
qualified sccountant from Chatered
Institute of Management Accountants,
UK and I5 ats & member of Inszitute of
Cost and Management Accountants of
Bangladesh and Instinute of Intemal
Auditors- Bangladesh. She s a business
graduate from Institute of Business
BMdministration  [18&), Universicy  af
Dhalka.

Rajib Barua

Sive Dwector

Rajih Barua joined ESK onJanuang 2008
and assumed the positon of Sie
Director from March, 2008, He was
nducted to the G5 Bangladesh Board
n August, 20,

Having spent 16 years in Linileves
Bangladesh  Limited  in  vasious
manigement  positions &t thew
Chitzagong aperations. K last positon
at Unilever was General Manager
Factory, haning operational
responsibibty of the Chittagong baged
aperations of Undever  Raph 5 2
certified Food Quality Assurance [FQA]
Buditor & TP Instructor of Unilewec
Prior to Unilever, he worked with Sonar
Cotton Mills Bangladesh Limited, one of
The export oriented jaint venTLme textile
factories.  Rajh  graduated  from

Madana Azad College of Technology
Bhopal, Irdia as Mechanical Enginges
and is cumently a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers’ Bangladesh.




Masud Khan

Mon-Execiitive Director

Ma=ud Bhan joined the GSK Board on
Apnl, 2003, e is cumently the Finance
Director of Lafarge Surma Cement
Limited [# cross barder joint venture
project by Lafarge of France and
Cemertos Molins of Spain). With 33
weears of work expenence, this seasoned
professional has worked in increasingly
higher responsibility in the fiekds of
fnance, audit and ERP implementation
in leading multinacanal companies in
Bangladesh including British Amesican
Tobaceo Limited and James Finlay. His
long work experience also includes
working abroad at Monmia Tobacco
Corporation.  Liberia — and — Price
Waterhouse & Co., Kolkata, India. He
did his Bachelor of Commencs fom
Uneversity of Kollkata, India and qualified
bach as Chartened and Cost Accountant
from Indian Institute with distinction.

G.Venkatramani
General Manage: Consumer Healthcare

. Venkatramani joined GSK Consumer
Health, India n 2008, 3= General
Manager for South India. Sebsequently
he wag appointed as General Managers
of Bangladesh, Myanmar and MNepal in
April, EN4. He was  nducted in the
Board in Aprd, 2004 Prior to joining G5K,
he wioeked in Nestle, Gillerte and Proctos
& Gamble. His work over 30 years and
more, 0 the Salkes  and  Brand
Management sectors in diffesnt parts
of India and Singapore has eamed him a
diverse expenence. He is a FPost
Graduate n Economecs fram Loyala
Ciolege.
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COMPANY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CEC) MEme-

Thi Bharma management of the Compary is execured through the Company’s Executive
Comenictes comprising the Managing Dinecror and Diectoes

Erum Shakir Rahim

Managing Dirsctor

bz Mansging  Diector,  Eum s
responsible for overall management. of
the Company. She  oversees  all
aperational aspects including policias,
abjactivas, initatives and complianca.
She alza directs the long tesm strategy
far the Company. Erum joined the G5
Bangladesh Team in Januarg 2006, Frior
o har role in Bangladash, she was the
General Manager of G55
Phamacauticals. Malaysia & Brunei.

Zinnia Tanzina Hug

Fimanca Director & Company Sacratary

As Head of Finance functions and
Company  Secratang  limia s
responsible  for  activities  involving
firancial reporting and contral, tax and
treasury, investar relations, financa
systam, intemal  audit, information
technology and other coposzte affairs.
She joined 65K Bangladesh Limited in
August, 2014 as Financa Directar-
Dasignate  and  was  subsequanthy
appaintad as Finance Oirectar an 15
Nivwamdbies, 2014,

Rajib Barua

Site Diractar

Rajib Barua jained GSK on January, 2004
and assumed the position of Site
Diracrar fram March, 2008, As the Site
Director, Rajib iz responsible for sl
manufacturing related oparations af
the Company. In ordar to ansura patient
safery, he overloaks the supply chain af
all local manufacturing and suparvises
quality control & safety of production.
Rajib is & Mechanical Engineer and iz
currently 3 Fallow of the Instivutian af
Enginesrs Bangladesh,




Edieve in your values for a betcer

Noor Mohammad
Director Human Resources

Moo joined the GSX team in Dctober,
2015 &= the Designate Diector Human
Fesawres. He assumed the position of
Directar HR from Jarwang 2016. Post his
BE# from University of Madras and W&
from Worth South, he started his career
in Mew Zeeland Dairy Milk Benpladesh
Limited as an HR Profes=ianal. Frior to
juining GSK, he worked for &irtel, Nokia,
Fonterra Brancs PTE Ltd., Singapaora and
Saudi Mew Zealand Milk Products Cao.
Ltd. As the Diector HR, Moar is
rezponsible for the averall development
af Human resources, which inclede HR
strategies, employee  reletionship,
perfarmance management, gtc., across
all the business units of GER
Bengladesh which include Pharma,
Conzumsr and GME.

Hams atara

Cammercial Director

Neresh joined the Bangladesh team in
August, 2013, Having started his career
with G5, Indiz [then Eaxo India
Limited] i 1382 as = MWadical
faprezantative he moved an o take
laadership rales in Sales and Marketing,
A5 Head of Commercial, he is
respansinle for the mensgement of
marketing, =ales and  distrizution
functions of the Company. Naresh is en
gccredited Tutar from the GSK Academy,
London. Priar to joining the Bangladesh
team, Naresh warked as Director Selling
Excellence & Sales Force Effactivenass
for the Classic Brands Center of
Excellence supparting merkets acmss
LATIM AMERICA, AFRICA, ASLAPACIFIC
and the UAE.

Dt. Md. Mahbubur Rahman

Director, Clinical RED and Medical Aftairs

Az Head of MWadical, Mahbub is
respongibde for management of medical
department.  medical  govemance
aversight for Vaccines and Pharme
profucts marketed in Banpladesh,
Pharma and Biologicals clinical trisls
and Pharmacovigilance ectivities for
marketed and investigational products.
He completed MBES from Sher-e-Bangle
Medical College and did post: graduation
in Master of Publlic Health [MPH] with
magor i Epidemiology fram  State
University of Ohaka. Betara joining GSK
in 2011, he has worked in a veriety of
chnical & commercial rales  in
organizations such as BRAC, Square
Pharmacauticals and Novo Nordisk.
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Rumana Ahmed
Head of Communications

s Head of Communicatians, Rumana is
respansible for all Internal & External
Communications of the Company. She
glso leads all CSR relatad activities
which include global initiatives e,
0% re-investment of proft to buid
healthczre  infrastructurs, etc. She
complsted her Masters from Dhaka
Univerzity in English Literature. Prior to
joming G5K in 2002, Rumana workedin a
number of brand and  cosporate
communication ks in ranawned local
and multinational organizatians such as
Sociel  Mesketing  Company  Grey
Worldwida, US Peace Corpes, Asiatic MCL,
Bitopi Lea Burnett, atc.
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CONSUMER HEALTHCARE
LEADERSHIP TEAM SZimmme-

The Consumer Healthcae management of the Company is executed thrawgh the

G Venkatramani
General Manager

As  General  Manager G
Venkatramani  [BV] s
respangible  for  overall
management  of  the
Consumer Hesaltheare
Business  [CH] of G658
Banglacesh, Myanmar &
Mepal. He leads the 3
countnes a5 Head  of
Lansumer Hesalthease
business and  owersaes all
management and operation al

aspects of the buginess.
Wenkatramani joined G5K CH,
Indiz in 2008 as General
Manager for Sowth India.

Leadership team comprising the General Manager and Departmant /Division heads

Soumendra 5. Das
Markezing Director

Soumendra jomed G3K CH,
Bangladesh in Aprdl 2011, as
Marketing  Directos He
established  the  full
Marketing Function and ig
responsible for the overall
Marketing Digaan of the CH
Business af 5K,
Bangladesh. Prior to joining
BSK, he worked in Unilever,
Coca-Cola, Reckirr Banckiser,
and Marico and has over 22
years  of pure  Brand
Management  experience
basad out of Bangladesh and
Wepal. Soumendra s a Post
Graduste  in Business
Administration  from  [BA,
University  of Dhaka,
Bangladash.

Sujay Kumar Prasad

Commencial Excelence Mansger

Supay joined G3K in 1966 a5
Sales Officer in Warth India.
He joined the Eangladesh
veam in April 2014, and s
respanzible for the owerall
Sales Division of GSK CH,
Bangladesh. Befare joining
the Bangladesh team he
worked in various parts of
Indea includng  Chennai,
Mumaai, ete., inbeth Sakes
& Trade Markenng Prior to
(5K, Sujay worked in [abur
Indea Ltd., Bennett Coleman,
Times of India in Delhi. He & a
Commerce  Graduate  from

Delhi - University  with a
Diploma in Business  and
Markating Management.

Zahedur Rahman
Supply Chasn Director

Zahed  joined G3K CH,
Bangladesh in Aprd 2013 as
Supply Chain Director For
Bangladesh, Myanmar &
Nepal cluster. Az the Supply
Cham  Deector,  he =
responsible for all supply
chain related functions of
the 3-courtry cluster. Prior 1o
joining GSK, he worked at ACl
Limited a5 Director -
Business Development. He
also worked for fourteen &
Fealf years in different rles in
supply chan including the
ales  of  Suppdy  Chain
Planning Manager &
Manufacturing Manager at
Bntish  Amencan  Tobaceo
Bangladesh. Lahed
graduated from Bangladash
University of Engineering &
Technology  [BUETD  in
Electrical & Electionic
Engineenng and also = an
MEA from IB&, University of
[ihaka.
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Monir Hossain
Head, Extarnal Supphy

Monir  juined  GSK. CH
Bargladesh in March 2011, As
the Head of Exvernal Supaly
unit, he played a pivotal ok
in strectuing supply chain

function  for  consumer
business  along with
capabilicy and  capacity

building in frant and back end
supply chain and continues
o o 50, He has all rounds of
end to end supply chain
experiences in FMCG for over
Ih yaars. Priar to jaining GSK,
ke has warked for Heckic
Benckiser Bangladesh, Nestle
Indea, ard Nestle Bangladesh.
Manir has Masters in Major
Accounting. from Faculty of
Buginess  Studies  of
Univarsity of Ohaka. He has
bwen trained in "Supply Chain’
from (184, India. He is a Life
Member of BSCS [Bangladesh
Supply Chain Society] and
Accounting Akimni af Dhaka
Univarsity.

Nitin Mathur

Head af Finance

Mitin joined G5K, India in 2005
and has been  appainted
Head af Finance, CH business
of Bangladesh, Myanmar and
Mepal since June 20013 As
Head of Finance, he is
responsible for all Finance
related issues of the cluster.
Mitin started his career with
Papsico and later joined GSK,
I and wosked in a variety
of  roles  of  increasing
responsibility in Commencial
Fmance, Product  Costing,
Business  Partmering &
Management. Accaunting, He
i a Commence Graduate with
Homaurs and & Chartered
Accountant fram Instivute of
Chartered  Accountants  of
India.

Ishrat Zerin
Haad of Legal & Compliance

Ishrat  joined GSK  CH,
Bangladesh in 2004 a:s Head
of Legal & Comgpliance for
Bangladesh,  Mepal  and
Pryanman Prior to joining G5K,
she served as Head of

Compliance Graup in
Samsung, RED and had an
expanded  canesr E

corparate legal counsel far
aver twahve years in various
renowned organisations B
Unilevar,  Airtel  [pravicushy
‘Warid lebacom) and
GrarmeenPhane. Ishrar holds
degress from the University
of Dhaka, [LLE. and LLM],
the University af Londan,
(LLA] and City University,
London, [(BRTC]. She was
called 1o the Bar of the
Honowrable Saciety of Grays
Iar [UK] in 2013, and has been
awarded the prestigious title
‘Barrister’,




REPORT OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Far the year ended 31 December, 2015

E:f=.""

The Audit Commictes, eppainted by and
responsible to the Board of Diectors aof
GlexoSmithkine Bangladssh Ltd., i= constituted
according to the internal contml framewark of
the Compary policy and &= per conditions of the
Bangladesh  Secunties  and  Exchange
Commission’s (BSEL) guidelines. The Committae
comprises aof thiee members, of whom 2 e
Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the
Commattee 15 appointed by the Board of
Directors and is @ non-exacutive |n|:|E|:-E|ndent
Directoc The Company Secretary functions as
the Sacratary of tha Committee. Magtings af the
Commattee are artended by the Finance Directos
Head af Intemel Aucit and the Extarnal Auditors
o iritation. All membsers of the Committes ae
fmancially lizerats end able to interpret fnancial
statements and assess the adequacy of the
imternal contral processes.

Tha terms af reference of the Audic Committee
hag been determaned by the Board in accordance
with the Audit Committee Charter

Rale of the Committee

The Audit Committae's nke flows deactly fram the
Board's averssght function and it is authorised by
the HBoard to investigata any activity within its
remms of reference. The Committee reports
regulary to the Board on the performanca of the
activitieg it hag been assigned. The Committee's
miain raspansibditias include:

w Rgviewing the form and comtant and
muonitoring the integrity of the Company's
fnancial statemants;

= Muonitaring and reviawing the arrangements
far  enswing  the  objactivity  and
effectivaness of the external and intemal
audt functions;

= Racommending  to the Board the
appaintmant, ra-appaintmant ar removal af
the external auditors.

m Ravigwing tha sdequacy and affectivaness
of the Company’s intarnal controls and risk
managamant systam;

= Rgvigwing and monitoring the company’s
ethical standard, procadures for enswing
compliance with regulatory and fnancial
raparting requiremertts and its relationship
with the relavant ragulatary authurities;

w Parforming ather activities as raguestad by
the Boand of Directors.

Megtings and Attendance

In the year 2015, the Audt Commitzee mer four times. Al members were
present in all meetings of the Commirtee. The details of attendance of
each member of the Audic Commictee meetings in 2015, are as follows:

Audit tommittes Memaers Canegory Rumbaraf mectings|  Nestings

M. Mgl Khan, FO& Tnoazendent Mon-Esacanig [ F)
[erecior | Charran]

W1, W, Fyemezanen Her-Evpotive Diectar Ll 4

M1, W Azl Hug Managing limcio 4 4

M= Zinnia Tenzina Hug, Company Sacratary attendad all the mestings to
act a= the Secretary of the Audit Committee. She aleo attended the
mesting as the Finance Directar of the Company to give clarifications on all
financial matrers.

Ocher invitees to the meetings are the External Audioes, who have
attanded ane meeting and Manages, Internal Audit who haz attended all
meetings of the ypear.

Activities carried out during the year

In accordance with the “Audic Committes Charter’, governed by the BSEC
notification on Corparate Governance, the Audit Committae caried out its
duties tp work wpon areas that weme raised for consideration and
discussed to avaluate issues related to key evants of annual financial
reparting cycle.

Ouring the year 2015, the Audit Committes carmed out the foliwing
artivities:

1. Financial Reparting Assurance
= Reviewsd the quarterdy and annual financisl statements of the
Compary, inlight of the financial parformance of the Company.
= hzzesged the external auditors repart on all eritical accounting
pobciss, significant judgement and practices used by the Company
in producing the financial sratements.

2, Internal Control and Rigk Management Process
= Reviewsd the updated G5K internal control framesarnk
w  Apprased on the Bangladesh nsk management framewark
= Aszegsed the management process of investigations.

3, Inrernal Audit
= Assessed and endarsed the annual internal awdic plan 2015 in
areprdance with the annual phjectives and risks of the Company
m Reviewsd all fndings of the intemal audit function and the
caresponding management actans T impove the contmls

4, Exrernal Audit

= Resiewad the scope of the services to be provided by the external
apditors and did not approve any non-audit services to the external
auditars.

G5K
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m  Reviewed the axtemnal auditors findings of chservation and
the management’s respanse thereto and is satished that
the axtemal auditors remain ndepandent and that appra-
priate action is being taken on tme,

The committes & of the opnicn that adeguate contrals,
procedures and sk management are in place to provide reasanable
assurance that the Company’s assets ane safeguarded and that
the financial position of the Company is adeguately managed.

O behalf of the Audit Committee

Chairman
Bupdit Committe

(haka. March 20, 2016

62 GIK
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STATEMENT OF

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY EESme—

Directors statement of responsibility in relation
to the fnancial statements

The Directors are:

m ezponsible for enswing the maintenance of propar
accounting mecords, which disclase with reasonable
accuracy the financial pesition of the Company at any
time and from which financial statements can be
prepared to comply with the Comparses Aot 1894,
Hangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and the
Listrig Hegulations of the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
1394;

w eqquired by law to prepare financial statements for each
financial pariod which gree a true and fair view of the
state of affairz of the Company as at the end of the
financial period and of the peofit or loss for that period:

m ezponsible alse for ensuring the operation of systams
of internal conwol and For taking reasonable steps 1o
safeguard the assets of the Compary ard for preventing
and detecting fraud and other iregularities;

The financial statements for the year ended 51 December
206, comprising prncipal  financial statements  and
SUDPOTLing notes ane set out in This repoet.

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting policies
have been conmstently applied in the preparation of
financial statements, supported by reasonable and prudent
judpements and estimates as necessary:  apphcable
accounting standards have been followed, and the financial

statements have been prepaned on the going concesn basis.

The resporsdiliies of the auditars in melation to the
financial statements are set out m the independent
auditar mepot signed by the suditor and included in thes
report [page-B4).

The financial statements for the year ended 51 December
2016 are ncluded in the Annual Beport 2015, which =
published by the Company in hard-copy printed form and
made available on the Comparry's website.

Management Remuneration

Human Resources palicies & compansation raviews ara guided
thraugh the “Customer Board”. The Managing Direcror heads
the Customer Bosmd with members from  finence,
marufacturing, consumer heafthcare and human resources.
Tha Custamer Board provides guidelings far annuwal increment,
promotion and szandard of remunaration in line with budgat
provigiang.

Arnual appraisal of all employees’ perfarmanca iz made in
accardance with the Compary's established policy. Annual
ramunieration adjustmenits ara perfarmed thrawgh s systemaf
1#1 review [Manager recommends & Managers Manager
spproas). The abave country management approves the
remuneration of Managing Director, Executive Directors and
Saniar Managars.

Going Concern

After making engueies, the Directors have a reasonable
eapectation that the Company has adequate resouces 1o
coftnlg o aperational exetance for the foresesable future.
For this reasan, they continug to adopt the going cancemn
bagis in preparng the financial statements.

Internal Contral

Tha Board, through the Audic Committes, has eviewad the
agsassmant of risks and internal cantral framewark that
opesates in GlaxoSmithkling Bangladesh Limited and haz
considerad the affactivanass af the system of antemal
conted in aparation in the Company for the year coverad by
this report and up to the data of its spproval by the Board of
Dinsttors.

Annual Report

The Annual Repart for the year ended 31 December 2015,
comprising the Report of Directors and the Financial
Statemenits, hes been approved by the Board of Diectoes in
itz meating dated Sth March, 2016

G5K
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

T0 THE SHAREHOLDERS MEISsme--

W have sudited tha accomparnying inancial statamants of
GlaxeSmithkling Bangladesh Limited which comprise the
statement of fnancial position as at 31 Decamber 2015,
Income Statement, Statemant of Comprebensive Income,
statement of changes in eguity and statement of cash
floms far the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other axplanatery informatian for
the year then anded.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Mamagement is msponsible for the preparation and fair
presentatan of these fmancial statements in accoadance
with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Srandards (BFRS], the
Companies Aot 1994, the Securnes & Bochange Rules 1087
and  other apphcable laws  and  regulations  This
respansbilicy ineludes: designing.  implementng,  and
maintaining mternal contral redewant o the preparation and
far wepresentation of fisancial statements that ame froe
from manenal mes-statements, whether dug to fraud or
eifor; selecting and apphing appropelate accounting
policies and makng  accounting estimares that are
neagonable in the clicumstances.

Auditar's Responsibility

(e responshilin is to express an oginkon on these financial
sratements based on our audic. We conductid aur sudit in
aceardance with Bangladesh Standards en Auditing [B5A).
Thage standards meguiie that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perfarm the audic 1o abitain
eagonable, but not sheolute assiwance whether the
financial statements ane free from material mis-sTanement
duiz o fraud and esror.

An audit irvabées performing procedises to obtain audt
eiidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
sratements. The procedures selected depend on the
audter's judgment ncluding the assessment of the risks of
mareral mis-statement of the financlal statements,
whether due 1o fraud or e In makng those nsk
assssments, the auditor considers intemal  contiol
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
thi financlal statements in oider to design audic procedunes
that an approgriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpase of exgressing an apinion on the effeetveness of
the entitys ntemal control. An audic afsa includes
wvaluating the appeopriateness of accounting palicies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, o well g evaliating the sverall presentation
of the frnancial satements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is
sufficlent and appiopriate to provide 3 basig for ouF audt
ogirson.

64 GIK

Ogpimian

In our apinicn, the financaal statements of GlaxaSmithKline
Bangladesh Limited prapasd in sccordance with Bangladash
Financial Reporting Standards [BFRS], give a true and fair view
af the state of the company's affairs a5 21 3 December, 2015
and af the results of its operations and cash flows for the year
then anded and comply with the Companies Aet 1894, the
Sucurities and Exchange Rules 1967 and ather applicable laws
and regulations.

Emphasis of Matter
‘Withaut madfying our opinion as above, we draw attention 1o
the following point:

Nate # 304 to the fmancial statements whers managament
explains, the reasan for restatement of the comparative
figuies for the year ended 31 Decambes, 2014 by mecagnizing
expenses edated to pansion fund.

We also report that:

g] We have abtained &l the information and
explanatians which to the bast of our knowledge and
beliet wara necessary for the puposes of cur audic
and made dus verification thereaf;

B] In our apinicn, proper books of accaunt as required by
law have bean kept by GlaxcSmithkline Bangladash
Limited o far a5 it appeared from our examinatian of
thesa baoks;

t] The Companys statement of financial positan
[balance sheet] and incame statament (prafit and loss
sccaunt] dealt with by the report are in agreement
with the books of account and returns; and

d] The expenditure mcured was for the purpcses of the
Company’s business.

ACNABIN
Charterad Accountants

Dated, Dhake
24 February, 2016
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GlaxnSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at 30 Decamber, 2015

Taka in 000
At 31zt December

Notes 2015 2014
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment & B00.794% B4E.216
Intangible aEsets [X] 3437 43T
Dther meceivablas ] 10,370 FIRIER
14,600 78,305
Current Assets
Inwantories 5 852 278 SEE.OTE
Tradw and athes receivables i 1.2 347 1,06 408
[ash and cash equivakents 7 2 H0, 186 2537032
4347818 4450019
Total Asasts 5,562,418 5,028,322
Equity attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share cepital 15 120,465 120,465
Ratzined ezmings 17 2518694 2 068, 246
Ganaral resarv 5,000 5,000
Rrevaliation reserve 161 G847 hE.4TY
Capital reserve 16.2 166 1B
Tatal squity 2,603,804 2,253,956

Non-current liabilities

Deferad tan liabilicy 0 ] 96,765
Dbligation undar inance |exse 13 BaE 14,865
Retirament henefic abligatians 1 40,82 160,628
Total on-current liabilities &8, THT 201,258
Current liabilities
Trade and othes payshles 8 200272 2397518
Current tax lishilities ] 1 25681
Dhligation under finance lesss 12 6,052 8410
Total current liabilities 2,900,887 2,673,107
Total Liabilicies 2,958,814 2,774,388
TUTAL EDNTY AND LIABR ITIES REELAID 5028322
CONTINGENT LIARILITIES & COMMITMENTS Hal
Tha finarecial statemnants wene authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on 24 Febnmrg 2006,
: -,
_..Juﬁm.L . ("Q;
Directar Directar Director & Company Secretary
Repart of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
Thig is the Statement of Fnancial Positian refaned to in our report of even date.
ACNABIN
Dated, Dhaka Chartered Accountants

4 Fabrusry, 2016

GEE 65
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GlaxoSmichKline Bangladesh Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Far the year ended 31 Decamber. 2015

Taka in 1000

_ aar to 31st Decamber

Notes 205 201%
Gost of mles | i, [4,476.255]
Gross profit 2,536,531 2,710,570
Operating expenses:
Seling mpenses 2 [1.211 [1.305,494]
Distribution expenses bt} [20.458]
Administrative axpanses o [334,467]
Cithar income 25 12,887 11,474
Total 11,583, 918) (1,848, 440]
Profvt from operations 1,040,612 1,062,530
Finance income 26 T 18,773
Profit bafors takation 1,138,668 1,182,303
Income 1ax BEXpEnses H [307,6a0 366,526
Profit far the year H‘Iﬂ 826,778
Earnings per share [Taka)
Basic and diluted 7] 68.99 68,63
The accompanying notes farm an imtegral part of the financial statements.
The tinaincizl seatements wane suthorised for issusnce by the Board of Directors on 24 Fearuzang 2016,

M L ¥
T R
| :“ s,
Directar Director Director & Company Secratary
Report of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
Thig ig the Statement of Profit or Loss referred ta in owr rapart of even date.
ACNABIN
Dated, Dhaka Chartered Accountants

24 Febiuary 2006

17 GER
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GlaxoSmithKline Bangladesh Limited

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Forthe yesr ended 31 Decamber #2015

Taka in 000
Year ta st Decamber
2015 2014

Items that will not be reclassified subseguent by te profit or loss:

Remeasunement of defned beneht obligaion 14,2 2478 [16.862]
Items that may be reclassifed subsequently to profit or

loss:

Total comprehansiva incams for the year 855,788 809,818

The accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements,
The fnancial statements were authorsed for issuance by the Board of Drectors on 24 February, 2006

___;!;HLL z@i

Directar Directar Director & Company Secretary

Dated, Dhaka Chartered Accountants
24 Fabruary 2016

art of the Auditors to the Shareholdera:
Thig is the Statement of Comprehensive Income refared toin cur report of even date.

FER BT
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GlaxoSmichKline Bangladesh Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Far the year ended 31 Decamber. 2015

_ Yfaar to 315t Decambar
Share  Retained General Revaluation Capital Total

Balance at 31 Decembar 2013
Adjustment due ta recognitian af - [%6.579) - - - [55TE
pensan fund [net of tax]

Profit far the year = B26.TTR - - B26.778
Other comprehensive income [16,962] (16,962]
Final dividend 1l - [361,383) - - [361,393)
Frisfit_far the year - 431,078 - - 431,079
Other comprehensive income 24,718 24,718
Final drvdend 11 - [505.950] - - [505.850]
Balamce at H Decemnber 2016

The atcompanying notes fomm an integral part of the financial slalements.

The linancial siatements ware authoeised for issuance by the Board of Direchors on 24 Febnuary, 2016,

Sk SN ¥.

Directaor Directar Director & Company Secretary

Repart of the Auditors to the Shareholders:

This is the Statement of Changas in Eguity refered Lo in our report of even date,
ACNABIN

Dated, Dhaka Chartered Accountants
24 Fabruary 2016
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GlaxoSmithkline Bangladesh Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the yesr ended 31 Decembear 2075
¥aar to 31=t Dacembar
Notes 2016 2014

Collection from ravenue 6,504,826 E.6E3, 48

Payment for cost and expenses [5,258,220) [5, 285, 507)

Other income pis) 6,895 821

Cash pererated from ogerations 1:203 603 1,396,452

Interest raceived 2 101,365 122 865

Intarest paid ] _[3,308] [3.087)

Income tax paid a (374 815) [177,483)
Net cazh from operating sctivities 1,018,841 1,338, T42
Aequisition of property plant & squipment [177583) [118.652)
Sales proceeds of property, plant & equipment. 4.4 10,668 B72&
Net cash used in investing activities [168,815) [108,924)
Disidend paid [381.383)
Finance lease paid m [11.082)
Net cash used in financing activities (515, 860) [372,485)
Net increase in cash and cash squivalents 334,168 856,333
Cash and cash squivalents at beginning of the year T 032 1,680,653
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year i 2,871,188 2,637,038

The accompanying notes form an invegral pant of the financial statements.
The fingncial statements were awthorised forigsweance by the Board of Directars an 4 Febnary, 2016,

,-jb:ll-li AZP

Dirsctar Dirmctar Director & Company Secretary

Dated, Dhaka Chartered Aecountants
2 Fehnsrg 2006

Repart of the Auditors to the Shareholders:
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred To in aur repart of gven dare.

GER
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GlaxoSmithkline Bangladesh Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forthe yesr ended 31 Decambe; 2015

1
11

1.2

.1
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L2
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The Company and ite nature of hullnns

The Compa

GlemSmithkline  Bangladesh  Limited (the
ﬂurnmL:] was incorparated on 25 February, 1974
a3 a public limited company and e listed with

Dhaka Stock Exchange Limitad, The Company |s a
subsidiary of GlaxoSmithk line Ple, UK through i
fully owned subsidiary Setfrst Limited, UK

Nature of business

The principal activitiesof the Compsany throughaut
the year continwed to be manufacturing  end
marketing of phammaceuticals, vaccines and
cansumer healthcars producta.

Basis of preparation of financlal statements
Fimaneial statemants
Composithon

Thi financial statements comprize af :
Statement of Financial Pogition
Statement of Profit and Loss
Statement of Comprehengive Inpome
Statement af Changes in Equity
Sratemeant af Cash

Motes to thi Financial Stataments

Statement of camplisnce

The financlal statements have been |i|ra|nm:l i
accardance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Srandards [BFRSs] and the relevant requirements
aof the Schedule to the Securties & Exchan
Rules, 1687, che Leting Regulations of Dha
Stock Exchange Limited, 1938 and of the
Companies Act 1084,

Fimancial pariod

These financdal statements cover the financial
year from 1 January to 31 Oecembear 2015, with
comparative figures for the financlal years from 1
January to 31 December 2014.

Basis of measurement

These fnancial statements hewa been prepared
under the ‘historcal cost' convention except
far certsin operating fmed assats which ware
muﬂwdlnll#lﬂ

Functional and pressntation curmency

These financial statements am presemted in
Bangladash Taka which i the functional and
presentation cumency, Figures have been munded
aff to the nearast thousand Taka, unless stated
otheraise,

Uss of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
confarmity with BFRS raguines managamant to
make judgements. estimates and sssumptions
that mfluam:a the application of accounting and
reported amounts of assers. lisbilities, income
and expenses. Judgemants and astimates
ae based on historical experiences and other
factors. inchuding expactations that ans balievad
tn be reasonahle under the circumstances. Hence,
attual enparianca and rasult may diffar from these
judgements and estimates,

314

Estimates and undestying Bssumptions e
reviewed on an ongoing baste, Revissong to
Bccounting estimates are recognisad inthe period
In which the estimate is revised IF the revision
affects mrg that periad, or in tha perind of the
reviston and futune periods i the revsion affects
both curent and future periods. Infoemation
about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
end critical judgements: in applying accounting
policies that have the signficant an the
smount= ecagnised in the financial statements
e MENTion how:

Policy Bote
Pmparry; plant & equipment- 301 [
Pmparty; plant & equipment-  3.3.1 4
Dapreciation
Valuztion of inventaries 34 5
Daferred tax 362 1]
Impairment of property, plant 3.2 LT
& aguipmant
Employes benefit llabdities 16 1]
Amartigetian 312 43

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment [FPAE)

Property, plant and equipmeant is stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
imgairment. Capital wark-in-progress is stated at
cost,

Effectiva from  January 3013, &l pessonal
o [Deskiop, Laprop, Mate Bogk,
Monitor) ane changed off as revenug axpanditurs.
PCe purchased up to 31 Decembsar 2012 were
capitalised and will continue to ba depreciaced
ower the remaining useful life of the PCs,

Maintenance and nammal repairs are expensed as
incurred whila majar ranewals and improvements
are capitalised.

Intangible asaets

“Intargible Assets mpresent cost incurned for
acquiring and dewvelaping computer softwan
for Enterprise Resources Planning (ERP] of
manufacturing aperations of the compary whess
the softwars  supports @ significant business
gystam and the axpanditurs leads to the creation
of a duable assat. ERP systems softwan
genenally involves significant customisation peior
to implamentation and is expected to hawe a
uesaful econamic ife of seven years.
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Impairment of PPAE

The camying values of all PREE ara reviewed for
impaimment on anrwal basis to assess whether
there is any indication that the assets might be
impaired. Any pravision for impaiment is changed
to the Statemerit of Comprehensive Income in the
year concemed.

There is no impsimment in 3015 and 2015,
Depraciation

Depreciation is provided on straight line mathod
at the apaual rates shown bakow and leasehold
fand is amartised annually in such a mannwer that
atthe end of the period of lease the land is
fully amartised -

Caregory of PREE Rate %)
Freahold buildings 26
Plant and machinary 510&32.33
Fumniture, fitures  and WIEEETS
equipment

Computers 26,3333 & 100
Vehicles ]
Depreciation on additions made during the
yoar is charged from the manth i which the

nawly acquired assets are put into commancial
operations. Depreciation on disposal of propesty,
plant and equpmeant is made up to the month
prior to the dispasal.

Depraciation method, useful lves and residual
walues am reviewad at sach reporting date.

Amortization of intangible aseets
Amortisation is caloulated to write off the cost
af the intangilile fiued assats, using the straight-
ling bagie, owver their expected useful lves. The
normal expacted ussful life of computer softwars
&= reviewed annually and is T years.

Basis of valuation of inventories

Category Basts of valuation

Finigheed products  and | At the kower of costand

‘Work-irprocess net redissble walue The
cost includes allacation
of production meheads
that relate ta hringing
the Inventonies to
pregent condicion  and
loeation.

Bew  and  packsging | At the lower of cost and

matenale nat reslisable valua.

Stowes and spanes At the lower of weighted
awTage  ¢ust and net
malsable walue.

Materisly & stones in- | At cost including related

transt charges.
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7
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Retiremant banefit echamas

Gratuity fund:

The Company cperates an unfunded gratuity
scheme, prevision in respect of which is made
annually covering all its  eligible permanent
employees othes than the management staff.

Penglan fund:

The Compary contributes [besed on actusdal
waluation of 2015) to 8 recognisad persian fund
which is operated for its eligible permanent
management staff. The fund has now been closed
b new entrants joining the Company an and after
1 September H12.

Provident fund:

The Company maintaing contributorny recognised
prowident funds for itz eligible permanent
employees.

[anation

Income tax expenss raprasents the sum af the tax
curmantly payable and deferned tan

Current tax

Prowision for current years tawation is hasad
on the ekements of income and expenditure
&= mported in the financial statements and is
computed in accordance with the provisions of
the Finenca Azt /Ordinance.

Deterred tax

Defesred income tax i proviced in full, using the
liabikty mathod, on temporary diffenences aresing
between the rax bases of assers and abllities
and theli carging amounts in the financial
statements, Curnently enacted tax ranes are wsed
in the devemmination of defemed income T

Doferrad tax kabilicies are necognised for al
temporary tacable Bfferences.

Deferred ran assets ane moognised to the extent
ehar it i3 prskabde that future taxable prafic will be
available against which the remparary diffenences
can b wriliged.

Fareign curmencise translation / tranasction
Foseign currency receipte and paymeants during
the year ara translated at the exchange rate
ruling an the transaction date. However, sssets
end liahilities at the raporting date am converted
at tha rate existing on that date.

Revenus recagnition

Reverne represents product inviscad during the
yearto customers net of value added tax, rebates,
diseounts and commission

Leases

Leasas are classified a5 finance laases whenever
the tarms of the lease transfer substantizly al
the risks and rewands of awnership ta the lessas.
Al other laases an classifiad 25 oparating lease.

5K
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Dividend distribution

Dividend  distribution to  the Compamy's
shareholders is recognised as a lisbilty in the
financial statements in the perod in which
the dividends are approved by the Compamvy's
sharefalders,

Eamings par share

The Company calculates its aarnings per shara in
actordanta with B‘-aniadmmm Srandard
[BAS-33) which has been shawn on the face of
Statamant of Profit or Loss.

Baglc samings

This represents aamings for the year attributable
to ordinary shareholders. Az thes were no
preference shares requiring returns or dividends,
minarity interast or extraardinary items. the net
prafic after tax for the year hag been considered
a8 fully actributable to the ordinary sharehalders.

Basic eamings per share

This has been calculated by dividing the basic
earnings by the weighted average number of
ardinary shares autstanding during the year

Diluted eamminge per share

Mo diluted eamings per share i required to ba
calculated per uar as there was no scope for
dilurian during the year.

312 Offsetting

13

ER L

GER

Financlal assets ard llabdities are offset and
the net amount i reported In the financial
statemants anly when there Is legally enforcaable
right oo set-off the recognized amounts and the
Company Intends efther to sette on 3 net bass,
of to reallze the assets and to setths the llabilites
simultaneaushy,

Materiality and aggregation
Each marenal class of smilar items is presented

saparately in the fnancial statements. Hems
of dissimilar natwe or function ae presented
saparately unless they are immaterial.

Restatement of comparative figures

The Company has been recognizing expenses
related to pension fund tothe extent that it made
payments to the fund wtil year 204, Since
20N, pursiant 10 & decision of the management,
pension fund assets, obligation, cumwlative
deficit akong with defemed tax on the deficit Is
being recognized in the financaal statements,
Az such, the comparative figures for Retrement
Benefit Obfgation and cpening balance Retained
Eamnings of FY 2014 have been restated.
Retirement benefit obligation hes increased by
BOT, 83,387 (Taka'000] and retaned eamings of
FYf 2014 has decreased by BOT, 62541 (Takal00)
[ret of tax] respectively, Comparative figures for
Defarred tax hatilities also has besn restated and
decreasad by BOT, 20,847 [Taka 00OL



& Proparty, Plant and Equipment
4.1 The following iz the statement of property, plant & equipment

Taka in 000
2015
Gross book valus Dupreciation Carrying
at cost f valuation _ _ _ value
Opening [ Additions: | Disposals | Clesng  Opening | Charged [Disposals| Closing Az at 3
Transfers Dec
At cost
Freehald land 22 Pl - - Fril}
Lezsehald lands f18 [k 174 i 11 438
Freshald buildings | 142 681 - 142681  BOS4T) 3285 B4,232 TH.448
Plant and B32385) 86263 TIBEAE  303.421) 4BUIE4 442,506 276063
meaC i gy
Furniture, fixtures | 208,322 22218 LEN| 2683  16115) 20412 3,175 133,351 83,588
& equipment
Vehicles 262 864) 26,159 35406 BN2A18 | IS167B| 46 ETT|  3R15H| 164697 77 422
128082 | 133,640 GO006( 1330727  TE2ZA6) NIBIGE| 6433 AO06047  GRGAB0
Capiral wark-in- 20279 84419 4005 65160 - 8,160
progress _ _
1.268,3M( 8568 BOOG3) 1306857 TR 236) 1MB045|  36.333[ A0S 047 51 840
At valuation - in
73
Freahald land 4831 483 - - & 831
Lezzahwld land 12 12 12 - 12 -
Freehold buildings | 45,747 45 7T 412640 103 42,370 3317
Plant and EECH 1,887 B 678 - B 575 120
A hin ey
Furneture, fistures 1460 1481 1.#HE| 1,466 25
& equipment
59478 . 5a479 [ saan] 1128 - E0.525] B.054
205 1,417,850 218,659  B80,043(1,6456,368 771,634] 119, 36,333| 856,672  &00,784
201% 1,206,631] 72638 101,220] 1,317,850 118 18,017] 771,634 548,716
&2 The depreciation charge has been allocated to
Notws  2005]  20)
Cast of sales 2 68,306 5,336
Sellng expenses 22 21,336 32,626
Distribution expenses 2 2136 1,807
Administrative axpanses 2y 19,782 18,798
Intercampany 23 216
1 LERTIR
4.3 Fully depreciated assets - ot cost _ 256,260

GER
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4.4 The following property, plant & eguipment were disposed off during the year

Taka ir 000
Items Cost or | Accumulated I:m;hg Salw Maode of Particalars of
valuation | depreciation |  valus procesds  disposal purchasers
Plant and machinery -
Fumiture, fixtures and &80 3175 1,426 24| Co. policy Management Staff
equipment _ _
A0 4,178 1,426 G20
Vehicles 36,40 32158 3,246 IIJ.IHEl La. policy Management Staff
36,50 32,168 4 256] 10,045
015 10,005 15,313 4672 10,669
2014 2,871 13,000 1,318] 4,220

Taka in 000
AL 3131 Decamber

Sinventories

Finishad products

2015 204

374,698

300,748

Raw and packing materals

2fits, 360

11568

Work-in-process B2 478 147737
Stores & sparas 19,657 20,367
In transit - matarials and stores 112,586 134, B30

22,278 866,070

& Trade and othar receivables

6.1 Tha make-up of

Trade meetvables - unsecuned 1,035,893 HENLEIE
Intercompany receivables B1.0M8 SB.TEE
House building loan to amaloyees 1,514 2,001
Dithars 17 622 14 485
11E.04T 364,146
E.2 Prepayments
Suppliers 8,036 10,588
ranzal 19,724 20,08
Em phryeiss 7103 6370
VAT 58,580 30706
Sacuity deposits 1527 2,848
Dthars 13N 1,130
108,256 20,76
1,224,342 1,0%4%,808
6.3 Ochers inclede intesest accrued on investments - dug = -l
- nat due 18,067 14,333
18,062 15,833
G5 Thess includs aggregate amaunt dus by the managars and officers
af the Company 1103 6,370
6.5 The maxmum aggegate amount due by the managers and
officers of the Company at the end of ary manch during the yaar 18,376 18,207
6.6 Dther recenvables reslizable or adjustable after twelve months from
the reparting date
House huilding loan s.ﬂ 7.418]
Rantal 4857 0294
10,370, 20718

L GER
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[aka in 000

_ At 31zt December
Notes 2015 2014
7 Cagh and eash equivalents
Term depasits with scheduled commerial banks By, 200 195824
Special Notice Deposit [SND) accounts with scheduled 28,003 24287
commarcial banks .
Current account with scheduled commercial banks 457512 553,000
Cashin hand 293 514
2,871,158 5,531,032,
8.1 The make-up of
Trade payables 1457 243 1,132 204
Expenses 1,127,385 1107740
Dther finance 115,421 82,104
Unclaimed dividand 6313 5288
Capital gxpendituras 3410 Bu82
210272 2,397,518
8.2 Payables for expenses include sacured items worth - 1,760
8.5 Thesa inchide che following tems:
Deposits = 434
Tan deducted at sounca 18,652 BRI
Excisa duty - aor
(cher 46.7689 [T-RE:
115,621 B3 184
Opening balance 226,681 G2.211
Provided durng the yesr a1 3504563
503,165
Paid during tha year 177,483
Closing balance 235,881

GER 75
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10 Deferred tax liability .

Year 2015

Defemed tax relating to items of profit or loss

Praperty, plant and eguipanent 533,862 415
Prvision fior grauity 483 g [1.483]
Nat taxable bamporary difference &
Applicabls tax rate 26.00%
Deferred tax labiling relating to frems of profit or less at the end of 1,718
the year [a] .
Deferred tax lishiliny relating ta icems of profit or pez at the 4 612
beginning of the year

Deterrad tax expansa racognized in prof or [oss 3 [3%,852)

Taka in 000
Ar 31et Dncember

Ei

Deferred tax asset relating to items directly recognised in other
comprehansive incoms _
Actisanal gain/ [loss] directly recognized in other comprehengive 32,58
incoame

Applicabls tax rate

Defarrad tax lishility relating ta itams diractly racognized in other

FL Y

8,280
comprehensive income at the and of the year [b)

Defarred tax asset relating to ivems directly recognized in other [20,848)

[12,807)

(B87),

8
g|

comprehensive income at the begirning of the yiar
Deferred tax income recognized in ather comprehensive income

Mot deterred tax [assets] [ liability (a+h)

Year 2014

Deferred tax relating to iteme of profit or lses N

Praparty, plant and aguipment 04,11 311,367 196,804
Prgvision Far gratuity 8473 [8,473]
Met taxable temporary difference 188,33
hpplicabla tax rate 24.75%
Defarrad tax lishility relating to items of profit or loss at the and of 4§ 512
the yaar [a]

Deferred tax llablling relating to ftems of profit or less at the JE038
beginning of the year [restated] -
Deferred tay expenss recopnzed in profit or loss kil 14,572

Defarred tax asset ralating to items directly recognised in other
comprahensive income

Actuarial gan, (loss) directly recognized in other comgrehensive (22540
i

Applicable tax rate 24.75%
Detarred tax asset relating to itams directly recognizad in other [5.579]

camprehensive income at the end of the year

Nefarred tax assat relating to itames diractly racogrized in other 5267
comprehensive income at the beginning of tha year N
Oeferred tax income necognized in other comprahenshe incom: [20,846]
Mot deferred tax [assats] / liability 25,765

16 GER
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Taka in ‘000
_ At 305t Decambaer
Notes 205 2014
0 Dividends |
Shansholding details 16.3 Final for 2015 Final for 2014
.1 Paid
a. Setfirst Limited, UK
GBP 3,024, 963.07 (2014: GEF 2,009,036.08 ] 414,756 206,254
b._Invastrent Corporation of Bangladesh 53184 3T B20
. _General public 30140 0257
d. Sadharan Bima Comporation .10 2,243
g._Other local financial [ securities companies i 550 4779
L —
1.2 Unedaimed - om account of Bang adeshi sharehobd srs
Priar year 1,506 1,582
Years prios ta that 5,067 3404
6513 5,286

12 Dividend per share

The dividends for 2014 paid n 2015 ware Taka. 506,951 [Taka'D00) (Th.42 per shara]. A dividend in respect of 2016 of Tk 55
per shan, amounting to  total dividend of Teka 662 555(Taka 000) is to ba proposad &t the Annual Ganaral Masting an 21

Aol 2016 These financial statemants do not reflact this dividand payabla.
13 Obligations under finance lease

Amount payable under financs lease:

Within one yaar (L] 13,033
In the second to ifth years inclusve 10,525 18,756
17,714 3,788
Liezs : Future fnance charge T 7,012
Presant valua of leasa abligations 164,865 24,775
Less : Amount dus for serthement within 12 maonths E.052 2810
[shawn under current lizhilities)
Ampant due far sertlamant after 12 monthes 8,813 14,888

Itizthe Dumpangs ﬂuliql to lease Moror Viehicles abave certain amaunt under fnance leases. The lease term is & years.
For the year end 31 December 2015, the average effective bonmwing rate was 15.28%. Interest rates are foed at the
mmrlar.'r date. All leases are on 3 fwed repayment basis and no amangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments:

Al lnaza pbligations are denominated in Taka.

The Company’s obligations under finance lease ane secured by the lessor's charges over the leased assets.

14 Retimmeant banefit obligations

14.1 Gratuity bl 7724
14.2 Net pension fund 83,387
50,833 160,628
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Taka In 000

At 31zt December

_Notes 25 2014
18,1 Gratuity

QOpering bakance 7r.24 61,468
Prowision made during the year 5,588 8,506
Paid during the yeas [11,538]] [12.733])
[6,748) [4228)
Closing balance Tm ??m

This reprasents total liability of the Company on aceount of gratuity that would be payable if all elighle emphoyees
rtire: at the end of the yaar

142 Punsbon Fund
Met pen=ion fund
Defined benafit obligation T ATBETE
Plan assets 285 fEh 200,188
Mt funded status [30.871] B3, 387

The sctuarial valuation of pension fund was carmied out &t December 31, 2015.The Propected Unit Credit Methad,
using the fallawing significant financial assumptians has been used for the sctuarial valuation :

5 %

Discount rate 3 &
Expected rata of increasa in salaries Fi 7
Expected rate of mturn on plan assets B B
Mevement in the present valus of defined benefit oblig ation
Opaning hakanca 2795715 328812
Cusrent service cost 12443 13,958
Intermst cost 40,366 2113
Actuanal [gein]/ loss on chligations [16,838) 28,083
Benefits paid (10 553) (28,4685)
Present valug of defined benedit obligation 364,906 ATETE
Mavement in the fair value of plam assets
Opering halanca 256,138 217,153
Expected retum on plan assets #3686 207
Actiearal gan /(loss] 18,122 5,042
Contributian by emplayer 100,215 18,506
Benefits paid [40,553) (28,465)
Fai vabue of plan assets 306,666 286,188
Met acturial gain (loss]
Actuanial geinf [loss] on ohligations (28,083)
Actuaal ganf (loss] on Fa walui of plan aseets 16,122 & bk

32,358 [22,641)
Defarred tax on acturisl gain/ [ss) [8.240] 5578

28,719, [16,962)

A5 par the last audited balance sheet of GlaxoSmichEline Bangtadash Limited Pension Fund as of 31 December, 2016
the total fund stands at Tk, 395,668 [Tk. 0007 [2006%: Tk. 206.188) [ Tk.000] represented by sssets invested maink
in Treasury Eills.

i GER
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Takain 000
At 315t December

20,000,000 Shares of Tk 10 each 200,000 200,000
15.2 lsswed, subscribed amd id - u
lszued For eash
350 Shares of Tk 10 esch in 1974 Ol i
4943848 | Shares of Tk 10 each 8s rights issue 48,440] 44,440
5944 209 58,54 484y
Iggued for congideration other than cash
3,787,650] Shares of Tk 10 each in 197% 37,876
E.‘.iﬁlﬁﬂg Shares of Tk 10 each as banusissus 33,145 33,145
02,150 oM 1104
12,048 48 120,485 120,465
153 Pasition of shares helding

The compoesion of share holdaers at 31 December warms:

%eof Mo, of Hof No. of
Holdings Shares  Holdings Shares
& Setfrst Limived, UK .88 SETE, 04 B1.98 HTE 1 88,752 88,752
b Investment Corporation
of Bangladesh [ICB] & ICE Linit
and Mutual Funds 12.37 1490658 10.85 1.257.175 14907 12572
. Genersl public 407 43050 B.98 TEE LX) 768
d. Sadharan Bima Corporation 063 TEANT 063 76437 164 TR
o Dther lncal institutions .95 114,366 DET B8.650 1,104 86

00.00 12,048,548 10 12,066,649 120,465 120,565

154 ChasalfSeating of aharelesbders by bolding:

Haldings Numbaer of halders: Total boldings%
T 2014
Leas then 500 shares BT 543 043 05s
500 to 5,000 shares i " 1.02 1.2
5,001 to 10,000 shares 20 12 1.28 0
10,001 to 20,000 eheses 3 B 0.35 .62
20,001 to 30,000 shares ? 1 0.4 0.18
30,001 to &0,000 shanes 1 1 0.7 ()
40,001 to §0,000 gheves 2 - i3 -
50,007 to 1,00,000 ghaves 3 & 218 248
100,001 to 1,000,000 shans 3 3 1.3 11.86
Qe 1,000,000 shares 1 1 B1.98 8198
758 T8 10000 100.00

GER ]
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&0

15.5 No. of shares held by the members of t he Company Executive Committes ;

No. of shanes
Mr. M Azizul Hug Managng Director 200
Mr. A.K.M.Firoz Alam  Director, Human Resaurces 50 50
Taka in 000
_ AL 3158 Decamber
Notes o5 2014

18.1 Revaluation msarve
Opering bakance | 50,.478]

Adjustment mada on account of dispasal of revaluad
assers

Closing balance &1 59,478 59,478

The balance rapresants swpluz arsing from the revaluation of fixed assets carried out in 1978.
18.2 Capital resarve

Opering bakance 166 166
Adjustment for the year = s
Closing balance 166 166

Thig is the balance of surplus of assets over Babilities as ar 28 February 1874 after issue of shares thend against,
m_ 2,418,694 2,068,846

Retainad sarmings include capital gain net of tax af The 191,441 thawsand arizing out of disposal of Bogra,
Chittzgong and Dhaka propertias, This is nat remittable until the Bangladesh Bank's estriction therson is waivad.

18 Contingen liabililies

3. Guarantess Esued by the Company's scheduled
bank to thind parties on cownter - indemnities given by

the Comparry against the bark's limit of T, 15 millon, 1,383 1,268
Lesgs than 1 year 934
1t0 3 years 833
3 to 5 yaars 362

b, Excise dury on sale of cemain guantity of Mycil
powder effected afver 10 September 1881 which would
be payable if the case presently pending with  the
hon'ble High Court Division of the Supreme Court of
Bangladesh (s decided against the Company. BT3 a7
c. An ex-gxecutive of the Lompany filed & case in the
Lower Court against the Company for compengation
of Tk. 0.8 million as claimed by the plainciff due T
vermination of his sences from the Compary. The
Company filed an appeal in the Higher Court agamnst the

werdict passed by the Lower Court. 10.800 10,800
d. Thera were no other claims egainst the Company not - -
ackrowledged as debits.

13,056 12,851

& Capital axpanditura

Contracted but not_providid for in these accourts 181 33,422
Authansed but nat_contracted 16,802 -
b. L/ Dutstanding 545,183 525,085
B43,4H, 558,508

GER
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204
Unit_Quantity Takain'000 Quantity Takain'0dd

leoms
4. Pharmaceuticals
Local Market
Tablers and Capsules Million 14 BT 642 il 613,466
Topicalz Tonnie 218 584,153 200 560,855
Wials and Dropa Thatszaned 1.2 488,603 1.213 438,188
(ral Liquids Kilokitre 263 121,053 276 126,513
Granules Trnru 1 1815 i 18,680
Inbaless Theasand [i]:<] 318,047 TE8 EIrCHI]
2,151,183 2,075,534
Contract manufscturing - .
Export
Tabilat Millign 113 47,871 52 35,473
Granules Tonre g 10.421 3 4,768
Piorwdier Tonng ] = 15 1,876
f8.362 42,606
2,008 585 2,118,138
b, Cansumar Healthcare
Powder Tonng BOM  5.397.003 9377 4591843
Qiral Thenesaned 882 22,241 &3 7,143
b 480 My 5,069,085
B,f98, 028 1,187,225
Taka In 1004
Notes 2014
Cagt of products manufactured:
Fraw and packing materials consumed 40
Dpening invantories 389,184 12,780
Purchazad during the yaar 2.7HE.810 3,038,870
4,188,008 3,652,660
[osing inventories [320,54t5] [384,156)
2,767 &2 3,263,464
Manufacturing expanses:
Salarias, wages and walfare 20B.290 177,634
Contributions to retinement benefit scheme 13,378 13,540
Diepraciation 42 £9.0890 6,334
Amartisation on intangibhe assets 43 1083 1,083
Fued and pawar 34,128 33,878
Tranlling and training 8.820 4,204
Communication a7 i
Computer expenses 3,616 168
Buiildirg mairtenance G314 16,854
Machinary and othar maintananca 19,382 15,285
Stores and spares consumed i} 16T 18,767
Contract manufacturing tranapartation charges 376 313
Insurance 2,596 2410

GER
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Natas
Rent, rates and taxes
[Hfca expenses
Motar running expenses
(ther expenses
lpening invantory of work-in-process
Cloging imventory of work-in- pmcess
pening inventory of finished products
Lost of finished pmducts purchased 1A
Finished products svsilable
Llasing wnventary of finished products F]
Replacement. medical attention, and other Bsues ]
4,085,207 44T, 255
22 Galling oxpensas B _
Salarins, wages and welfan 461,318 338,763
Contributions o retiement benefit scheme 18,838 17242
Advertisgment and sales promation 781,461 BS0.250
Hiealith Cars Drganisation (HOO] support axpansa 1,116 Bf2
Hiesalth Cant Profiessionals [HCF] axpense 156 1428
Trevelling & training BE452 60,200
Phygickan samyples 7436 26,154
Professional hooks 1822 A
Communications 3,246 117
Confesence and seminar 10,234 30,089
Mitar running expanses 16,135 16,432
Depeaciatian 42 21356 d2 626
[fice eapenses 10,230 BLOST
Ingurangs 1557 2411
Lomputer expanses 15,188 B12
Othar axpanzes T80 1,626
Prometional aliowance [143,021) {114, 328]
131,660 1,305,486
_
Salaries, wagns and welfar (L 5,115
Cantributions to retirement benefit scheme bad 34
Handling, freighit and transport 1] 114
Reypairs and maintanance ] 2203
Motor running expenses 2hh a3
Deprecagtion 42 2,135 1.807
Stock keeping charges 6,550 BB
Cammunicationg & 7]}
Ingurande bih 28
(ffice expenses 1,761 FALES
[thar axpensas [ 425
18,589, 20,4580

B? GER
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Netes

Salarias, wages and walfare 159 BAT 147831
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme LI 9,454
Motor running apenses 16,20 14,482
Dapreciation 6.2 19,782 18,758
Communications 3,691 381
Comguter expenses 028 2.4%
Trawelling and training 16,748 h.826
Insurance 3804 3889
Repsirs and maintenanca &, 089 7,167
Lagal and piofessanal faes 18,170 1204
Subscrptions 2 218
Entertainment expenses 2,378 2,208
[iffice Expenses 7,860 B,379
Bank chargas 150 164
Fieent, rates and tanes 40,605 38,503
Fuel and pawer 1406 3420
Danations S0 -
Dimectoss’ fees 260 160
Waorkess profit particip atlon fund 5850 52226
Cammunity partnarship 1914 243
[ithar expanses 3276 1,468
375,738, 334,461

Profit on disposal of_property plant end_equipment: 5897 3768
Scrap sakes and other income B.52H B.211
Prafit on sale of oncalopy assets Lo -
12,852 1873

The profit on sale of oncology assets comesponds to the consideration recetved by the company as per the agreement
with Novartis Bangladesh, &5 a part of the global transaction between GEK Ple and Novartis A5, on sell of its marketed

oncoligy 2ssets to Novartis Bangladesh,
26 Finance incoms and cost

Interest_income on:

Term depaosit 100,833 122,383
Special Motice Deposit [SNO) 42 49
Housing loan to employees 450 433
101,365, 122,865

Intarast expense an: B |
Bank gverdraft [185] [59]
Leasing [3.123] [3.043]
[3,308], (302,

Net finance income 88,067 118,773
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27 Business segments infarmation

Notes  Pharmaceuticals Consumer haaltheare Total
Gross revenue - nat of trade 2465205 22TT4TE S 240532 BAT342E  T,T05837 B.250,BEZ
discount & commiz=zian
VAT _ [256801) [231.040) _ [T61,348) [B32.487) [1.007,008) [1.063.637)
Revenus 2 2208504 Z046.205 4080044 5160020 E.E38.838 7187105
Cost of sales N [L7IE298) [1653741) [2348002] (2B23514) [4 084 307) [4476.955)
Gross profit 493,288 392,655 2,141,241 2,318,416 2,634,531 2,710,870
Assete and liabllities
Sepmant assets [excludes cash
and cash egquivalents 1,326,083 1,674 854075 BI6TEG _ 2ES1ZE1 2491290
Sagment Exbilities [axcledes
tas liabilities] TEILZE  RA2 243 1OBIB38 1803001 2RS0T 2486144
Taka in 000
Notes |
28 Auditors’ muneration i
Audit fre B00 [0
husdit of prowident, pengzion and waorkers” profit participation |
& walfere funds and special_cerifications ] 7]
B70 E70
20 Remunaration of Directors, Managers and 0fficers
20.1 The datsils
Daectoes  Man Total  Diec- Manapgars Total
&ng:; to0s &l‘h‘ﬁgm
Remuneratian 50813 §16.536 457260  3OB0Z  BOR2ER 434,000
Huigirg:
Rant 5589 83,582 0,181 5716 75,679 B1,395
Uiilicies 2734 204080 32143 3,286 26613 29898
8333 12881 12239 4002 102282 | 111284

Contribution to retirement benefic schams 3,557 24,762 28,318 4,638 28433 33,51

Leave passage 306 10,002 13,063 ] 11,361 11,851
Medical ki 17,6688 18012 415 15,841 15,856
(ther [ 4,650 3,877 187 13 2050

38,315 SE3.519  B%2E3%  B435% BSOS G102
Humber b GHE Gaz b G20 G2k

28,2 The Company based an respective employment terms having specified limits provides the following benefits :

i. Diractars - The Managing Directar and the expatriate Bxecutive Diractor wene provided with free furmished
accommadation and a chauffeur driven full tme vehicla. The othar two Executive Directors ware provided with a
full time vehicle with a drivar’s costs and cartain howss fumitune and equipmant.

ii. &Il the managers, in defined grades, are provided with full time car and certain house fumiture and equipment.
10 Number of employess engaged

The Company amaloyed 306 [20t4: B22) permanent employees and a varying numbsar af casual and tamporary warkers
a= required. All permanent employeas receive total remuneration in axcess of Tk 36,000 par annum.
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31 Income tax expenss | Notes | |

Curment tay 8 |
Deferred tax 10 [34,841) 14,572
207,580 256,525

32 Helated Party Disclosures

During the year the Company caried cut 2 number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business
and on an arms’ length basis. The name of these related parties, nature of these transactions and their tatal value have
heen set out in accardance with the provisions of BAS-24: Related party disclosure.

Nams of the party Mature of transaction Wature of edation | Trams- | Transaction
ship action valus
walue | Receivable)
Takain | [Payable)

000 | Takain ‘000

GlexnSmithkling Services Unfim- | Inter Camparry Sarvices/Fees, | GEX Group Company 15,023 582

ited, UK Meeting, Traming and Seminar

GlaxoSmithkline Biologicals 5.4, | Impoet of finished products, (G5 Group Company | 219,838 [21,347]

Belgum gmmutmnal allowance &

ervice fae

GlexoSmithkling Consumer Impost: of raw & finished G5K Grawp Com 539,975 (103, 547)

Healthecara, India p"rl?duntu P

GlaxeS mithkline Pakistan Lim- Inter Company Services/Fees | G3K Group Company 1,833 1,833

ited, Pakiszan and Others

GlaxeSmithkling Pte Led., Sin- Intar Company Meating, Train- | GSK Group Company 12 (73]

gapare ing and Sarminar

GlaxoSmithkline Export Ltd., UK | Impost of raw & finished G5K Growp Company | 378,257 [4B.278]

praducts and prameational
allowance

Eiadnnsmitmma Trading Sarvices | Inter Comparty eapost sales 5K Growp Company 58,524

Ltd, UK

SmithKline Beacham Bangladesh | Inter Company Sarvices G5K Growp Company Z,002 130.267)

[Pye] Limited

SmichKline (Cambadia) Ca, Inter Company Services (GEK Growp Company 200

Cambodia

GlaxpSmithkline CH Pra Ltd. Inter Company Sarvices G5K Growp Company T 465 1455

Burraughs Wallcome & Co. [Bang- | Inter Comparry Sarvices G5K Growp Company 8.HE {30,515

ladesh] Ltd.

33.1 Transactions with rekated parties were canied out on commercial terms and conditions and at prices agreed
based on intercampany prices.

There ig no dilutive effect an the bagic earmings per share

af tha Comgpany, which iz basad on: Taka in 000

Prafit for the year 31,078 B26.TTH
M. of shares

Welghted average number of ordinary shares 12,046,449 12,046 448

Bagic and diluted earnings per sharg [Taka] 58.98 §8.63
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Motes Taka in 000
|
Raw & packing matesials 1,850, T8 1,501,510
Capital goods 10,578 .80
Stoves & spanes G661 5458
1,954,243 1,552,778
Taka in 000
Motes
Raw & packing matenals, and stores & spars % %
a. Imports - Raw & packing materiaks & a0 2,264,504 2507861 [ 26
b. Indigenaus
Reaw & packing materiaks 1 542,588 4Enam | 14
Stoees & apanas 1 16,5417 18,767 1
20 ERO405 bo0,068 | 15
100 2,813,878 | | 3307929 | 100

36 Expenditure incurred in forsign curmmcy

Foreign travel for the Company's business 1812 n.0a
Technical fpiofessianal boaks, joumals and fees -

Faraign cumancy in ‘0008

37 Valuw of sxport business L0 b&3 387

GEF 112 100

38 Closing imventary of each class of gonds produced or purchassd (At cost]- Nots-21

Taka in 000
JR S TR
Iteme Unit Quantity  Taka  Quantity  Taks
a. Pharmaceuticals

Tablets and capsules Millign 19 34,653 L 165
Topicals Tanne 17 45580 mn 6,478
Vigls and drops Thausand 178 157,748 256 123854
Oral liquids Kikalitre i) 4217 g e
Granulas Tanng 0.2 168 1 1,07
Inhalers Thausand 275 105,568 122 BE.316
353,036 246,300

b. Consumer Healthcare
Powder Tanne Th 16,71 121 18,288
Oral Thausand 124 9,892 5E2 3420
28,663 52,484
39,60 300,789

BE 0K
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33 Finighed products purchased (At cost)-Note-21

Taka in 000
s 7 aw
ltams Unit Quantity Taka Quantity Taka

&. Tablats & capsules Thousand 17,373 85,261 15,4399 47,285
b, Tapicals Tonnse 3 BT 427 24 1,504
c. Injections Thewsand 48T G14.243 ] 326,183
d. Inhalers Thousand S0 22T 445 265,338
&, Dral The gand el a0, 760 m 36,868
865,961 736,088

40 Materials consumed

Wotes  Quantity  Takain'iBD  Quantity Taka in"000

il Pharmaceuticals
&  Pawacetamol powder 91,260 Kg 38,333 | BG820 kg 36,468
b, Betamethasone valerate 183 Kg 0,820 156 Kg 23280
¢ Griseofubin powder 7.501Kg 38870 | 5504 Kg 26,041
d ﬂthelutams individually below 10% of 570,840 Gl TET
total consumprian
Total pharmaceuticals Various BAT263 |  Warious 510,558

il Consumerhealthcare

& Powdsr BE3T Tanne 1,537,301 | dTWTome || 241537
b, l.'t:halriums individualhy balow 10% of Various Gr2.308|  Vaious 03289

total consumption
Total healthcare 2100,689 2,718,606
2,797 662 4,280,162

ii] Stores & spares
Icems indrvidually befow 1% of toral consumption Varlous 16417 Vanous 18,767

Toral 2,813,878 Total 3,307,529
41 Installed capacity and actual production
Classes of goods Unit Annual instalbed Actual production
S

a. Pharmaceuticals

Tabdets and capsules Millior 1200 ETa a7
(ral ligulds Kiliolitre 60 288 264
Vieks and drops Thouzand 750 B15 510
Topicalg Tonme 200 184 170
Gramules Tonna Gl T 7
b. Congumer heslthcare

Pawder Tonne 1500 1127 1362

Licensed capacity i no longer enforced and the regulatary suthority doss nat exercise any controd aver the production.
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The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company's fisk manage-
ment framawark. The Baard is respansitle for developing and munim the Company's risk menagemant palicies. The
Comgery has al=o foemed ‘Risk Management & Comphanca Board | T.

The objective of the RMCR is to review and assess the guality and effectiveness of the risk management system and
ensure that the risk policies are effectively managed and incorparated in the management souctoure of the E:mndpan'.t
It also oversees the risk mana gement strategies to achieve cument and accurate compliance with operational and legal
rﬁmm and identification of foreseealde trends that could significanty impact the Company's overall Dusiness
obectives.

Cradit risk

Credit risk represents the aceounting loss that wauld be recognized at the re[mrting date if counter parties fail com-
ﬂlm to perform as contracted, it maink comprises of trade receivables, advances to suppliers, trade deposits and
ank balances. The Company's maimum exposure bo credit rigk at the repoming date is a5 Tollows:

Takain 000
s o
Loans to emplayees 1,614 2,001
Advances to amployees 7103 6270
Advances to suppliers 2,036 10,608
Security deposits sy 2,848
Trade receivables 1,035,503 BE1,E03
Othear recaivables 78933 X5 519
Bank balances Z.870,505 2,536,508
4,966,911 3,465, 838
The aging of rade receivables at the reporting date is & follpws:
Trade recaivables
Mot past dua 1,025,293 481,893
Past dus 1-180 days
Past dwa mare than 180 days - -
1,035,853 BE1,883

To mitigate the coadit sk against trade receivables, the company has a system of specific ciadit line period to the
distributor. This outstanding period and amount are regulary monitared. The Compary endeavars to cover the credit
risks on all other recenvabies, when: possible, by restricting credit facility and stringent monitaring.

42.2 Liguidity risk

Liquidity nisk is the risk that the Gampany will nat be able to meet its fnancial abligatons as thay fall dug.

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the Company's financial liabdkties as at the eportng date,

Takamn ‘000
Lessthan | 1te2years | 2tobyears -
12 months
Financial liahilities
2016
Finance lease 6,062 3,285 5528 14,365
Trade and ather payables 2710272 - - 2,710,272
201%
Financa kease 4,810 2337 5528 24,775
Trade and ather payables 237516 - - 2,537 516

Maintaining sufficiant cash, the availability of funding through an adequate emount of commitved bank facilities, the
company menages the Equidity risk.
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423 Market risk

Market nsk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrumeant will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices such as foregn exchange raves, interest rates and ather price risks. The objective of markst
risk management is ta manags and controd market risk exposures within an accaptable range.

4211 Foreign cumency risk

Thi ek that the fair valwe or future cash flows of 3 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates, The Compary's exposune 1o the nek of changes in farelgn exchange rates relates pAmarlly to com-
pany's operating activithes with the foresgm suppliers.

The: Company's expasure to foreign currency risk in major currencies at their gross values is a5 follows:

Amount in ‘000

Foraign cumancy
Trade and ather receivables us0 L 454
GEP B L)
Cash and bank balances S0 a7 185
GEP H 14
Tradis and ather payables usn 2,245 P |
GEP (519 75

The Company did not experienca with any unuseal profit or lass causing from foreign exchange fluctustion till date.
The following is the demonstration of the sensitivity to a reesanably possible change in exchange rate of &l cumen-
cies applied to asset= and lishilities 8= at Eporting dete rapresentad in foreign cumencies, with all ather varisbles held
constant, af tha Company'= prafi,/|oes hefara ta.

% 1%
461 1,165

Change in gxchange rate
Effect on profitfloss before tax [Taka'000]

| 1%

§2.17 Imterest rate risk

Inerest rane risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primar-
ily tg the Compary's short-term depogits and running finances:

A the reparting date, the average intarest rate of the Company's interest basving financial instruments was as follows:

Effective rates % Taka in '000
Financial assets
Term deposit J00%-66%  45%-06%| 236300 19892
Financial lkabilities
Finance lease 16.26% 16.60% 1is, B85 24,176

The Company's policy is to keep its short-term running finances st the lowest level by effectively keeping the posttive |
bank balances. Further, the Compeny also minimizes the interest rate risk by investing in fived rate investments like |
term depasit receipts.

K213 Other price risk

Price rigk i the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 8 financial instrument will fluctuats because of changes
n market prices | other than thase anising from nterest rate risk and cumency risk]. The Company is not expased to any
equity price rigk, as the Company does not have any investment in equity shases. The Company also is not exposed to |
commadity price rigk.
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an

Notes Taka in'000
43 Intangible Assets

. Computer Saftware
(pening balance 4,374 B.467
Capitalisation during the year - -
Amortization to cost of sales during the year A [1,0083) 11.093]
Carrying valua 3,28 4,374
b. Acquisition of business
Opaning balance a3l -
Capitalization during the year 156 -
Carrying valug 156

3437 4374

A5 part of the global transaction betwesn G5K Plc and Novastis AG, the Comparry has paid EOT. 156 [Taka'000] to pur-
chase some significant portfalio of vactine business of Novartis Bangladesh accoeding to the agrement batwean the
Company and Novartis Bangladesh,

&b Comparatives

Previows years figures and account titles in the financisl statementz have been resranged and eclassined, wharaver
nacezsary for the pupose of comparisan, without, however, creating any impact on the profit and value of eszats and
lishilitie= a8 raported in the financial statements for tha current yeat

45 Events after the reporting peried

Since the reporting penad there has been no material changes affacting the financial positian of the Campany.
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CONTACT DETAILS EFw—--

Corporate Office

House: 24, Road: 138

Gulshar:1, DhakalZ12

Phorie- PARY: B20-2-8853070-15

Fax: £80-2-BEZBEZE, Wabsite: www.gsk.com.od
g-mail: gzk.hangladesh-infof@gsk com

Upe 1 - F A O ¥l
Chittagong

1 Ma. Dewanzee Pukur Lane

Machua Jharna,

Nawah Siraj-Ud-Dowla Road, Chittagong
Phone: (03] 15883, B21506

Maijdee

Red Crascent Bhaban
Maipdes Court, Noakhali
Pl Box-Maipdes-J800
Phione: [0327)62065

Comilla

204, Shaheed Shamsul Hague Sarak
P, Brue98, Comillz-3500

Phone: [0B1]68132

Sylhet

3. Paira [2nd flonr)
Darga Mohalla
Sylhet-2100

Phone: [0BZ1]1720658

Jessore

B0, Ghaopa Cantral Road
New cown Housng Estate
. Box-10

Jeszora-T400

Phone: [0621)85508

Bogra

[ Ighag Lane

528, Sutrapuc Bogra
Phone: [O51]60060, B4746

Factory

Fouzderhat Industrisl Ares
North Kattali

PO Bow3, Chittagong G217
Phong: 80-31 -752071-78
Faux:280-31-751 051

[haka

3 Floar, 1914, Tejgaan | /A
Gulshan Link Road, Dhaka-1208
Mobile; 01822 928 957

Mymensingh

6, Mriturgoy Schacl Road

PO Bigoe 31, Mymensingh 2200
Phone: [D81]6T5TT

Barisal

N. Homzain Complex
Police Line Road

P 0. Box-38
Bansal-E200

Phone: ((431) 2173351

Rangpar

Shajada Mahal

Lol Station Road

R0 Boo-05, Rangpur 5400
Phone: (052162757

Rajshahi

2, Wazi Hata, Greazer Road
R0, Bow-04

Rajshahi- G000

Phone: (0721770843

Khulna

26243, Ghier-E-Bangla Rpad
Khulnz- 3000

Phione: (061 2 R34037
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GlaxeSmithKline Bangladesh Limited 5 mon
“egistered (ffice: Fouzderhat Industrial Area fu kaltior
Hoeth Katali, Chittagang
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annthaer member of the Company, as my proxy te vate and act for me, and on my behalf, at the 437 Annual
Gerwral Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday the 21* Apnl, 2016 and at any adjoumment
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The Company Secretary
GlaxoSmithkline Bangladesh Limited
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